DISASTER RECOVERY AND CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT

This Disaster Recovery and Construction Agreement (this “Agreement”), dated and effective
July 1, 2017, is between the West Virginia Development Office, a division of the West Virginia
Department of Commerce (“WVDO”) and Thompson Construction Group, Inc., a company
authorized to do business in the State of West Virginia (“Contractor”) (sometimes, collectively,
the “Parties”).

RECITALS

WHEREAS, in 2016, the federal government appropriated a certain amount of money to
be administered by the United States Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD")
through its Community Development Block Grant — Disaster Recovery (“CDBG-DR”) Program
to facilitate the recovery efforts in impacted jurisdictions;

WHEREAS, HUD awarded a portion of the appropriated funds to the State of West
Virginia in response to historic flooding that occurred in June of 2016 (the “Disaster Project”);

WHEREAS, the WVDO is the lead entity responsible for administering the CDBG-DR
program on behalf of the State of West Virginia;

WHEREAS, Contractor is a construction company experienced in construction,
rehabilitation and/or replacement of homes in disaster affected areas;

WHEREAS, the WVDO desires to engage Contractor to provide construction services in
the disaster affected areas and Contractor desires to provide construction services in these same
areas, all in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises and compensation
described in this agreement, the WVDO and Contractor agree as follows:

1. Engagement to Provide Construction Services. The WVDO shall engage Contractor to
provide Construction Services and Contractor shall provide services described in this
Agreement to assist the affected individuals that are the subject of this recovery project.

2. Term. This Agreement begins on July 1, 2017, and ends the earlier of July 1, 2018, or
when assigned construction services are completed in total, unless otherwise sooner
terminated in accordance with Paragraph 7 of this Agreement. The Parties may extend
the term of this Agreement by executing a written document in accordance with
Paragraph 12 of this Agreement.

3. WVDO Responsibilities.

a. Compliance. The WVDO shall administer the use of CDBG-DR funds and
ensure that Contractor complies with applicable state and federal laws,
regulations, and/or guidelines governing the Disaster Project. The WVDO may



refer any matter concerning potential violations of such laws, regulations, and/or
guidelines to the proper authority having jurisdiction.

Compensation. The WVDO shall compensate Contractor in accordance with the
compensation provision contained in the Task Order Ome. Additional Task
Orders with corresponding compensation provisions may be developed and
incorporated as necessary.

Deductions and Withholdings. The WVDO may deduct amounts or withhold
payments, in whole or in part, from any invoice Contractor submits to the WVDO
under this Agreement if Contractor fails to comply with this Agreement. If the
WVDO deducts or withholds such payments, the WVDO shall provide Contractor
with a written document explaining the deductions or withholdings and setting
forth a procedure and deadline to remedy the deficiency giving rise to the
deducted or withheld payment. If Contractor fails to satisfactorily remedy the
deficiency as requested, the WVDO may permanently withhold the deducted or
withheld payment. Deductions and withholdings are also specified in Task
Order One.

4, Contractor Responsibilities.

a.

Incorporation of Request for Proposal and Contractor Proposal By Reference.
Contractor is herein obligated to perform services for WVDO in accordance with
their proposal as well as the stipulations and requirements as set forth in the
Request of Proposal that is the basis for this contract for Construction Services.
Contractor shall be bound by their proposal unless specifically agreed otherwise
by WVDO and as memorialized in writing upon mutual agreement by the parties.
Any mutual agreement shall also be incorporated into this agreement by
reference. The Request for Proposal and the Proposal in response are attached
hereto as Exhibits A and B.

Manufactured Housing Replacement Services. Contractor shall be required to
perform the following functions for all homes assigned to it:

Obtain all required permits

Schedule the replacement activities with the applicant

Disconnect all utilities

Demolition of existing structure/structures

Disposal of existing structure/structures

Pad/Foundation preparation

Installation/Completion of the new MHU

Connection of all utilities

Installation of all electrical, plumbing, and HVAC components and
fixtures

. Purchase and installation of the following energy star rated kitchen
appliances: Refrigerator, Dishwasher, and Stove/Oven



. Scheduling and completion of all required inspections
. Obtain a Certificate of Occupancy

Types of Structures to be Constructed.

A detailed proposal for a 3 bedroom/1 bathroom MHU is required. The proposal
should include detailed floor plans, exterior elevation drawings/renderings, option
board/flipbook for the finished product and quarterly completion capacity.
Contractor must warranty all work for a period of one year.

Temporary Storage Requirement. Contractor will be responsible for scheduling
and providing on-site temporary storage to current residences when deemed
necessary by the WVDO’s Construction Manager. Contractor must provide the
resident up to 14 days to move their personal items out of the property to be
demolished. Upon completion of construction, Contractor must allow the resident
14 days to vacate the on-site temporary storage.

Legal Requirements. It is the responsibility of Contractor to ensure each scope of
work is executed in accordance with any and all federal, state, and/or local
standards, guidelines, codes, or requirements. Contractor must provide all labor
and materials needed to complete the scope of work. Upon completion of the
scope of work, the contractor must attend any necessary inspections. Invoices for
completed scope of work cannot be submitted until the final inspection has been
passed. Contractor is required to warranty all work for a period of one year.
Exhibit C provides applicable Federal contracting provisions that the contractor
shall adhere to under this contract and in view of Federal law, as does Section 6
below. That being the case, the contractor shall also bear the responsibility of
adhering to all applicable federal contracting laws, rules and regulations,
including those that are added or amended after execution of this Agreement.

Standardized Cost Model. Contractor will agree to perform the entire scope of
work identified by the WVDO for the cost identified by the standardized tool, or
Xactimate as set forth in Task Order One or any subsequent Task Orders. Should
unforeseen conditions exist, Contractor will have the ability to submit change
order requests and the cost of change orders and the scope and cost of change
orders will be evaluated by the standardized tool.

Elevation Requirements. Some properties eligible for reconstruction will require
additional elevation. Contractor shall perform necessary elevation changes where
applicable. Properties requiring additional structural elevation shall meet the
criteria provided for in the Federal Register Notice 81 FR 5989 published on
November 21, 2016; specifically, the items addressed under the section titled,
“Elevation standards for new construction, repair of substantial damage, or
substantial improvement”.



h. Performance Assignment, Goals & Requirements. Contractor will not be
guaranteed a minimum number of assignments. Assignments will be at the sole
discretion of the WVDO and its designee, likely the WVDO’s construction
manager based on performance measures established by the WVDO and set forth
below. The WVDO has established timeline completion goals established in
accordance with the scope of work total. The timeliness goals are as follows:

. Standard: 21 days
. Replacement with Additional Elevation: 35 days

Adherence to the above-mentioned timeliness goals will be tracked by the
WVDO, or its designee. The ability to achieve these predefined goals will affect
workload allocations. Contractors who meet the timeliness goals may be eligible
to receive greater reconstruction property volume. Contractors who are unable to
meet the timeliness goals will be limited in the amount of work they are assigned
or removed from the program.

If a construction contractor is unable to meet the predetermined deadline they will
be required to notify the WVDO and its construction management team
immediately in writing. This notification will be required to include a revised
projected completion date, and brief discussion of the issues that lead to the
missed deadline. It is the goal of the WVDO to help ensure each program and
individual project is operating efficiently, and any needs or issues encountered by
construction contractors are addressed.

Quality of the contractor’s workmanship will be continuously assessed based on
the judgment of the WVDO, or its designee.

FOIA.

Contractor acknowledges that WVDO is subject to the terms of the West Virginia
Freedom of Information Act (“FOIA”), as may be amended from time to time, and
nothing contained within this Agreement is intended to limit WVDO?’s ability to disclose
public records for which a reasonable claim of exemption can be made, including, but not
limited to, trade secrets that are exempt from public disclosure by the State of West
Virginia pursuant to West Virginia Code § 29B-1-1, et seq.

Federal Provisions.

Contractor shall comply with all federal laws and regulations including, but not limited to
those set forth in Exhibit C, SPECIAL PROVISIONS AND REGULATIONS

REQUIRED BY THE US DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN

DEVELOPMENT (HUD) COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT
PROGRAM, which is attached hereto and fully incorporated herein by reference.

Suspension and Termination.



C.

Suspension. If Contractor fails to comply with the terms, conditions or
standards of this Agreement, the WVDO, may, on reasonable notice to
Contractor, suspend this Agreement, and withhold further payments, or prohibit
Contractor from incurring additional obligation of funds under this Agreement,
pending corrective action by Contractor or a decision to terminate in accordance
with this section as defined below. The WVDO shall allow all necessary and
proper costs that Contractor could not reasonably avoid during the period of
suspension if they are consistent with applicable laws or regulations.

Termination.

i.

ii.

Termination for Cause. The WVDO may terminate this Agreement, in
whole or in part, at any time before the date of completion, whenever it is
determined that Contractor has failed to comply with any term of this
Agreement, whether stated in a federal statute, or regulation, an assurance,
an application, a notice of award or elsewhere. The WVDO shall
promptly notify Contractor in writing of the determination and the reasons
for the termination, together with the effective date. Payments made to
Contractor shall be in accord with the legal rights and liabilities of the
parties.

Termination for Convenience.

1. The Parties may terminate this Agreement, in whole, or in part, if
the Parties determine that continuation of the Disaster Project
would not produce beneficial results commensurate with the
further expenditure of funds. If so decided, Contractor may not
incur new obligations after the effective termination date, and shall
cancel as many outstanding obligations as possible. The WVDO
shall allow full credit to Contractor for the federal share of the non-
cancelable obligations, properly incurred by Contractor prior to
termination.

2. Contractor may terminate this Agreement upon written notice to
the WVDO, setting forth the reasons for the termination and the
portion to be terminated. In such event, Contractor shall comply
with the provisions of this Paragraph 7.

3. The WVDO may terminate this Agreement upon thirty (30) days
written notice to Contractor. The WVDO shall pay Contractor for
services rendered prior to the effective date of termination.

Applicable Regulations. The Parties shall observe 2 CFR 200.339 “Termination”
and 2 CFR 200.342 “Effects of Suspension and Termination”.



Right to Seek Relief. The WVDO reserves all remedies of law and equity,
including without limitation, the right to seek all appropriate relief upon the filing
of voluntary or involuntary petition for Contractor’s reorganization or liquidation
under any bankruptcy or insolvency laws providing for the relief for debtors.

Transitional Assistance. If Contractor terminates or suspends this Agreement, the
WVDO may require Contractor to ensure that adequate arrangements have been
made for the transfer of the delegated activities to another contractor, qualified
entity, or to the WVDO.

Disposition of Property. If termination occurs, all property and finished or
unfinished documents, data, and studies prepared by Contractor under this
Agreement shall be disposed of per HUD directives and the WVDO and the
Contractor may be entitled to compensation for any non-reimbursed, reasonable,
and necessary expenses incurred in satisfactory performance of the Agreement.

Continuing Liability. Contractor shall assume continued liability to the WVDO
for any damages sustained by the WVDO due to any breach of this Agreement
that Contractor fails to remedy or cure. The WVDO may withhold payments
under this Agreement to offset damages incurred by the WVDO under this
Agreement.

Conditions Endangering Performance. The WVDO shall provide Contractor with
the written notice of any condition endangering performance and a reasonable
timeframe to remedy or cure the condition. If Contractor fails to remedy or cure
the condition contained in the notice within the timeframe set forth in the notice,
the WVDO may issue an order terminating this Agreement. The WVDO shall be
obligated only for services rendered and accepted before the date of the notice of
termination.

Limitations and Rights of Third Parties.

a.

Rights. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall impair the rights of the
WVDO.

Access and Monitoring. WVDO, HUD, the Comptroller General of the United
States, and any other federal regulatory agency with oversight on the funds or any
of their duly authorized representatives shall have the right to the following:

i. Access to any books, documents, papers and records of Contractor
which are directly pertinent to this specific Agreement for making audit,
examinations, excerpts and transcriptions.

il. Inspect and monitor work performed by Contractor under this Agreement.
This inspection and monitoring could result in the requirement to fix



deficiencies if Contractor does not satisfy applicable regulations and
standards.

9. Subcontracts.

a.

General. Contractor shall ensure all subcontracts follow 2 CFR 200 as well as any
applicable HUD rules and regulations. All subcontracts shall contain the
applicable provisions described in Appendix II to Part 200 — “Agreement
Provisions for the non-Federal Entity Agreements Under Federal Awards™ as well
as applicable provisions set forth in 2 CFR 200.101. The WVDO shall review
subcontracts as part of the compliance monitoring and oversight process
performed by WVDO or upon request.

Specific Requirements. All subcontracts shall contain provisions specifying:

i That the work performed by the subcontractor be in accordance with the
applicable terms of this Agreement between the WVDO and Contractor;

ii. That nothing contained in such subcontract agreement shall impair the
rights of the WVDO;

iii. That nothing contained herein, or under this Agreement will create any
contractual relation between the subcontractor and the WVDO;

iv. That the subcontractor specifically agrees to be bound by the
confidentiality provision regarding Personal Identifiable Information set
forth in this Agreement;

V. That Contractor will be responsible for ensuring all subcontract work is
performed consistent with federal and state regulations and/or policies to
be eligible for reimbursement of the approved work; and

Vi. All federal flow down provisions are included in the subcontract
agreement per federal guidelines.

Monitoring. Contractor shall diligently monitor all subcontracted services. If
Contractor discovers any areas of noncompliance, Contractor shall provide the
WVDO summarized written reports supported with documented evidence of the
corrective action.

Content. Contractor shall cause all the applicable provisions of this Agreement to
be included in, and made part of, any subcontract executed in the performance of

this Agreement.

10.  Indemnity. Contractor shall hold harmless, defend and indemnify the WVDQO, its officers
and employees, against claims or losses for the services rendered by Contractor, any









TASK ORDER ONE

Assignments will be at the sole discretion of the WVDO and its designee, such as the WVDO’s
construction manager based on performance measures established by the WVDO and set forth
below. The WVDO has established timeline completion goals established in accordance with the
scope of work total. The timeliness goals are as follows:

TIMELINE

Mobile Housing Units (MHU):

Standard: Twenty-One Days (21) to complete.
If greater than Twenty-Four (24) days, contractor will be assessed a $2500.00
Penalty on payment for the unit.

Elevated: Thirty-Five Days (35) to complete.
If greater than Forty (40) days, contractor will be assessed a $2500.00 Penalty on
payment for the unit.

Mobile Housing Units:

Green Building Standard:

COMPENSATION

WVDO will provide contractor with 25% of the total payment
upon assignment. WVDO will provide the remaining 75% of the
total payment upon completion, which includes sign-off by the
Construction Manager.

Contractor must meet the Green Building Standard for: (i) All new
construction of residential buildings and (ii) all replacement of
substantially damaged residential buildings. Replacement of
residential buildings may include reconstruction (i.e., demolishing
and rebuilding a housing unit on the same lot in substantially the
same manner) and may include changes to structural elements such
as flooring systems, columns, or load bearing interior or exterior
walls.

For purposes of this notice, compliance with the Green Building
Standard referenced above means the WVDO will require that all
construction covered by this Agreement, meets an industry-
recognized standard that has achieved certification under at least
one of the following programs, as applicable:

@) ENERGY STAR (Certified Homes or Multifamily
High-Rise),
(ii) Enterprise Green Communities;



(iii)

(iv)
)

(vi)

LEED (New Construction, Homes, Midrise, Existing
Buildings  Operations and  Maintenance, or
Neighborhood Development),

ICC-700 National Green Building Standard,

EPA Indoor AirPlus (ENERGY STAR a prerequisite),
or

any other equivalent comprehensive green building
program acceptable to HUD.



EXHIBIT A
(REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL)









responsible for all aspects of demolition, disposal, scheduling and replacement. The contractor will
be required to conform to all applicable state and local codes and requirements. The MHU
replacement services will include replacement of 3 bedroom/1 bathroom single-family units.

SCOPE OF WORK

Once a contractor commences work on any SOW, the contractor is expected to complete all tasks
associated with the SOW. SOW line items may include and the construction contractor will be
responsible for at least the following:

e Obtain all required permits

e Schedule the replacement activities with the applicant

e Disconnect all utilities

e Demolition of existing structure/structures

o Disposal of existing structure/structures

e Pad/Foundation preparation

o Installation/Completion of the new MHU

o Connection of all utilities

o Installation of all electrical, plumbing, and HVAC components and fixtures

e Purchase and installation of the following energy star rated kitchen appliances
o Refrigerator, Dishwasher, and Stove/Oven

e Scheduling and completion of all required inspections

e Obtain a Certificate of Occupancy

A detailed proposal for a 3 bedroom/1 bathroom MHU is required. The proposal should include
detailed floor plans, exterior elevation drawings/renderings, option board/flipbook for the finished

product and quarterly completion capacity. Pricing and specifications must be included along with

Attachment 1. Attachment 1 must be completed and submitted with the response to the RFP in
order to be considered. Contractors must warranty all work for a period of one year.

Additionally, the construction contractor will be responsible for scheduling and providing on-site
temporary storage to current residences when deemed necessary by the WVDO’s Construction
Manager. The contractor must provide the resident up to 14 days to move their personal items out
of the property to be demolished. After installation of the new MHU, the contractor must allow the
resident 14 days to vacate the on-site temporary storage.

It is the responsibility of the contractor to ensure each SOW is executed in accordance with any
and all federal, state, and/or local standards, guidelines, codes, or requirements. The contractor
must provide all labor and materials needed to complete the SOW. Upon completion of the SOW,
the contractor must attend any necessary inspections. Invoices for completed SOWs cannot be



submitted until the final inspection has been passed. Contractors are required to warranty all work
for a period of one year.

Respondent(s) should provide, in accordance with all applicable state and federal regulations, a
response to serve as a General Contractor who will perform the replacement of the MHUs on a
multi-county basis. The Respondent(s) will agree to perform the entire scope of work identified by
the WVDO for the cost identified by the standardized tool. Should unforeseen conditions exist, the
Respondent will have the ability to submit change order requests and the cost of change orders and
the scope and cost of change orders will be evaluated by the standardized tool.

Any contract(s) resulting from this RFP will not utilize either a “cost plus” or a “percentage of
cost” method of contracting.

Respondent(s) will be required to comply with all Davis Bacon wage rate requirements if
applicable.

The WVDO will require proposals from respondent(s) having the specific experience and
qualifications in the areas identified in this RFP. The WVDO may select more than one
respondent. Additional information required by the WVDO is included elsewhere in the
solicitation.

ADDITIONAL ELEVATION REQUIREMENTS

Some properties eligible for MHU replacement will require additional elevation. Properties
requiring additional elevation shall meet the criteria provided for in the Federal Register Notice 81
FR 5989 published on November 21, 2016; specifically, the items addressed under the section
titled, “Elevation standards for new construction, repair of substantial damage, or substantial
improvement”. A copy the above mentioned document is provided in Attachment 2. It is the
responsibility of the construction contractor to ensure these minimum standards are met.

PERFORMANCE MEASURES

Respondents should be aware that providing timely assistance to eligible applicants is a priority.
Successful respondents will not be guaranteed a minimum number of assignments. Assignments
will be at the sole discretion of the WVDO and its designee, likely the WVDO’s construction
manager based on performance measures established by the WVDO and set forth below. The
WVDO has established timeline completion goals established in accordance with the SOW total.
The timeliness goals are as follows:

e Standard Demolition and MHU replacement: 21 days

¢ Demolition and Installation of MHU replacements Requiring Additional Elevation: 35 days



Adherence to the above-mentioned timeliness goals will be tracked by the WVDO, or its designee.
The ability to achieve these predefined goals will affect workload allocations. Contractors who
meet the timeliness goals may be eligible to receive greater replacement property volume.
Contractors who are unable to meet the timeliness goals will be limited in the amount of work they
are assigned or removed from the program.

If a construction contractor is unable to meet the predetermined deadline they will be required to
notify the WVDO and its construction management team immediately in writing. This notification
will be required to include a revised projected completion date, and brief discussion of the issues
that lead to the missed deadline. It is the goal of the WVDO to help ensure each program and
individual project is operating efficiently, and any needs or issues encountered by construction
contractors are addressed.

Quality of the contractor’s workmanship will be continuously assessed based on the judgment of
" the WVDO, or its designee.

L CONTRACTOR QUALIFICATIONS & REQUIREMENTS

CONTRACTOR QUALIFICATIONS: Qualifications to be considered are the following:

A. Experience:

1. The Respondent must hold a current license issued through the West Virgihia Contractor
Licensing Board.

2. Experience in the construction, repair, rehabilitation and maintenance of residential
housing. Proposals must contain evidence of the Respondent’s experience and competency
in the specified fields as well as in all other disciplines directly related to the proposed
services.

3. Experience with the employment of MWBE and/or Section 3 subcontractors. Proposals
should identify specific MWBE and/or Section 3 subcontractors who are currently working
with the Respondent in the subject area, if any.

4. Demonstrated ability to commit to residential repair and construction projects and to carry
such projects to completion.

5. Demonstrated ability and experience with the repair of historic properties, and coordination
with West Virginia’s Archives and History Commission as necessary.



6.

10.

Demonstrated ability and experience with environmental mitigation related to the
replacement of MHUs.

Demonstrated financial resources to perform and complete the work without progress
payments and to provide the warranty required by this RFP. This should include, if
necessary, a construction financing plan. The Respondent must have adequate financial
resources to perform the contract or demonstrate the ability to obtain adequate financial
resources. The Respondent should provide WVDO with sufficient information to make this
evaluation. WVDO reserves the right to request additional information to substantiate this
qualification.

Experience in managing and completing projects of a similar size and nature.

Prior experience in managing and completing projects funded by Community Block
Development Grant (CDBG) or other federal funds.

Prior experience in compliance with and reporting on compliance with state and federal
construction laws, regulations, and procedures, including Section 3, Davis Bacon (as
applicable), and the payroll documentation necessary for compliance.

B. Responsible Business Practices

1.

WVDO may consider a Respondent’s adherence to acceptable business practices,
including, but not limited to, complaints or charges of misconduct filed against a
Respondent with any licensing jurisdiction, and any disciplinary action and/or monetary
penalties by such jurisdiction imposed against the Respondent.

Each Respondent should identify any pending liens or judgments against the Respondent or
its principals.

C. Insurance requirements

The selected Respondent will be required to provide proof of the minimum insurance
coverage amounts identified below at the time of contract by providing an endorsed
Standard Construction Contract Certificate of Insurance.

Comprehensive General liability: $1,000,000 per occurrence

Automobile liability: $1,000,000 per occurrence



Worker’s compensation: $1,000,000 per occurrence, which shall inure to the benefit of all
Respondent's personnel provided hereunder

Professional liability insurance, if applicable.
Fidelity bond insurance with minimum limits of $1,000,000
Umbrella coverage of $5,000,000.

Other insurance requirements in the discretion of WVDO as may be contained within a
construction contract for the work to be performed by the respondent.

All general liability, automobile liability, professional liability and fidelity bond insurance
and umbrella coverage will provide coverage to WVDO as either “Owner” or as an
“additional insured” at WVDO'’s discretion. Insurance carriers must be licensed or hold a
Certificate of Authority from the West Virginia Department of Insurance.

D. Payment and Performance Bond, and Tax Bond

1.

Each Respondent must maintain a performance and payment bond in an amount equal to
the contract awarded by the WVDO. The WVDO may award contracts in different
amounts based upon the work that is required. Respondent(s) must provide evidence of the
maximum performance and payment bonding capacity with their Response, and the form
of the bond that shall be executed and produced by the selected Respondent(s) at the time
of contract signing. WVDO anticipates that the minimum bonding requirement will be Five
Million and No 00/100 Dollars ($5,000,000) and selection may be made partially on this
basis. In certain cases, WVDO may consider the selection of Respondents who can provide
evidence of a maximum performance and payment bonding capacity of not less than Two
Million and No 00/100 Dollars ($2,000,000) for specialized services or a smaller number
of projects. In no event, shall the bond requirement be for less than one hundred percent
(100%) of the selected Respondent’s contract amount. Insurance pursuant to the
requirements as outline in § 11.1.2.1 of the AIA A201-2007 Supplementary Conditions
where not otherwise referenced (Builder’s Risk is not applicable).

Each Respondent must provide a tax bond for the payment of all taxes, licenses,
assignments, contributions, damages, penalties, and interest thereon, when and as the same
may lawfully be due the State of West Virginia, or any county, municipality, board,
department, commission, or political subdivision thereof, by reason of and directly
connected with the performance of any contract awarded to the Respondent(s) as provided
under West Virginia law. The form of said bond that shall be executed and produced by the
selected Respondent(s) at the time of contract execution.



3. All bonds must be issued by a bonding agent with at least an “A” rating.

E. Management Qualifications

1.

Staffing Plan. Each Respondent shall provide a staffing plan that addresses how the
Respondent will identify, hire, and train and retain its personnel. The staffing plan shall
describe the proposed staffing approach, including key subcontractors needed to ensure
staffing is sufficient to provide the required personnel during all aspects of contract
performance.

a) Staffing Plan must specifically address a Respondent’s capacity to provide services
(including statement of bonding capacity) including specific answers to the following
questions:

How many people do you anticipate for each construction crew?

How many crews do you plan to engage with this project?

How long will it take your organization to reach construction capacity?

Describe your firm’s total capacity to complete work and provide timeline for the

attached Residential Scope.

(o)

o

o

Deployment of Resources. Demonstrated capacity to effectively, efficiently, and
economically deploy resources and materials.

Demonstrated quality control plan. Each Respondent should explain its proposed quality
control program and demonstrate an understanding of and the importance of quality
control.

Management Approach. Each Respondent should describe an overall management
approach that will successfully accomplish the scope of work included. The Respondent
should describe the proposed plan to monitor and evaluate performance across all functions
and subcontractors.

Management Action Plan should include the following:
a) Internal process and work flow diagram.
b) Proposed Organizational Structure (with key personnel identified).

CONTRACTOR REQUIREMENTS: Each Respondent must demonstrate the ability to satisfy
the following requirements:

1.

The work to be performed under a contract awarded pursuant to this Request for Proposals
will utilize funds provided by the Department of Housing and Urban Development and is



10.
11.

12.
13.

subject to the requirements of Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of
1968, as amended, 12 U.S.C. 1701u. Section 3 requires that to the greatest extent feasible,
opportunities for training and employment be given to lower income residents in the
project area and contracts for work in connection with this project be awarded to business
concerns which are located in or owned in substantial part by persons residing in the area
of the program.

Respondent(s) shall commit to make a demonstrated effort to provide subcontract
opportunities to locally owned businesses, minority and women-owned businesses
enterprises, Section 3 businesses and employment opportunities for very low and low-
income residents in the program area.

Respondent(s) must provide a one (1) year warranty on all materials and workmanship, and
the contractor will remain liable for defects as required by West Virginia law.

Respondent(s) should provide, in accordance with all applicable state and federal
regulations, including but not limited to the Community Block Development Grant
(CDBG) program, Davis Bacon Act (if applicable) and Section 3 of the Housing and Urban
Development Act of 1968 as referenced above, a proposal to serve as a General Contractor
who will agree to perform the entire SOW on a multi-county basis. Respondent will have
the ability to submit change order requests and the scope and cost of change orders will be
evaluated by Xactimate.

Respondent must agree to complete all permitting requirements of the state and / or
municipality.

Respondent must agree to conduct all work in a manner that meets or exceeds federal,
state, and/or local building codes as required under the Programs.

Respondent must complete and submit Attachment 1 with its proposal.

Respondent must ensure all waste is properly disposed. All waste must go to a licensed
landfill.

Respondent must maintain proactive communication with homeowner throughout
construction process.

Respondent must maintain and monitor for compliance to all safety regulations.
Respondent must maintain compliance to all program reporting requirements, including the
adoption and utilization of the CarbonCM contractor management system. Training and
system access will be provided to all approved construction contractors.

Respondent must attend all final inspections.

Respondent must include its safety record and provide documentation showing their OSHA
recordable injury rate is <1.5. RFP.



II. SUBMISSION AND PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS

THE WRITTEN PROPOSAL SHALL CONTAIN THE FOLLOWING MINIMUM
INFORMATION AND THE FOLLOWING RESPONSE FORMAT SHALL BE USED FOR
ALL SUBMITTED PROPOSALS:

A. Table of Contents

B. Any required WVDO forms either included in this RFP or later required by WVDO should be
completed and included with the original submission or supplemented upon the request of WVDO.

C. Cover Letter executed by an authorized representative of the Respondent(s).

D. Management Summary: Provide a statement indicating the underlying philosophy of the
Respondent(s) in providing the service.

E. Proposal: Describe in detail how the services will be provided for the sample scope of work.
Include a description of major tasks and subtasks. A timeline for execution of the Respondent's
proposal shall be included in this section.

1. Description of service delivery plan for the proposed scope of work. At a minimum, the
description should include the following:

a) Staffing Plan

b) Scheduling and deployment plan,

c¢) Quality assurance plan,

d) Customer service plan,

e) Financial and materials tracking and reporting process,

f) Purchasing process to include a discussion of procedures for securing quality,
products and competitive prices for services and materials, and

g) Procedure for addressing change orders from the original scope of work.

2. Statement of Qualifications: In preparing a statement of qualifications, Respondent(s)
should address the points of contactor qualification and requirements set out in Section II
of this Request for Proposals.

3. Pricing:

The contractor must provide a turnkey fixed rate price for a 3 bedroom/1 bathroom (3/1)
manufactured housing unit. The configuration should include a minimum of 800 sqft of heated

and cooled living space. All MHUs must comply with U.S. Department of Housing and Urban



Development (HUD) requirements. The total cost should not exceed $60,000. Additional line

item costs for the elevation of structures and ADA modifications must be provided and will be

included in the evaluation of the contractor’s proposal. A certificate of occupancy is required

to be submitted to the WVDO Construction Manager before final payment(s) will be made to

the construction contractor.

All other construction items are to be considered as part of the turnkey solution and pricing

regardless of amount of fill dirt, demolition size of old structure, property location, temporary

storage cost, etc.

Turnkey fixed rate price includes, but is not limited to, the following requirements:

Permitting

Demolition and proper disposition of the existing structure and waste
Site preparation, including necessary fill dirt

Utilities Disconnect and Reconnect (Plumbing, Sewer, and Electric, etc.)
Temporary on-site storage container (40 foot)
Transport/Delivery/Set/Installation of Wind Zone 2 rated MHU
Foundation preparation

HVAC Installation

Egress, per code requirements

Energy Star Appliances (Stove, Dishwasher, and microwave)
Contractor overhead and profit.

A certificate of occupancy

One year warranty on all materials and workmanship

As identified by the WVDO Construction Manager, some MHUs will be required to comply with

ADA (including means of entry and egress). The contractor must provide a fixed rate price to

comply with ADA. This fixed fee is separate and in addition to, when necessary, the turnkey

price.

Similarly, some MHUSs within the 100-year flood plain may require additional structural elevation.



The contractor must provide a fixed-fee per 8 inches of elevation.

Additional scope item may be deemed necessary and assigned using Xactimate pricing for the city

of Charleston, WV for the applicable month and year of SOW generation. In addition, to the line

item cost allowances, 10% overhead and 10% profit will be applied. Additional scope items

include:

New Well installation
New Septic Tank Installation

Extraordinary and critical change order items

All other construction items are to be considered as part of the turnkey solution and pricing
regardless of amount of fill dirt, demolition size of old structure, property location, etc.

The contractor must complete and submit the pricing template included in Attachment 1.

F. Corporate experience and capacity:

1.

Background of the company, to include name, location of principal place of business, date
of incorporation.

Date of incorporation (or filing of a certificate of formation with the office of the
appropriate secretary of state, as applicable), number of employees and yearly gross
revenue.

Evidence that Respondent is either a valid West Virginia entity in good standing with the
Office of the West Virginia Secretary of State or a foreign entity which is qualified to do
business in West Virginia and is in good standing with the Office of the West Virginia
Secretary of State.

A description of the experience and past performance history of the Respondent in
providing the service, the number of years the service has been delivered, and a statement
on the extent of any corporate expansion required to handle the service.

A listing of three (3) contracts under which services similar in scope, size, or discipline
were performed or undertaken. On the proposal form, list three (3) projects (similar in size,
scope and scale to this project) to include the names and addresses of the projects, the
scope of the project, and the names and telephone numbers of the clients for reference
purposes. This information should also be included for any subcontractors.



6. This section must also include a statement of financial condition, bonding capacity, proof
of insurance as identified in Section II.A. and a statement certifying that the Respondent(s)
have not been debarred pursuant to the debarment requirements listed herein.

7. Identify whether or not the Respondent(s) have been the subject of any complaints or
disciplinary action by any licensing jurisdiction.

G. Personnel / Staffing Plan:

1. Describe the abilities, qualifications, and experience of all key personnel who would be
assigned to provide the required services.

2. Attach resumes' of all key personnel assigned to this project and include their experience in
the area of service delivery. Indicate the level of involvement by principals of each
Respondent in the day-to-day operation of the contract.

3. Provide a logistical and staffing timeline which specifies estimated time required from
start-up through mobilization to project sites.

H. References: Give at least three (3) references for contracts of similar size and scope, including
at least two (2) references for current contracts or those awarded during the past three (3) years.
Include the name of the organization, the length of the contract, a brief summary of the work, and
the name and telephone number of a responsible contact person.

I. Acceptance of conditions: Indicate any exceptions to the General Terms and Conditions,
contained in this RFP and to insurance, bonding, and any other requirements listed.

J. Additional data: Provide any additional information that will aid in evaluation of the response.

K. Agreement to perform the entire scope of replacement work identified by the WVDO,
including all change orders, together with evidence that such structure complies with all applicable
state and federal regulations.

ALL PROPOSALS SUBMITTED IN RESPONSE TO THIS REQUEST SHALL BE IN
WRITING.

RESPONDENT(S) MAY DESIGNATE THOSE PORTIONS OF THE PROPOSALS
WHICH CONTAIN TRADE SECRETS OR OTHER PROPRIETARY DATA WHICH
MAY REMAIN CONFIDENTIAL IN ACCORDANCE WEST VIRGINIA LAW,






E. The proposal is not signed by an authorized representative of the Respondent(s); and/or
F. The proposal contains false or misleading statements or references.

G. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the WVDO reserves the right to reject any and/or all proposals.
The WVDO is under no obligation to award a contract as a result of this RFP.

ACCEPTANCE OF PROPOSALS:

WVDO reserves the right, in its sole discretion, to waive minor irregularities in proposals. A minor
irregularity is a variation of the RFP, that does not affect the funding request, or give one party an
advantage or benefit not enjoyed by other parties, or adversely impact the interest of WVDO.
Waivers, when granted, shall in no way modify the RFP requirements or excuse the party from full
compliance with the RFP specifications and other contract requirements, if the party is awarded a
contract.

DISPOSITION OF PROPOSALS:
All submitted proposals become the property of WVDO.

COMPETITIVE NEGOTIATION:

The bidding method to be used is a competitive negotiation from which WVDO is seeking the best
combination of price, experience and quality of service. Discussions may be conducted with
Respondent(s) who submit proposals determined to be reasonably susceptible of being selected for
award. Likewise, WVDO also reserves the right to accept any proposal as submitted to contract
award, without negotiation of offered terms, services or prices. Therefore, all parties are advised to
propose their most favorable terms initially. Should WVDO (or WVDO’s designee) be unable to
negotiate a contract with any of the Respondent(s) or a sufficient number of Respondent(s)
initially selected as providing the best combination of price, experience and quality of service,
responses may be re-solicited or additional Respondent(s) may be selected based on their original,
acceptable submissions in the order of their respective qualification ranking, and negotiations may
continue with such Respondent until an agreement is reached and the contract awarded.

Final contract award and execution is subject to the selected Respondent’s agreement with the
WVDO’s standard contract language and approval of the appropriate state ageny(ies) as
applicable.

INDEFINITE QUANTITY:

Contract(s) awarded pursuant to this RFP will be indefinite quantity contract(s) for the materials
and/or services required and will be effective for the period stated in the RFP. Any quantities of
material and services specified in this RFP are estimates only.

RFP DOES NOT CONSTITUTE ACCEPTANCE OF OFFER:



The release of this RFP does not constitute an acceptance of any offer, nor does such release in
any way obligate WVDO to award funds. WVDO reserves the rights to accept, reject, or negotiate
any or all offers. The final decision to award funds to any party rests solely with WVDO.

EXCEPTIONS AND DEVIATIONS:

Any Respondent(s) taking exception to any part or section of the solicitation shall indicate such
exceptions on the proposal and shall be fully described. Failure to indicate any exception will be
interpreted as the Respondent(s)’ intent to comply fully with the requirements as written.
Conditional or qualified proposals, unless specifically allowed, shall be subject to rejection in
whole or in part.

NONCONFORMING TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

A proposal, which includes terms and conditions not conforming to the terms and conditions in the
RFP, is subject to rejection as non-responsive. WVDO reserves the right to permit a Respondent to
withdraw nonconforming terms and conditions from its proposal prior to a determination by
WVDO of non-responsiveness based on the submission of nonconforming terms and conditions.

EXPENSES INCURRED IN PREPARING OFFERS:
WYVDO accepts no responsibility for any expense incurred by any Respondent in the preparation
and presentation of an offer. Such expenses shall be borne exclusively by each Respondent.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT OF AMENDMENTS:

Each Respondent(s) shall acknowledge receipt of any amendment to the solicitation by signing
and returning the amendment with the proposal, by identifying the amendment number and date in
the space provided for this purpose on the proposal form, or by letter. The acknowledgment must
be received by WVDO by the time and at the place specified for receipt of proposals.

SUSPENSION AND DEBARMENT:

By submitting a proposal, each Respondent certifies that it is not currently suspended or debarred
from submitting proposals for contracts issued by any political subdivision or agency of the State
of West Virginia or the Federal government and that it is not a person or entity which is currently
suspended or debarred from submitting proposals for contracts issued by any political subdivision
or agency of the State of West Virginia or the Federal government.

III. EVALUATION

EVALUATION PROCEDURE AND FACTORS TO BE CONSIDERED IN THE
EVALUATION PROCESS:

Before the award of any contract, Respondent(s) will be required to show, to the complete
satisfaction of the WVDO, satisfaction of the “Contractor Qualifications and Requirements” set



forth in Section II of this RFP, and complete information as required in Section III. The WVDO
may make reasonable investigations deemed necessary and proper to determine the ability and
capacity of the Respondent(s) to perform the work specified herein, and the Respondent(s) shall
furnish to the WVDO all information requested for this purpose. The WVDO reserves the right to
reject any proposal or offer if the evidence submitted by, or investigation of, the Respondent(s)
fails to satisfy the WVDO that the Respondent(s) is properly qualified to carry out the obligations
of the contract and to complete the work described herein.

A selection committee made up of qualified WVDO staff and/or State of West Virginia employees
or their designees selected by the WVDO shall review and evaluate all responses. The selection
committee will have only the response to the solicitation to review for the selection of finalists. It
is, therefore, important that Respondent(s) fully address each of the selection criteria set out in this
solicitation.

STEP I: Proposals will be reviewed to assure compliance with the minimum specifications.
Proposals which do not comply with the minimum specifications will be rejected immediately,
receiving no further consideration. The minimum specifications are the following:

A. Description of Respondent(s)’ understanding of the Programs specifically;

B. Information contained within Section II., CONTRACTOR QUALIFICATIONS, A. and Section
[IL.F., Corporate Experience and capacity;

C. Licensure requirements of Section IL.A;

D. Staffing plan as required by Sections I1.D and III. G. which specifies estimated time required
from start up through mobilization to project sites;

E. Agreement to perform the entire Scope of Repair identified by the WVDO, including all change
orders, for the cost identified by the standardized tool, all in accordance with all applicable state
and federal requirements as required by Section II, CONTRACTOR REQUIREMENTS, D; and

F. Pricing Proposal including the completed Attachment 1.

STEP II: Proposals which satisfy the requirements of Step I will be reviewed to determine the
adequacy of the response to WVDO’s specifications. Factors to be considered are as follows:

A. The overall quality of the proposed plan for performing the required service in a timely manner
as prioritized under the Programs (Critical);

B. Understanding of the project and its objectives (Very Important);



C. The degree of completeness of response to the specific requirements of the solicitation (Very
Important);

D. Respondent’s ability to provide the required services as reflected/evidenced by qualifications
(Very Important);

E. Logistical and staffing plans which demonstrate that personnel, equipment and resources to
perform the services are currently available or can be demonstrated to be made available following
contract award (Critical);

F. A record of past performance of similar work. Similar work should reflect construction and
maintenance expertise (Very Important);

G. Agreement to perform the entire Scope of Work identified by the WVDO, including all change
orders, for the cost identified by the standardized tool as required by Section I, CONTRACTOR
REQUIREMENTS, D (Important); and,

H. Pricing Proposal (Critical).

Factors will be evaluated based on the following weighted scale:
1. Important 15 points

2. Very Important 20 points

3. Critical 25 points

STEP III: WVDO will contact those Respondent(s) whose proposal(s) best address the
specifications. Each of the Respondents may be required to meet with the selection team at a
specified time. The proposals will be subject to an in depth review by the selection team. WVDO
will contact the Respondent(s) which best meet(s) the WVDO’s requirements as outlined in Step II
and will attempt to negotiate an agreement acceptable to both parties.

IV. SPECIAL PROVISIONS

As explained above, the Programs are funded by a CDBG-DR grant from HUD and administered
by the State. By submitting a proposal to this RFP and in the event Respondent is awarded a
contract pursuant to its proposal submitted, Respondent understands and expressly agrees that it
will be bound by the applicable requirements set forth in the Appendices attached to this RFP and
identified in this Section V as well as those requirements expressly included in any contract issued
pursuant to this RFP. Accordingly, Attachment 3 (CDBG-DR Rider) and Attachment 4 (the
Uniform Federal Contract Provisions Rider) and any Exhibits included therein, which includes



various federal regulations are incorporated into this RFP in their entirety, and made an integral
part hereof.

-END of RFP--
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C. Authority

Section 3507 of the Paperwork
Reduction Act of 1995, 44 U.S.C.
Chapter 35.

Dated: November 10, 2016.
Colette Pollard,
Department Reports Management Officer,
Office of the Chief Information Officer.
[FR Doc. 2016-27909 Filed 11-18-16; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 4210-67-P

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND
URBAN DEVELOPMENT

[Docket No. FR-5989-N-01]

Allocations, Common Application,
Waivers, and Alternative Requirements
for Community Development Block
Grant Disaster Recovery Grantees

AGENCY: Office of the Assistant
Secretary for Community Planning and
Development, HUD.

ACTION: Notice.

SUMMARY: This notice allocates $500
million in Community Development
Block Grant disaster recovery (CDBG—
DR} funds appropriated by the
Continuing Appropriations Act, 2017
for the purpose of assisting long-term
recovery in Louisiana, Texas and West
Virginia. This notice describes
applicable waivers and alternative
requirements, relevant statutory
provisions for grants provided under
this notice, the grant award process,
criteria for plan approval, and eligible
disaster recovery activities. Given the
extent of damage to housing in the
largest eligible disaster and the very
limited data at present on unmet
infrastructure and economic
revitalization needs, this notice requires
each grantee to primarily consider and
address its unmet housing recovery
needs.

DATES: Effective Date: November 28,
2016.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT:
Jessie Handforth Kome, Acting Director,
Office of Block Grant Assistance,
Department of Housing and Urban
Development, 451 7th Street SW., Room
7286, Washington, DC 20410, telephone
number 202-708-3587. Persons with
hearing or speech impairments may
access this number via TTY by calling
the Federal Relay Service at 800-877—
8339. Facsimile inquiries may be sent to
Ms. Kome at 202—401-2044. (Except for
the””800” number, these telephone
numbers are not toll-free.). Email
inquiries may be sent to disaster_
recovery@hud.gov.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:

Table of Contents

I. Allocations
II. Use of Funds
IIl. Management and Oversight of Funds
IV. Authority To Grant Waivers
V. Overview of Grant Process
VI. Applicable Rules, Statutes, Waivers, and
Alternative Requirements
A. Grant Administration
B. Housing and Related Floodplain Issues
C. Infrastructure
D. Economic Revitalization
E. Certifications and Collection of
Information
VIL Duration of Funding
VIII, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance
IX. Finding of No Significant Impact
Appendix A: Allocation Methodology

I. Allocations

Section 145 of the Continuing
Appropriations Act, 2017 (Pub. L. 114—
223, approved September 29, 2016)
(Appropriations Act) makes available
$500 million in Community
Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds
for necessary expenses for activities
authorized under title I of the Housing
and Community Development Act of
1974 (42 U.S.C. 5301 et seq.) related to

disaster relief, long-term recovery,
restoration of infrastructure and
housing, and economic revitalization in
the most impacted and distressed areas
resulting from a major disaster declared
in 2016 and occurring prior to
enactment of the Appropriations Act,
pursuant to the Robert T. Stafford
Disaster Relief and Emergency
Assistance Act of 1974 (42 U.S.C. 5121
et seq.} (Stafford Act). Given the extent
of damage to housing in the largest
eligible disaster and the very limited
data at present on unmet infrastructure
and economic revitalization needs, HUD
is requiring each grantee to primarily
consider and address its unmet housing
recovery needs. This notice allows
grantees to allocate funds to address
unmet economic revitalization and
infrastructure needs, but in doing so, the
grantee must identify how unmet
housing needs will be addressed or how
its economic revitalization or
infrastructure activities will contribute
to the long-term recovery and
restoration of housing in the most
impacted and distressed areas. The law
provides that grants shall be awarded
directly to a State or unit of general
local government at the discretion of the
Secretary. The Secretary has elected to
award funds only to States in this
allocation. Unless noted otherwise, the
term “grantee’ refers to the State
receiving a direct award from HUD
under this notice. To comply with
statutory direction that funds be used
for disaster-related expenses in the most
impacted and distressed areas, HUD
allocates funds using the best available
data that cover all of the eligible affected
areas.

Based on a review of the impacts from
these disasters, and estimates of unmet
need, HUD is making the following
allocations:

TABLE 1—ALLOCATIONS UNDER PUBLIC LAw 114-223

Minimum amount that must be expended for re-
Disaster No. State Grantee Allocation covery in the HUD-identified “most impacted”
areas

4277, 4263, 4272 ............ Louisiana ........ State of Louisiana .......... $437,800,000 | ($350,240,000) East Baton Rouge, Livingston, As-
cension, Tangipahoa, Ouachita, Lafayette (Par-
ishes).

4269, 4266 ..........cocennrnnee Texas ... State of Texas .............. 45,200,000 | ($36,160,000) Harris, Newton, Montgomery (Coun-
ties).

4273 o West Virginia State of West Virginia .... 17,000,000 | ($13,600,000) Kanawha, Greenbrier (Counties).

TOMAl eeveverererecreienieies | rvvernieccrssmsenins | e, 500,000,000

Table 1 also shows the HUD-
identified ““most impacted and
distressed” areas impacted by the
disasters that did not receive a direct

award. At least 80 percent of the total
funds provided within each State under
this notice must address unmet needs
within the HUD-identified “most

impacted and distressed” areas, as
identified in the last column in Table 1.
Grantees may determine where the
remaining 20 percent may be spent by
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identifying areas it determines to be
‘“‘most impacted and distressed.” A
detailed explanation of HUD’s
allocation methodology is provided at
Appendix A.

ach grantee receiving an allocation
under this notice must submit an action
plan for disaster recovery, or “action
plan,” no later than 90 days after the
effective date of this notice. HUD will
only approve action plans that meet the
specific requirements identified in this
notice under section VI, “Applicable
Rules, Statutes, Waivers, and
Alternative Requirements.”

IL. Use of Funds

The Appropriations Act requires that
prior to the obligation of CDBG-DR
funds a grantee shall submit a plan
detailing the proposed use of all funds,
including criteria for eligibility, and
how the use of these funds will address
long-term recovery and restoration of
infrastructure and housing and
economic revitalization in the most
impacted and distressed areas. This
action plan for disaster recovery must
describe uses and activities that: (1) Are
authorized under title I of the Housing
and Community Development Act of
1974 (HCD Act) or allowed by a waiver
or alternative requirement published in
this notice; and (2) respond to disaster-
related impact to infrastructure,
housing, and economic revitalization in
the most impacted and distressed areas.
To inform the plan, grantees must
conduct an assessment of community
impacts and unmet needs to guide the
development and prioritization of
planned recovery activities, pursuant to
paragraph A.2.a. in section VI below.

In accordance with the HCD Act,
funds may be used to meet a matching,
share, or contribution requirement for
any other Federal program when used to
carry out an eligible CDBG-DR activity.
This includes programs or activities
administered by the Federal Emergency
Management Agency (FEMA) and the
U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE),
among other Federal sources. CDBG-DR
funds, however, may not be used for
activities reimbursable by or for which
funds are made available by FEMA or
USACE.

This notice also requires each grantee
to expend 100 percent of its allocation
of CDBG-DR funds on eligible activities
within 6 years of HUD’s execution of the
grant agreement.

III. Management and Oversight of
Funds

The Appropriations Act requires the
Secretary to certify, in advance of
signing a grant agreement, that the
grantee has in place proficient financial

controls and procurement processes and
has established adequate procedures to
prevent any duplication of benefits as
defined by section 312 of the Stafford
Act, ensure timely expenditure of funds,
maintain comprehensive Web sites
regarding all disaster recovery activities
assisted with these funds, and detect
and prevent waste, fraud, and abuse of
funds. To provide a basis for the
certification, each grantee must submit
documentation to the Department
demonstrating its compliance with the
above requirements. For a complete list
of the required certification
documentation, see paragraph A.1.a.
under section VI of this notice. The
certification documentation must be
submitted within 60 days of the
effective date of this notice, or with the
grantee’s submission of its action plan,
whichever is earlier.

In advance of signing a grant
agreement and consistent with 2 CFR
200.205 of the Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards
(Uniform Requirements), HUD will
evaluate each grantee’s capacity to
effectively manage the funds and the
associated risks they pose through a
review of supplemental risk analysis
documentation. This notice requires
each grantee to submit risk analysis
documentation demonstrating that it
can effectively manage the funds, ensure
timely communication of application
status to applicants for disaster recovery
assistance, and that it has adequate
capacity to manage the funds and
address any capacity needs. For a
complete listing of the required risk
analysis documentation, see paragraph
A.1.b. under section VI of this notice.
Documentation applicable to the risk
analysis must be submitted within 60
days of the effective date of this notice,
or with the grantee’s submission of its
action plan, whichever is earlier.

Additionally, this notice requires
grantees to submit to the Department for
approval a projection of expenditures
and outcomes as part of its action plan.
Any subsequent changes, updates or
revision of the projections will require
the grantee to amend its action plan to
reflect the new projections. This will
enable HUD, the public, and the grantee
to track planned versus actual
performance.

Grantees must also enter expected
completion dates for each activity in
HUD’s Disaster Recovery Grant
Reporting (DRGR) system. When target
dates are not met or are extended, a
grantee is required to explain the reason
for the delay in the Quarterly
Performance Report (QPR) activity
narrative. For additional guidance on

DRGR system reporting requirements,
see paragraph A.3 under section VI of
this notice. More information on the
timely expenditure of funds is included
in paragraphs A.24 of section VI of this
notice. Other reporting, procedural, and
monitoring requirements are discussed
under “Grant Administration” in
section VI of this notice.

The grant terms and specific
conditions of the award will reflect
HUD’s risk assessment of the grantee
and will require the grantee to adhere to
the description of its implementation
plan submitted in its certification and
risk analysis documentation. HUD will
also institute an annual risk analysis as
well as on-site monitoring of grantee
management to further guide oversight
of these funds.

IV. Authority To Grant Waivers

The Appropriations Act authorizes
the Secretary to waive or specify
alternative requirements for any
provision of any statute or regulation
that the Secretary administers in
connection with the obligation by the
Secretary, or use by the recipient, of
these funds, except for requirements
related to fair housing,
nondiscrimination, labor standards, and
the environment. Waivers and
alternative requirements are based upon
a determination by the Secretary that
good cause exists and that the waiver or
alternative requirement is not
inconsistent with the overall purposes
of title I of the HCD Act. HUD also has
regulatory waiver authority under 24
CFR 5.110, 91.600, and 570.5. Grantees
may request waivers as described in
section VI of this notice.

V. Overview of Grant Process

To begin expenditure of CDBG-DR
funds, the following expedited steps are
necessary:

¢ Grantee follows citizen
participation plan for disaster recovery
in accordance with the requirements in
paragraph A.4 of section VI of this
notice.

¢ Grantee consults with stakeholders,
including required consultation with
affected local governments and public
housing authorities (as identified in
section VI of this notice).

¢ Within 60 days of the effective date
of this notice (or when the grantee
submits its action plan, whichever is
earlier), the grantee submits certification
documentation providing a basis for the
Secretary’s certification that the grantee
has in place proficient financial controls
and procurement pracesses and has
established adequate procedures to
prevent any duplication of benefits as
defined by section 312 of the Stafford
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The grantee must provide its
procurement process/standards for HUD
review so HUD may evaluate the overall
effect of the grantee’s procurement/
process standards. The grantee’s
provided procurement process/
standards must comply with the
procurement requirements at 24 CFR
570.489(g), as provided in paragraph
A.22 of Section VI of this notice.

(3) Duplication of benefits. A grantee
has adequate procedures to prevent the
duplication of benefits where the
grantee identifies its uniform processes
for each of the following: (a) Verifying
all sources of disaster assistance
received by the grantee or applicant, as
applicable; (b) determining an
applicant’s unmet need(s) before
awarding assistance; and (c) ensuring
beneficiaries agree to repay the
assistance if they later receive other
disaster assistance for the same purpose.
Grantee procedures shall provide that
prior to the award of assistance, the
grantee will use the best, most recent
available data from FEMA, the Small
Business Administration (SBA),
insurers, and other sources of funding to
prevent the duplication of benefits.
Departmental guidance to assist in
preventing a duplication of benefits is
provided in a notice published in the
Federal Register at 76 FR 71060
(November 16, 2011), in HUD Guidance
on Duplication of Benefits Requirements
and Provision of CDBG Disaster
Recovery (DR) Assistance, as amended,
(https://www.hudexchange.info/
resource/3137/cdbg-dr-duplication-of-
benefit-requirements-and-provision-of-
assistance-with-sba-funds/) and in
paragraph A.21 of section VI of this
notice.

{4) Timely expenditures. A grantee
has adequate procedures to determine
timely expenditures if it indicates to
HUD how the grantee will track
expenditures each month, how it will
monitor expenditures of its recipients
and subrecipients, how it will
reprogram funds in a timely manner for
activities that are stalled, and how it
will project expenditures to provide for
the expenditure of all CDBG-DR funds
within the period provided for in
paragraph A.24 of section VI of this
notice.

(5) Comprehensive disaster recovery
Web site. A grantee has adequate
procedures to maintain a
comprehensive Web site regarding all
disaster recovery activities if its
procedures indicate that the grantee will
have a separate page dedicated to its
disaster recovery that includes the
information described at paragraph A.23
of section VI of this notice. The
procedures should also indicate the

frequency of Web site updates. At
minimum, grantees must update their
Web site quarterly.

(6) Procedures to detect fraud, waste
and abuse. A grantee has adequate
procedures to detect fraud, waste and
abuse if its procedures indicate how the
grantee will verify the accuracy of
information provided by applicants; if it
provides a monitoring policy indicating
how and why monitoring is conducted,
the frequency of monitoring, and which
items are monitored; and if it
demonstrates that it has an internal
auditor and includes a document signed
by the internal auditor that describes his
or her role in detecting fraud, waste, and
abuse.

b. Evaluation of Risk and
Management Capacity. Before signing a
grant agreement, HUD is requiring each
grantee to demonstrate that it has
sufficient capacity to manage these
funds and the associated risks.

Evidence of grantee management
capacity will be provided through the
grantee’s risk analysis documentation
which must be submitted within 60
days of the effective date of this notice
or with the grantee’s submission of its
action plan, whichever date is earlier.
The grantee must certify to the accuracy
of its risk analysis documentation
submissions as required by paragraph
E.47 in section VI of this notice. A
grantee has sufficient management
capacity if each of the following criteria
is satisfied:

(1) Timely information on application
status. A grantee has adequate
procedures to inform applicants of the
status of their applications for recovery
assistance, at all phases, if its
procedures indicate methods for
communication (i.e., Web site,
telephone, case managers, letters, etc.),
ensure the accessibility and privacy of
individualized information for all
applicants, indicate the frequency of
applicant status updates and identify
which personnel or unit is responsible.

(2) Preaward Implementation Plan. To
enable HUD to assess risk as described
in 2 CFR 200.205(c), the grantee will
submit an implementation plan to the
Department. The plan must describe the
grantee’s capacity to carry out the
recovery and how it will address any
capacity gaps. HUD will determine a
plan is adequate to reduce risk if, at a
minimum it addresses:

a. Capacity Assessment. The grantee
has conducted an assessment of its
capacity to carry out recovery efforts,
and has developed a timeline with
milestones describing when and how
the grantee will address all capacity
gaps that are identified.

b. Staffing. The plan shows that the
grantee has assessed staff capacity and
identified personnel for the purpose of
case management in proportion to the
applicant population; program managers
who will be assigned responsibility for
each primary recovery area (i.e.,
housing, economic revitalization, and
infrastructure, as applicable); and staff
responsible for procurement/contract
management, environmental
compliance, as well as staff responsible
for monitoring and quality assurance,
and financial management. An adequate
plan will also provide for an internal
audit function with responsible audit
staff reporting independently to the
chief elected or executive officer or
board of the governing body of any
designated administering entity.

c. Internal and Interagency
Coordination. The grantee’s plan
describes how it will ensure effective
communication between different
departments and divisions within the
grantee’s organizational structure that
are involved in CDBG-DR—funded
recovery efforts; between its lead agency
and subrecipients responsible for
implementing the grantee’s action plan;
and with other local and regional
planning efforts to ensure consistency.

d. Technical Assistance. The grantee’s
implementation plan describes how it
will procure and provide technical
assistance for any personnel that the
grantee does not employ at the time of
action plan submission, and to fill gaps
in knowledge or technical expertise
required for successful and timely
recovery implementation where
identified in the capacity assessment.

e. Accountability. The grantee’s plan
identifies the principal lead agency
responsible for implementation of the
State’s CDBG-DR award and indicates
that the head of that agency will report
directly to the Governor of the State.

2. Action Plan for Disaster Recovery
waiver and alternative requirement.
Requirements for CDBG actions plans,
located at 42 U.S.C. 12705(a)(2), 42
U.S.C. 5304(a)(1), 42 U.S.C. 5304(m), 42
U.S.C. 5306(d)(2)(C)(iii), and 24 CFR
91.320, are waived for these disaster
recovery grants. Instead, grantees must
submit to HUD an action plan for
disaster recovery which will describe
disaster recovery programs that conform
to applicable requirements as specified
in this notice. During the course of the
grant, HUD will monitor the grantee’s
actions and use of funds for consistency
with the plan, as well as meeting the
performance and timeliness objectives
therein. The Secretary may disapprove
an action plan as substantially
incomplete if it is determined that the
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plan does not satisfy all of the required
elements identified in this notice.

a. Action Plan. The action plan must
identify the proposed use of all funds,
including criteria for eligibility, and
how the uses address long-term
recovery needs. Funds dedicated for
uses not described in accordance with
paragraphs b. or c. under this section
will not be obligated until the grantee
submits, and HUD approves, an action
plan amendment programming the use
of those funds, at the necessary level of
detail.

The action plan must contain:

1. An impact and unmet needs
assessment. Each grantee must develop
a needs assessment to understand the
type and location of community needs
and to target limited resources to those
areas with the greatest need. Grantees
receiving an award under this notice
must conduct a needs assessment to
inform the allocation of CDBG-DR
resources. At a minimum, the needs
assessment must:

¢ Evaluate all aspects of recovery
including housing (interim and
permanent, owner and rental, single-
family and multifamily, affordable and
market rate, and housing to meet the
needs of persons who were homeless
pre-disaster), infrastructure, and
economic revitalization;

¢ Account for the various forms of
assistance available to, or likely to be
available to, affected communities (e.g.,
projected FEMA funds) and individuals
(e.g., estimated insurance) to ensure
CDBG-DR funds meet needs that are not
likely to be addressed by other sources
of funds;

¢ Assess whether public services
(e.g., housing counseling, legal
counseling, job training, mental health,
and general health services) are
necessary to complement activities
intended to address housing,
infrastructure and economic
revitalization;

¢ Use the most recent available data
(cite data sources) to inform the action
plan, particularly with regard to
estimating the portion of need likely to
be addressed by insurance proceeds,
other Federal assistance, or any other
funding sources (thus producing an
estimate of unmet need);

¢ Describe impacts geographically by
type at the lowest level practicable (e.g.,
county level or lower if available for
States, and neighborhood or census tract
level for cities); and

¢ Take into account the costs of
incorporating mitigation and resilience
measures to protect against future
hazards, including the anticipated
effects of climate change on those
hazards.

CDBG-DR funds may be used to
reimburse costs for developing the
action plan, including the needs
assessment, environmental review, and
citizen participation requirements. HUD
has developed a Disaster Impact and
Unmet Needs Assessment Kit to guide
CDBG-DR grantees through a process
for identifying and prioritizing critical
unmet needs for long-term community
recovery, and it is available on the HUD
Exchange Web site at https://www.hud
exchange.info/resources/documents/
Disaster_Recovery_Disaster Impact_
Needs_Assessment_Kit.pdf.

Disaster recovery needs evolve over
time and the needs assessment and
action plan are expected to be amended
as conditions change and additional
needs are identified.

2. A description of the connection
between identified unmet needs and the
allocation of CDBG-DR resources.
Grantees must propose an allocation of
CDBG-DR funds that primarily
considers and addresses unmet housing
needs. Grantees may also allocate funds
for economic revitalization and
infrastructure activities, but in doing so,
must identify how any remaining unmet
housing needs will be addressed or how
its economic revitalization and
infrastructure activities will contribute
to the long-term recovery and
restoration of housing in the most
impacted and distressed areas. Grantee
action plans may provide for the
allocation of funds for administration
and planning activities and for public
service activities, subject to the caps on
such activities as described below.

3. Each grantee must include a
description of how it will identify and
address the rehabilitation (as defined at
24 CFR 570.202), reconstruction,
replacement, and new construction of
housing and shelters in the areas
affected by the disaster. This includes
any rental housing that is affordable to
low or moderate income households (as
defined by the grantee as provided in
B.31 of section VI of this notice); public
housing (including administrative
offices); emergency shelters and housing
for the homeless; private market units
receiving project-based assistance or
with tenants that participate in the
Section 8 Housing Choice Voucher
Program; and any other housing that is
assisted under a HUD program.

4. A description of how the grantee’s
programs will promote housing for
vulnerable populations, including a
description of activities it plans to
address: (a) The transitional housing,
permanent supportive housing, and
permanent housing needs of individuals
and families (including subpopulations)
that are homeless and at-risk of

homelessness; (b) the prevention of low-
income individuals and families with
children (especially those with incomes
below 30 percent of the area median)
from becoming homeless; and (c) the
special needs of persons who are not
homeless but require supportive
housing (e.g., elderly, persons with
disabilities, persons with alcohol or
other drug addiction, persons with HIV/
AIDS and their families, and public
housing residents, as identified in 24
CFR 91.315(e)). Grantees are reminded
that the use of recovery funds must meet
accessibility standards, provide
reasonable accommodations to persons
with disabilities, and take into
consideration the functional needs of
persons with disabilities in the
relocation process. A checklist of
relocation considerations for persons
with disabilities may be found in
Chapter 3 of HUD's Relocation
Handbook 1378.0. Grantees must also
assess how planning decisions may
affect racial, ethnic, and low-income
concentrations, and ways to promote the
availability of affordable housing in
low-poverty, nonminority areas where
appropriate and in response to natural
hazard-related impacts.

5. A description of how the grantee
plans to minimize displacement of
persons or entities, and assist any
persons or entities displaced.

6. A description of the maximum
amount of assistance available to a
beneficiary under each of the grantee’s
disaster recovery programs. A grantee
may find it necessary to provide
exceptions on a case-by-case basis to the
maximum amount of assistance and
must describe the process it will use to
make such exceptions in its action plan.
At minimum, each grantee must adopt
policies and procedures that
communicate how it will analyze the
circumstances under which an
exception is needed and how it will
demonstrate that the amount of
assistance is necessary and reasonable.

7. A description of how the grantee
plans to: (a) Adhere to the advanced
elevation requirements established in
paragraph B.28 of section VI of this
notice; (b) promote sound, sustainable
long-term recovery planning informed
by a post-disaster evaluation of hazard
risk, especially land-use decisions that
reflect responsible flood plain
management and take into account
continued sea level rise, if applicable;
and (c) coordinate with other local and
regional planning efforts to ensure
consistency. This information should be
based on the history of FEMA flood
mitigation efforts, and take into account
projected increase in sea level (if
applicable) and frequency and intensity
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of precipitation events, which are not
considered in current FEMA maps and
National Flood Insurance Program
premiums.

Additionally, a grantee proposing an
allocation of grant funds for
infrastructure must include a
description of how the proposed
infrastructure activities will advance
long-term resilience to natural hazards
and how the grantee intends to align
these investments with other planned
state or local capital improvements.
Grantees should describe how
preparedness and mitigation measures
will be integrated into rebuilding
activities and how the grantee will
promote community-level and/or
regional (e.g. multiple local
jurisdictions) post-disaster recovery and
mitigation planning.

The action plan must provide for the
use of CDBG-DR funds to develop a
disaster recovery and response plan that
addresses long-term recovery and pre-
and post-disaster hazard mitigation, if
one does not currently exist.

8. A description of ﬁow the grantee
will leverage CDBG-DR funds with
funding provided by other Federal,
State, local, private, and nonprofit
sources to generate a more effective and
comprehensive recovery. Examples of
other Federal sources are those provided
by HUD, FEMA (specifically the Public
Assistance Program, Individual
Assistance Program, and Hazard
Mitigation Grant Program), SBA
(specifically the Disaster Loans
program)}, Economic Development
Administration, USACE, and the U.S.
Department of Agriculture. The grantee
should seek to maximize the number of
activities and the degree to which CDBG
funds are leveraged. Grantees shall
identify leveraged funds for each
activity, as applicable, in the DRGR
system.

9. A description of how the grantee
will: (a) Design and implement
programs or activities with the goal of
protecting people and property from
harm; (b} emphasize high quality,
durability, energy efficiency,
sustainability, and mold resistance; (c)
support adoption and enforcement of
modern building codes and mitigation
of hazard risk, including possible sea
level rise, high winds, storm surge, and
flooding, where appropriate; and (d)
implement and ensure compliance with
the Green Building standards required
in paragraph B.28 of section VI of this
notice. All rehabilitation,
reconstruction, and new construction
should be designed to incorporate
principles of sustainability, including
water and energy efficiency, resilience,
and mitigating the impact of future

disasters. Whenever feasible, grantees
should follow best practices such as
those provided by the U.S. Department
of Energy’s Guidelines for Home Energy
Professionals—Professional
Certifications and Standard Work
Specifications. HUD also encourages
grantees to implement green
infrastructure policies to the extent
practicable. Additional tools for green
infrastructure are available at the
Environmental Protection Agency’s Web
site https://www.epa.gov/green-
infrastructure; the Indoor AirPlus Web
site https://www.epa.gov/indoorairplus;
the Healthy Indoor Environment
Protocols for Home Energy Upgrades
Web site https://www.epa.gov/sites/
production/files/2014-12/documents/
epa_retrofit_protocols.pdf; and the
ENERGY STAR Web site www.epa.gov/
greenbuilding.

10. A description of the standards to
be established for construction
contractors performing work in the
jurisdiction and a mechanism for
homeowners and small business owners
to appeal rehabilitation contractor work.
HUD strongly encourages the grantee to
require a warranty period post-
construction, with formal notification to
homeowners on a periodic basis (e.g., 6
months and one month prior to
expiration date of the warranty).

11. A description of how the grantee
will manage program income, and the
purpose(s) for which it may be used.
Waivers and alternative requirements
related to program income can be found
in this notice at paragraph A.17 of
section VL.

12. A description of monitoring
standards and procedures that are
sufficient to ensure program
requirements, including an analysis for
duplication of benefits, are met and that
provide for continual quality assurance
and adequate program oversight.

b. Meg'xod of Distribution. The action
plan shall describe the method of
distribution of funds to units of general
local government (UGLG) and/or
descriptions of specific programs or
activities the State will carry out
directly. The description must include:

1. How the needs assessment
informed allocation determinations,
including the rationale behind the
decision(s) to provide funds to State-
identified “most impacted and
distressed” areas that were not defined
by HUD as being “most impacted and
distressed,” if applicable.

2. The threshold factors and grant size
limits that are to be applied.

3. The projected uses for the CDBG—
DR funds, by responsible entity,
activity, and geographic area, when the
State carries out an activity directly.

4. For each proposed program and/or
activity carried out directly, its
respective CDBG activity eligibility
category (or categories) as well as
national objective(s}.

5. How the method of distribution to
local governments or programs/
activities carried out directly will result
in long-term recovery from specific
impacts of the disaster.

6. When funds are allocated to
UGLGs, all criteria used to distribute
funds to local governments including
the relative importance of each
criterion.

7. When applications are solicited for
programs carried out directly, all criteria
used to select applications for funding,
including the relative importance of
each criterion.

c. Clarification of disaster-related
activities. All CDBG-DR funded
activities must clearly address an
impact of the disaster for which funding
was allocated. Given standard CDBG
requirements, this means each activity
must: (1) Be a CDBG-eligible activity (or
be eligible under a waiver or alternative
requirement in this notice); (2} meet a
national objective; and (3) address a
direct or indirect impact from the
disaster in a Presidentially-declared
county. A disaster-related impact can be
addressed through any eligible CDBG—
DR activity. Additional details on
disaster-related activities are provided
under section VI, parts B through D.
Additionally, HUD has developed a
series of CDBG-DR toolkits that guide
grantees through specific grant
implementation activities. These can be
found on the HUD Exchange Web site at
https://www.hudexchange.info/
programs/cdbg-dr/toolkits/.

1. Housing. Typical housing activities
include new construction and
rehabilitation of single-family or
multifamily units. Most often, grantees
use CDBG-DR funds to rehabilitate
damaged homes and rental units.
However, grantees may also fund new
construction (see paragraph B.28 of
section VI of this notice) or rehabilitate
units not damaged by the disaster if the
activity clearly addresses a disaster-
related impact and is located in a
disaster-affected area. This impact can
be demonstrated by the disaster’s
overall effect on the quality, quantity,
and affordability of the housing stock
and the resulting inability of that stock
to meet post-disaster needs and
population demands.

a. Prohibition on forced morigage
payoff. In some instances, homeowners
with an outstanding mortgage balance
are required, under the terms of their
loan agreement, to repay the balance of
the mortgage loan prior to using
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assistance to rehabilitate or reconstruct
their homes. CDBG-DR funds, however,
may not be used for a forced mortgage
payoff. The ineligibility of a forced
mortgage payoff with CDBG-DR funds
does not affect HUD's longstanding
guidance that when other non-CDBG
disaster assistance is taken by lenders
for a forced mortgage payoff, those
funds are not considered to be available
to the homeowner and do not constitute
a duplication of benefits for the purpose
of housing rehabilitation or
reconstruction.

b. Housing Counseling Services.
Grantees are encouraged to coordinate
with HUD-approved housing counseling
services to ensure that information and
services are made available to both
renters and homeowners. Additional
information is available for Louisiana at:
http://www.hud.gov/offices/hsg/sfh/
hcc/hes.cfm?&webListAction=search
&searchstate=LA, for Texas at: http://
www.hud.gov/offices/hsg/sfh/hcc/
hes.cfm?webListAction=search&search
state=TX, and for West Virginia at:
http://www.hud.gov/offices/hsg/sfh/
hcc/hes.cfm?webListAction=search
&searchstate=WV.

2. Economic Revitalization. For
CDBG-DR purposes, economic
revitalization may include any CDBG-
DR eligible activity that demonstrably
restores and improves some aspect of
the local economy. The activity may
address job losses, or negative impacts
to tax revenues or businesses. Examples
of eligible activities include providing
loans and grants to businesses, funding
job training, making improvements to
commercial/retail districts, and
financing other efforts that attract/retain
workers in devastated communities.

All economic revitalization activities
must address an economic impact(s})
caused by the disaster (e.g., loss of jobs,
loss of public revenue). Through its
needs assessment and action plan, the
grantee must clearly identify the
economic loss or need resulting from
the disaster, and how the proposed
activities will address that loss or need.
In proposing an allocation of CDBG-DR
funds for economic revitalization under
this notice, a grantee must identify how
any remaining unmet housing needs
will be addressed or how its economic
revitalization activities will contribute
to the long-term recovery and
restoration of housing in the most
impacted and distressed areas.

3. Infrastructure. Typical
infrastructure activities include the
repair, replacement, or relocation of
damaged public facilities and
improvements including, but not
limited to, bridges, water treatment
facilities, roads, and sewer and water

lines. In proposing an allocation of
CDBG-DR funds under this notice for
infrastructure, a grantee must identify
how any remaining unmet housing
needs will be addressed or how its
infrastructure activities will contribute
to the long-term recovery and
restoration of housing in the most
impacted and distressed areas.

Grantees that use CDBG-DR funds to
assist flood control structures (i.e., dams
and levees) are prohibited from using
CDBG-DR funds to enlarge a dam or
levee beyond the original footprint of
the structure that existed prior to the
disaster event. Grantees that use CDBG~
DR funds for levees and dams are
required to: (1) Register and maintain
entries regarding such structures with
the U.S. Army Corps of Engineers
National Levee Database or National
Inventory of Dams; (2) ensure that the
structure is admitted in the U.S. Army
Corps of Engineers PL 84—99 Program
(Levee Rehabilitation and Improvement
Program); (3) ensure the structure is
accredited under the FEMA National
Flood Insurance Program; (4) upload
into DRGR the exact location of the
structure and the area served and
protected by the structure; and (5)
maintain file documentation
demonstrating that the grantee has both
conducted a risk assessment prior to
funding the flood control structure and
that the investment includes risk
reduction measures.

4. Preparedness and Mitigation. The
Appropriations Act states that funds
shall be used for recovering from a
Presidentially declared major disaster
and all assisted activities must respond
to the impacts of the declared disaster.
HUD encourages grantees to incorporate
preparedness and mitigation measures
into the aforementioned rebuilding
activities, to rebuild communities that
are more resilient to future disasters.
Mitigation measures that are not
incorporated into those rebuilding
activities must be a necessary expense
related to disaster relief or long-term
recovery that responds to the eligible
disaster. Furthermore, the costs
associated with these measures may not
prevent the grantee from meeting unmet
needs.

5. Connection to the Disaster.
Grantees must maintain records about
each activity funded, as described in
paragraph A.14 of section VI of this
notice. In regard to physical losses,
damage or rebuilding estimates are often
the most effective tools for
demonstrating the connection to the
disaster. For housing market, economic,
and/or nonphysical losses, post-disaster
analyses or assessments may best

document the relationship between the
loss and the disaster.

d. Clarity of Action Plan. All grantees
must include sufficient information so
that all interested parties will be able to
understand and comment on the action
plan and, if applicable, be able to
prepare responsive applications to the
grantee. The action plan (and
subsequent amendments) must include
a single chart or table that illustrates, at
the most practical level, how all funds
are budgeted (e.g., by program,
subrecipient, grantee-administered
activity, or other category).

e. Review and Approval of Action
Plan. For funds provided under the
Appropriations Act, the action plan
must be submitted to HUD (including
SF—424 and certifications) within 90
days of the date of the effective date this
notice. HUD will review each action
plan within 60 days from the date of
receipt. The Secretary may disapprove
an action plan as substantially
incomplete if it is determined that the
action plan does not meet the
requirements of this notice.

. Obligation and expenditure of
funds. Once HUD approves the action
plan, it will then issue a grant
agreement obligating all funds to the
grantee. In addition, HUD will establish
the line of credit and the grantee will
receive DRGR system access (if it does
not already have DRGR system access).
The grantee must also enter its action
plan activities into the DRGR system in
order to draw funds for those activities.
Each activity must meet the applicable
environmental requirements prior to the
use of funds. After the Responsible
Entity (usually the grantee) completes
environmental review(s) pursuant to 24
CFR part 58 (as applicable) or as
authorized by the Appropriations Act
and receives from HUD or the State an
approved Request for Release of Funds
and certification (as applicable), the
grantee may draw down funds from the
line of credit for an activity. The
disbursement of grant funds must begin
no later than 180 days after the effective
date of this notice.

g. Amending the Action Plan. The
grantee must amend its action plan to
update its needs assessment, modify or
create new activities, or reprogram
funds, as necessary. Each amendment
must be highlighted, or otherwise
identified, within the context of the
entire action plan. The beginning of
every action plan amendment must
include a: (1) Section that identifies
exactly what content is being added,
deleted, or changed; (2) chart or table
that clearly illustrates where funds are
coming from and where they are moving
to; and (3) revised budget allocation
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table that reflects the entirety of all
funds, as amended. A grantee’s current
version of its entire action plan must be
accessible for viewing as a single
document at any given point in time,
rather than the public or HUD having to
view and cross-reference changes among
multiple amendments.

h. !gojection of expenditures and
outcomes. Each grantee must amend its
published action plan to project
expenditures and outcomes within 80
days of action plan approval. The
projections must be based on each
quarter’s expected performance—
beginning with the quarter funds are
available to the grantee and continuing
each quarter until all funds are
expended. The projections will enable
HUD, the public, and the grantee to
track proposed versus actual
performance. The published action plan
must be amended for any subsequent
changes, updates or revision of the
projections. Guidance on the
preparation of projection is available on
the HUD Web site.

3. HUD performance review
authorities and grantee reporting
requirements in the Disaster Recovery
Grant Reporting (DRGR) System.

a. Perfgrmance review authorities. 42
U.S.C. 5304(e) requires that the
Secretary shall, at least on an annual
basis, make such reviews and audits as
may be necessary or appropriate to
determine whether the grantee has
carried out its activities in a timely
manner, whether the grantee’s activities
and certifications are carried out in
accordance with the requirements and
the primary objectives of the HCD Act
and other applicable laws, and whether
the grantee has the continuing capacity
to carry out those activities in a timely
manner.

This notice waives the requirements
for submission of a performance report
pursuant to 42 U.S.C. 12708 and 24 CFR
91.520. Alternatively, HUD is requiring
that grantees enter information in the
DRGR system in sufficient detail to
permit the Department’s review of
grantee performance on a quarterly basis
through the Quarterly Performance
Report (QPR) and to enable remote
review of grantee data to allow HUD to
assess compliance and risk. HUD-issued
general and appropriation-specific
guidance for DRGR reporting
requirements can be found on the HUD
exchange at https://www.hud
exchange.info/| programs/dr%r/ .

b. DRGR Action Plan. Each grantee
must enter its action plan for disaster
recovery, including performance
measures, into HUD’s DRGR system. As
more detailed information about uses of
funds is identified by the grantee, it

must be entered into the DRGR system
at a level of detail that is sufficient to
serve as the basis for acceptable
performance reports and permit HUD
review of compliance requirements.

The action plan must also be entered
into the DRGR system so that the
grantee is able to draw its CDBG-DR
funds. The grantee may enter activities
into the DRGR system before or after
submission of the action plan to HUD.
To enter an activity into the DRGR
system, the grantee must know the
activity type, national objective, and the
organization that will be responsible for
the activity.

All funcK; programmed or budgeted at
a general level in the DRGR system will
be restricted from access on the
grantee’s line of credit. Grantees must
describe activities in DRGR at the
necessary level of detail in order for
HUD to release funds and make them
available for use by the grantee.

Each activity entered into the DRGR
system must also be categorized under
a “‘project.” Typically, projects are
based on groups of activities that
accomplish a similar, broad purpose
(e.g., housing, infrastructure, or
economic revitalization) or are based on
an area of service (e.g.,, Community A).
If a grantee describes just one program
within a broader category (e.g., single
family rehabilitation), that program is
entered as a project in the DRGR system.
Further, the budget of the program
would be identified as the project’s
budget. If a State grantee has only
identified the Method of Distribution
(MOD) upon HUD’s approval of the
published action plan, the MOD itself
typically serves as the projects in the
DRGR system, rather than activity
groupings. Activities are added to MOD
projects as subrecipients decide which
specific CDBG-DR programs and
projects will be funded.

c. Tracking oversight activities in the
DRGR system; use of DRGR data for
HUD review and dissemination. Each
grantee must also enter into the DRGR
system summary information on
monitoring visits and reports, audits,
and technical assistance it conducts as
part of its oversight of its disaster
recovery programs. The grantee’s QPR
will include a summary indicating the
number of grantee oversight visits and
reports (see subparagraph e for more
information on the QPR). HUD will use
data entered into the DRGR action plan
and the QPR, transactional data from the
DRGR system, and other information
provided by the grantee, to provide
reports to Congress and the public, as
well as to: (1) Monitor for anomalies or
performance problems that suggest
fraud, abuse of funds, and duplication

of benefits; (2) reconcile budgets,
obligations, funding draws, and
expenditures; (3) calculate expenditures
to determine compliance with
administrative and public service caps
and the overall percentage of funds that
benefit low- and moderate-income
persons; and (4) analyze the risk of
grantee programs to determine priorities
for the Department’s monitoring. No
personally identifiable information shall
be reported in DRGR.

d. Tracking program income in the
DRGR system. Grantees must use the
DRGR system to draw grant funds for
each activity. Grantees must also use the
DRGR system to track program income
receipts, disbursements, revolving loan
funds, and leveraged funds (if
applicable). If a grantee permits local
governments or subrecipients to retain
program income, the grantee must
establish program income accounts in
the DRGR system. The DRGR system
requires grantees to use program income
before drawing additional grant funds,
and ensures that program income
retained by one organization will not
affect grant draw requests for other
organizations.

e. DRGR system Quarterly
Performance Report (QPR). Each grantee
must submit a QPR through the DRGR
system no later than 30 days following
the end of each calendar quarter. Within
3 days of submission to HUD, each QPR
must be posted on the grantee’s official
Web site. In the event the QPR is
rejected by HUD, the grantee must post
the revised version, as approved by
HUD, within 3 days of HUD approval.
The grantee’s first QPR is due after the
first full calendar year quarter after HUD
enters the grant award into the DRGR
system. For example, a grant award
made in April requires a QPR to be
submitted by October 30. QPRs must be
submitted on a quarterly basis until all
funds have been expended and all
expenditures and accomplishments
have been reported. If a satisfactory
report is not submitted in a timely
manner, HUD may suspend access to
CDBG-DR funds until a satisfactory
report is submitted, or may withdraw
and reallocate funding if HUD
determines, after notice and opportunity
for a hearing, that the jurisdiction did
not submit a satisfactory report.

Each QPR will inclu?; information
about the uses of funds in activities
identified in the DRGR action plan
during the applicable quarter. This
includes, but is not limited to, the
project name, activity, location, and
national objective; funds budgeted,
obligated, drawn down, and expended;
the funding source and total amount of
any non-CDBG-DR funds to be
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expended on each activity; beginning
and actual completion dates of
completed activities; achieved
performance outcomes, such as number
of housing units completed or number
of low- and moderate-income persons
served; and the race and ethnicity of
persons assisted under direct-benefit
activities. For all housing and economic
development activities, the address of
each CDBG-DR assisted property must
be recorded in the QPR. Grantees must
not include such addresses in its public
QPR; when entering addresses in the
QPR, grantees must select “Not Visible
on PDF” to exclude them from the
report required to be posted on its Web
site. The DRGR system will
automatically display the amount of
program income receipted, the amount
of program income reported as
disbursed, and the amount of grant
funds disbursed. Grantees must include
a description of actions taken in that
quarter to affirmatively further fair
housing, within the section titled
“‘Overall Progress Narrative” in the
DRGR system.

4. Citizen participation waiver and
alternative requirement. To permit a
more streamlined process, and ensure
disaster recovery grants are awarded in

a timely manner, provisions of 42 U.S.C.

5304(a)(2) and (3), 42 U.S.C. 12707, 24
CFR 570.486, and 24 CFR 91.115(b) and
(c), with respect to citizen participation
requirements, are waived and replaced
by the requirements below. The
streamlined requirements do not
mandate public hearings but do require
providing a reasonable opportunity (at
least 14 days) for citizen comment and
ongoing citizen access to information
about the use of grant funds. The
streamlined citizen participation
requirements for a grant under this
notice are:

a. Publication of the action plan,
opportunity for public comment, and
substantial amendment criteria. Before
the grantee adopts the action plan for
this grant or any substantial amendment
to the action plan, the grantee will
publish the proposed plan or
amendment. The manner of publication
must include prominent posting on the
grantee’s official Web site and must
afford citizens, affected local
governments, and other interested
parties a reasonable opportunity to
examine the plan or amendment’s
contents. The topic of disaster recovery
should be navigable by citizens from the
grantee (or relevant agency) homepage.
Grantees are also encouraged to notify
affected citizens through electronic
mailings, press releases, statements by
public officials, media advertisements,
public service announcements, and/or

contacts with neighborhood
organizations.

Grantees are responsible for ensuring
that all citizens have equal access to
information about the programs,
including persons with disabilities and
limited English proficiency (LEP). Each
grantee must ensure that program
information is available in the
appropriate languages for the geographic
areas to be served. Since State grantees
under this notice may make grants
throughout the State, including to
entitlement communities, States should
carefully evaluate the needs of disabled
persons and those with limited English
proficiency. For assistance in ensuring
that this information is available to LEP
populations, recipients should consult
the Final Guidance to Federal Financial
Assistance Recipients Regarding Title
VI, Prohibition Against National Origin
Discrimination Affecting Limited
English Proficient Persons, published on
January 22, 2007, in the Federal
Register (72 FR 2732).

Subsequent to publication of the
action plan, the grantee must provide a
reasonable time frame (again, no less
than 14 days) and method(s}) (including
electronic submission) for receiving
comments on the plan or substantial
amendment. In its action plan, each
grantee must specify criteria for
determining what changes in the
grantee’s plan constitute a substantial
amendment to the plan. At a minimum,
the following modifications will
constitute a substantial amendment: A
change in program benefit or eligibility
criteria; the addition or deletion of an
activity; or the allocation or reallocation
of a monetary threshold specified by the
grantee in their action plan. The grantee
may substantially amend the action plan
if it follows the same procedures
required in this notice for the
preparation and submission of an action
plan for disaster recovery.

b. Nonsubstantial amendment. The
grantee must notify HUD, but is not
required to undertake public comment,
when it makes any plan amendment
that is not substantial. HUD must be
notified at least 5 business days before
the amendment becomes effective.
However, every amendment to the
action plan (substantial and
nonsubstantial) must be numbered
sequentially and posted on the grantee’s
Web site. The Department will
acknowledge receipt of the notification
of nonsubstantial amendments via email
within 5 business days.

c. Consideration of public comments.
The grantee must consider all
comments, received orally or in writing,
on the action plan or any substantial
amendment. A summary of these

comments or views, and the grantee’s
response to each must be submitted to
HUD with the action plan or substantial
amendment.

d. Availability and accessibility of the
Action Plan. The grantee must make the
action plan, any substantial
amendments, and all performance
reports available to the public on its
Web site and on request. In addition, the
grantee must make these documents
available in a form accessible to persons
with disabilities and those with limited
English proficiency. During the term of
the grant, the grantee will provide
citizens, affected local governments, and
other interested parties with reasonable
and timely access to information and
records relating to the action plan and
to the grantee’s use of grant funds.

e. Public Web site. HUD is requiring
grantees to maintain a public Web site
that provides information accounting for
how all grant funds are used and
managed/administered, including links
to all action plans, action plan
amendments, performance reports,
citizen participation requirements, and
activity/program information for
activities described in the action plan,
including details of all contracts and
ongoing procurement policies. To meet
this requirement, each grantee must
have a separate page dedicated to its
disaster recovery that includes the
information described at paragraph A.23
of section VI of this notice.

f. Application status. HUD is
requiring grantees to provide multiple
methods of communication, such as
Web sites, toll-free numbers, or other
means that provide applicants for
recovery assistance with timely
information on the status of their
application, as provided for in
paragraph A.1.b(2) in section VI of this
notice.

g. Citizen complaints. The grantee
will provide a timely written response
to every citizen complaint. The response
will be provided within 15 working
days of the receipt of the complaint.

5. Direct grant administration and
means of carrying out eligible activities.
Requirements at 42 U.S.C. 5306 are
waived to the extent necessary to allow
a State to use its disaster recovery grant
allocation directly to carry out State-
administered activities eligible under
this notice, rather than distribute all
funds to local governments. Pursuant to
this waiver, the standard at 24 CFR
570.480(c) and the provisions at 42
U.S.C. 5304(e)(2) will also include
activities that the State carries out
directly. Activities eligible under this
notice may be carried out, subject to
State law, by the State through its
employees, through procurement
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contracts, or through assistance
provided under agreements with
subrecipients or recipients. State
grantees continue to be responsible for
civil rights, labor standards, and
environmental protection requirements,
for compliance with 24 CFR 570.489
relating to conflicts of interest and for
compliance with 24 CFR 570.489(m)
relating to monitoring and management
of subrecipients.

For activities carried out by entities
eligible under section 105(a)(15) of the
HCD Act, such entity will be subject to
the definition of a nonprofit under that
section rather than the definition
located in 24 CFR 570.204, even in cases
where the entity is receiving assistance
through a local government that is an
Entitlement jurisdiction.

6. Consolidated Plan waiver. HUD is
temporarily waiving the requirement for
consistency with the consolidated plan
(requirements at 42 U.S.C. 12706, 24
CFR 91.325(a)(5) and 24 CFR
91.325(b)(2)), because the effects of a
major disaster alter a grantee’s priorities
for meeting housing, employment, and
infrastructure needs. In conjunction, 42
U.S.C. 5304(e), to the extent that it
would require HUD to annually review
grantee performance under the
consistency criteria, is also waived.
However, this waiver applies only until
the grantee submits its next full (3-5
year) consolidated plan, or for 24
months after the effective date of this
notice, whichever is less. If the grantee
is not scheduled to submit a new 3-5
year consolidated plan within the next
2 years, HUD expects each grantee to
update its existing 3—5 year
consolidated plan to reflect disaster-
related needs no later than 24 months
after the effective date of this notice.
Additionally, grantees are encouraged to
incorporate disaster-recovery needs into
their consolidated plan updates as soon
as practicable, but any unmet disaster-
related needs and associated priorities
must be incorporated into the grantee’s
next consolidated plan update no later
than its Fiscal Year 2019 update. HUD
has issued guidance for incorporating
CDBG-DR funds into consolidated plans
via HUD’s eCon Planning Suite. This
guidance is on the HUD Exchange at:
https://www.hudexchange.info/
resource/4400/updating-the-
consolidated-plan-to-reflect-disaster-
recovery-needs-and-associated-
priorities/. This waiver does not affect
the requirements of HUD’s July 16,
2015, final rule on Affirmatively
Furthering Fair Housing (80 FR 42272},
which requires grantees, among other
requirements, to complete an
Assessment of Fair Housing in
accordance with the requirements of 24

CFR 5.160 and incorporate fair housing
strategies and actions consistent with
the AFH into the Consolidated Plan.

7. Requirement for consultation
during plan preparation. Currently, the
HCD Act and regulations require States
to consult with affected local
governments in nonentitlement areas of
the State in determining the State’s
proposed method of distribution. HUD
is waiving 42 U.S.C. 5306(d}(2)(C)(iv),
42 U.S.C. 5306(d)(2)(D), 24 CFR
91.325(b), and 24 CFR 91.110, with the
alternative requirement that States
receiving an allocation under this notice
consult with all disaster-affected local
governments (including any CDBG-
entitlement communities and any local
public housing authorities) in
determining the use of funds. This
ensures that State grantees sufficiently
assess the recovery needs of all areas
affected by the disaster. Additional
guidance on consultation with local
stakeholders can be found in the
National Disaster Recovery Framework
and its discussion of pre- and post-
disaster planning, at: https://
www.fema.gov/national-disaster-
recovery-framework.

Consistent with the approach
encouraged through the National
Disaster Recovery Framework and
National Preparedness Goal, all grantees
must consult with States, tribes, local
governments, Federal partners,
nongovernmental organizations, the
private sector, and other stakeholders
and affected parties in the surrounding
geographic area to ensure consistency of
the action plan with applicable regional
redevelopment plans. Grantees are
encouraged to establish a recovery task
force with representative members of
each sector to advise the grantee on how
its recovery activities can best
contribute towards the goals of regional
redevelopment plans.

8. Overall benefit requirement. The
primary objective of the HCD Act is the
““development of viable urban
communities, by providing decent
housing and a suitable living
environment and expanding economic
opportunities, principally for persons of
low and moderate income™ (42 U.S.C.
5301(c)). To carry out this objective, the
statute requires that 70 percent of the
aggregate of CDBG program funds be
used to support activities benefitting
low- and moderate-income persons. To
ensure that maximum assistance is
provided initially to low- and moderate-
income persons, the 70 percent overall
benefit requirement shall remain in
effect for this allocation, subject to a
waiver request by an individual grantee
to authorize a lower overall benefit for
its CDBG-DR grant based on a

determination by HUD of compelling
need for the reduction.

A grantee may seek to reduce the
overall benefit requirement below 70
percent of the total grant, but must
submit a justification that, at a
minimum: (a) Identifies the planned
activities that meet the needs of its low-
and moderate-income population; (b}
describes proposed activity(ies) and/or
program(s) that will be affected by the
alternative requirement, including their
proposed location(s) and role(s) in the
grantee’s long-term disaster recovery
plan; (c) describes how the activities/
programs identified in (b) prevent the
grantee from meeting the 70 percent
requirement; and (d) demonstrates that
low- and moderate-income persons’
disaster-related needs have been
sufficiently met and that the needs of
non-low- and moderate-income persons
or areas are disproportionately greater,
and that the jurisdiction lacks other
resources to serve them.

9. Use of the “upper quartile” or
“exception criteria” for low- and
moderate-income area benefit activities.
Section 101(c}) of the HCD Act requires
each funded activity to meet a national
objective of the CDBG program,
including the national objective of
benefiting low- and moderate-income
persons. Grantees may meet this
national objective on an area basis,
through an activity which is available to
benefit all of the residents of an area
where at least 51 percent of the
residents are low- and moderate income.
In some cases, HUD permits an
exception to the low- and moderate-
income area benefit requirement that an
area contain at least 51 percent low- and
moderate-income residents. This
exception applies to entitlement
communities that have few, if any, areas
within their jurisdiction that have 51
percent or more low- and moderate-
income residents. These communities
are allowed to use a percentage less than
51 percent to qualify activities under the
low- and moderate-income area benefit
category. This exception is referred to as
the “exception criteria” or the “upper
quartile.” A grantee qualifies for this
exception when less than one quarter of
the populated-block groups in its
jurisdictions contain 51 percent or more
low- and moderate-income persons. In
such communities, activities must serve
an area that contains a percentage of
low- and moderate-income residents
that is within the upper quartile of all
census-block groups within its
jurisdiction in terms of the degree of
concentration of low- and moderate-
income residents. HUD assesses each
grantee’s census-block groups to
determine whether a grantee qualifies to
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be used for activities that benefit low-
and moderate-income persons.

13. Waiver and alternative
requirement for distribution to CDBG
metropolitan cities and urban counties.
42 U.S.C 5302(a)(7) (definition of
‘“nonentitlement area”) and provisions
of 24 CFR part 570, including 24 CFR
570.480, are waived to permit a State to
distribute CDBG-DR funds to units of
local government and tribes.

14. Recordkeeping. When a State
carries out activities directly, 24 CFR
570.490(b) is waived and the following
alternative provision shall apply: The
State shall establish and maintain such
records as may be necessary to facilitate
review and audit by HUD of the State’s
administration of CDBG-DR funds,
under 24 CFR 570.493. Consistent with
applicable statutes, regulations, waivers
and alternative requirements, and other
Federal requirements, the content of
records maintained by the State shall be
sufficient to: (1) Enable HUD to make
the applicable determinations described
at 24 CFR 570.493; (2) make compliance
determinations for activities carried out
directly by the State; and (3) show how
activities funded are consistent with the
descriptions of activities proposed for
funding in the action plan and/or DRGR
system. For fair housing and equal
opportunity purposes, and as
applicable, such records shall include
data on the racial, ethnic, and gender
characteristics of persons who are
applicants for, participants in, or
beneficiaries of the program.

15. Change of use of real property.
This waiver conforms to the change of
use of real property rule to the waiver
allowing a State to carry out activities
directly. For purposes of this program,
all references to “unit of general local
government” in 24 CFR 570.489(j), shall
be read as “‘unit of general local
government (UGLG) or State.”

16. Responsibility for review and
handling of noncompliance. This
change is in conformance with the
waiver allowing the State to carry out
activities directly. 24 CFR 570.492 is
waived and the following alternative
requirement applies for any State
receiving a direct award under this
notice: The State shall make reviews
and audits, including on-site reviews of
any subrecipients, designated public
agencies, and UGLGs, as may be
necessary or appropriate to meet the
requirements of section 104(e)(2) of the
HCD Act, as amended, as modified by
this notice. In the case of
noncompliance with these
requirements, the State shall take such
actions as may be appropriate to prevent
a continuance of the deficiency, mitigate
any adverse effects or consequences,

and prevent a recurrence. The State
shall establish remedies for
noncompliance by any designated
subrecipients, public agencies, or
UGLGs.

17. Program income alternative
requirement. The Department is waiving
applicable program income rules at 42
U.S.C. 5304(j) and 570.489(e) to the
extent necessary to provide additional
flexibility as described under this
notice. The alternative requirements
provide guidance regarding the use of
program income received before and
after grant close out and address
revolving loan funds.

a. Definition of program income.

(1) For purposes of this subpart,
“program income” is defined as gross
income generated from the use of
CDBG-DR funds, except as provided in
subparagraph (d) of this paragraph, and
received by a State, local government,
tribe or a subrecipient of a State, local
government, or tribe. When income is
generated by an activity that is only
partially assisted with CDBG-DR funds,
the income shall be prorated to reflect
the percentage of CDBG-DR funds used
(e.g., a single loan supported by CDBG—
DR funds and other funds; a single
parcel of land purchased with CDBG
funds and other funds). Program income
includes, but is not limited to, the
following:

(a) Proceeds from the disposition by
sale or long-term lease of real property
purchased or improved with CDBG-DR
funds.

(b} Proceeds from the disposition of
equipment purchased with CDBG-DR
funds.

(c) Gross income from the use or
rental of real or personal property
acquired by a State, UGLG, or tribe or
subrecipient of a State, local
government, or tribe with CDBG-DR
funds, less costs incidental to generation
of the income (i.e., net income).

(d) Net income from the use or rental
of real property owned by a State, local
government, or tribe or subrecipient of
a State, local government, or tribe, that
was constructed or improved with
CDBG-DR funds.

(e) Payments of principal and interest
on loans made using CDBG-DR funds.

(f) Proceeds from the sale of loans
made with CDBG-DR funds.

(g) Proceeds from the sale of
obligations secured by loans made with
CDBG-DR funds.

(h) Interest earned on program income
pending disposition of the income,
including interest earned on funds held
in a revolving fund account.

(i) Funds collected through special
assessments made against
nonresidential properties and properties

owned and occupied by households not
of low- and moderate-income, where the
special assessments are used to recover
all or part of the CDBG-DR portion of

a public improvement.

(j) Gross income paid to a State, local
government, or tribe, or paid to a
subrecipient thereof, from the
ownership interest in a for-profit entity
in which the income is in return for the
provision of CDBG-DR assistance.

(2) “Program income” does not
include the following:

(a) The total amount of funds that is
less than $35,000 received in a single
year and retained by a State, local
government, tribe, or retained by a
subrecipient thereof.

(b) Amounts generated by activities
eligible under section 105(a)(15) of the
HCD Act and carried out by an entity
under the authority of section 105(a)(15)
of the HCD Act.

b. Retention of program income. State
grantees may permit a local government
or tribe that receives or will receive
program income to retain the program
income, but are not required to do so.

c. Program income—use, close out,
and transfer.

(1) Program income received (and
retained, if applicable) before or after
close out of the grant that generated the
program income, and used to continue
disaster recovery activities, is treated as
additional disaster recovery CDBG
funds subject to the requirements of this
notice and must be used in accordance
with the grantee’s action plan for
disaster recovery. To the maximum
extent feasible, program income shall be
used or distributed before additional
withdrawals from the U.S. Treasury are
made, except as provided in
subparagraph D of this paragraph.

(2) In addition to the regulations
dealing with program income found at
24 CFR 570.489(e) and 570.504, the
following rules apply: A grantee may
transfer program income before close
out of the grant that generated the
program income to its annual CDBG
program. In addition, State grantees may
transfer program income before close
out to any annual CDBG-funded
activities carried out by a local
government or tribe within the State.
Program income received by a grantee,
or received and retained by a
subrecipient, after close out of the grant
that generated the program income, may
also be transferred to a grantee’s annual
CDBG award. In all cases, any program
income received that is not used to
continue the disaster recovery activity
will not be subject to the waivers and
alternative requirements of this notice.
Rather, those funds will be subject to
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the grantee’s regular CDBG program
rules.

d. Revolving loan funds. State
grantees, and local governments or
tribes (provided assistance by a State
grantee) may establish revolving funds
to carry out specific, identified
activities. A revolving fund, for this
purpose, is a separate fund (with a set
of accounts that are independent of
other program accounts) established to
carry out specific activities. These
activities generate payments, which will
be used to support similar activities
going forward. These payments to the
revolving fund are program income and
must be substantially disbursed from
the revolving fund before additional
grant funds are drawn from the U.S.
Treasury for payments that could be
funded from the revolving fund. Such
program income is not required to be
disbursed for nonrevolving fund
activities.

State grantees may also establish a
revolving fund to distribute funds to
local governments or tribes to carry out
specific, identified activities. The same
requirements, outlined above, apply to
this type of revolving loan fund. Note
that no revolving fund established per
this notice shall be directly funded or
capitalized with CDBG~DR grant funds,
pursuant to 24 CFR 570.489(f)(3).

18. Reimbursement of disaster
recovery expenses. The provisions of 24
CFR 570.489(b) are applied to permit a
State to charge to the grant otherwise
allowable costs incurred by itself, its
recipients or subrecipients (including
public housing authorities (PHAs)) on or
after the incident date of the covered
disaster. The Department expects State
grantees to include all preagreement
activities in their action plans.
Additionally, grantees are permitted to
charge to grants the preaward and
preapplication costs of homeowners,
businesses, and other qualifying entities
for eligible costs they have incurred in
response to an eligible disaster covered
under this notice. However, a grantee
may not charge such preaward or
preapplication costs to grants if the
preaward or preapplication action
results in an adverse impact to the
environment. Grantees receiving an
allocation under this notice are also
subject to HUD's guidance on preaward
expenses published in CPD Notice
2015-07, “Guidance for Charging Pre-
Application Costs of Homeowners,
Businesses, and Other Qualifying
Entities to CDBG Disaster Recovery
Grants,” as amended (https://www.hud
exchange.info/resource/4777/notice-cpd
-1507-guidance-for-charging-
preapplication-costs-to-cdbg-disaster-
recovery-grants/). Grantees are required

to consult with the State Historic
Preservation Officer, Fish and Wildlife
Service and National Marine Fisheries
Service, to obtain formal agreements for
compliance with section 106 of the
National Historic Preservation Act (54
U.S.C. 306108) and section 7 of the
Endangered Species Act (16 U.S.C.
1536) when designing a reimbursement
program. Grantees may also not use
CDBG-DR funds to provide
compensation to beneficiaries.

19. One-for-One Replacement
Housing, Relocation, and Real Property
Acquisition Requirements. Activities
and projects assisted by CDBG-DR are
subject to the Uniform Relocation
Assistance and Real Property
Acquisition Policies Act of 1970, as
amended, (42 U.S.C. 4601 et seq.)
(““URA") and section 104(d) of the HCD
Act (42 U.S.C. 5304(d)) (Section 104(d)).
The implementing regulations for the
URA are at 49 CFR part 24, The
regulations for Section 104(d) are at 24
CFR part 42, subpart C. For the purpose
of promoting the availability of decent,
safe, and sanitary housing, HUD is
waiving the following URA and Section
104(d) requirements for grantees under
this notice:

a. One-for-one replacement. One-for-
one replacement requirements at section
104(d)(2)(A)(i) and (ii) and (d)(3) and 24
CFR 42.375 are waived in connection
with funds allocated under this notice
for lower-income dwelling units that are
damaged by the disaster and not
suitable for rehabilitation. The section
104(d) one-for-one replacement
requirements generally apply to
demolished or converted occupied and
vacant occupiable lower-income
dwelling units. This waiver exempts
disaster-damaged units that meet the
grantee’s definition of “not suitable for
rehabilitation” from the one-for-one
replacement requirements. Before
carrying out a program or activity that
may be subject to the one-for-one
replacement requirements, the grantee
must define “not suitable for
rehabilitation” in its action plan or in
policies/procedures governing these
programs and activities. Grantees with
questions about the one-for-one
replacement requirements are
encouraged to contact the HUD regional
relocation specialist responsible for
their State.

HUD is waiving the one-for-one
replacement requirements because they
do not account for the large, sudden
changes that a major disaster may cause
to the local housing stock, population,
or economy. Further, the requirement
may discourage grantees from
converting or demolishing disaster-
damaged housing when excessive costs

would result from replacing all such
units. Disaster-damaged housing
structures that are not suitable for
rehabilitation can pose a threat to public
health and safety and to economic
revitalization. Grantees should reassess
post-disaster population and housing
needs to determine the appropriate type
and amount of lower-income dwelling
units to rehabilitate and/or rebuild.
Grantees should note, however, that the
demolition and/or disposition of PHA-
owned public housing units is covered
by section 18 of the United States
Housing Act of 1937, as amended, and
24 CFR part 970.

b. Relocation assistance. The
relocation assistance requirements at
section 104(d)(2)(A) of the HCD Act and
24 CFR 42.350 are waived to the extent
that they differ from the requirements of
the URA and implementing regulations
at 49 CFR part 24, as modified by this
notice, for activities related to disaster
recovery. Without this waiver,
disparities exist in relocation assistance
associated with activities typically
funded by HUD and FEMA (e.g.,
buyouts and relocation). Both FEMA
and CDBG funds are subject to the
requirements of the URA; however,
CDBG funds are subject to Section
104(d), while FEMA funds are not. The
URA provides that a displaced person is
eligible to receive a rental assistance
payment that covers a period of 42
months. By contrast, Section 104(d)
allows a lower-income displaced person
to choose between the URA rental
assistance payment and a rental
assistance payment calculated over a
period of 60 months. This waiver of the
Section 104(d) requirements assures
uniform and equitable treatment by
setting the URA and its implementing
regulations as the sole standard for
relocation assistance under this notice.

c. Arm'’s length voluntary purchase.
The requirements at 49 CFR
24,101(b)(2)(i) and (ii) are waived to the
extent that they apply to an arm's length
voluntary purchase carried out by a
person who uses funds allocated under
this notice and does not have the power
of eminent domain, in connection with
the purchase and occupancy of a
principal residence by that person.
Given the often large-scale acquisition
needs of grantees, this waiver is
necessary to reduce burdensome
administrative requirements following a
disaster. Grantees are reminded that
tenants occupying real property
acquired through voluntary purchase
m? be eligible for relocation assistance,

. Rental assistance to a displaced
person. The requirements at sections
204(a) and 206 of the URA, 49 CFR
24.2(a)(6)(viii), 24.402(b)(2), and 24.404
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are waived to the extent that they
require the grantee to use 30 percent of
a low-income, displaced person’s
household income in computing a rental
assistance payment if the person had
been paying rent in excess of 30 percent
of household income without
‘“demonstrable hardship” before the
project. Thus, if a tenant has been
paying rent in excess of 30 percent of
household income without
demonstrable hardship, using 30
percent of household income to
calculate the rental assistance would not
be required. Before carrying out a
program or activity in which the grantee
provides rental assistance payments to
displaced persons, the grantee must
define ““demonstrable hardship” in its
action plan or in the policies and
procedures governing these programs
and activities. The grantee’s definition
of demonstrable hardship applies when
implementing these alternative
requirements.

e. Tenant-based rental assistance. The
requirements of sections 204 and 205 of
the URA, and 49 CFR 24.2(a)(6)(vii),
24.2(a)(6)(ix), and 24.402(b) are waived
to the extent necessary to permit a
grantee to meet all or a portion of a
grantee’s replacement housing financial
assistance obligation to a displaced
tenant by offering rental housing
through a tenant-based rental assistance
(TBRA) housing program subsidy (e.g.,
Section 8 rental voucher or certificate),
provided that the tenant is provided
referrals to comparable replacement
dwellings in accordance with 49 CFR
24.204(a) where the owner is willing to
participate in the TBRA program, and
the period of authorized assistance is at
least 42 months. Failure to grant this
waiver would impede disaster recovery
whenever TBRA program subsidies are
available but funds for cash relocation
assistance are limited.

f. Moving expenses. The requirements
at section 202(b) of the URA and 49 CFR
24.302, which require that a grantee
offer a displaced person the option to
receive a fixed moving-cost payment
based on the Federal Highway
Administration’s Fixed Residential
Moving Cost Schedule instead of
receiving payment for actual moving
and related expenses, are waived. As an
alternative, the grantee must establish
and offer the person a “‘moving expense
and dislocation allowance” under a
schedule of allowances that is
reasonable for the jurisdiction and that
takes into account the number of rooms
in the displacement dwelling, whether
the person owns and must move the
furniture, and, at a minimum, the kinds
of expenses described in 49 CFR 24.301.
Without this waiver and alternative

requirement, disaster recovery may be
impeded by requiring grantees to offer
allowances that do not reflect current
local labor and transportation costs.
Persons displaced from a dwelling
remain entitled to choose a payment for
actual reasonable moving and related
expenses if they find that approach
preferable to the locally established
“moving expense and dislocation
allowance.” .

g. Optional relocation policies. The
regulation at 24 CFR 570.606(d) is
waived to the extent that it requires
optional relocation policies to be
established at the grantee level. Unlike
the regular CDBG program, States may
carry out disaster recovery activities
directly or through subrecipients but 24
CFR 570.606(d) does not account for
this distinction. This waiver makes clear
grantees, including subrecipients,
receiving CDBG disaster funds may
establish separate optional relocation
policies. This waiver is intended to
provide States with maximum flexibility
in developing optional relocation
policies with CDBG-DR funds.

20. Environmental requirements.

a. Clarifying note on the process for
environmental release of funds when a
State carries out activities directly.
Usually, a State distributes CDBG funds
to local governments and takes on
HUD'’s role in receiving environmental
certifications from the grant recipients
and approving releases of funds. For
this grant, HUD will allow a State
grantee to also carry out activities
directly, in addition to distributing
funds to subrecipients. Thus, per 24
CFR 58.4, when a State carries out
activities directly, the State must submit
the Certification and Request for Release
of Funds to HUD for approval.

b. Adoption of another agency’s
environmental review. In accordance
with the Appropriations Act, recipients
of Federal funds that use such funds to
supplement Federal assistance provided
under sections 402, 403, 404, 406, 407,
or 502 of the Stafford Act may adopt,
without review or public comment, any
environmental review, approval, or
permit performed by a Federal agency,
and such adoption shall satisfy the
responsibilities of the recipient with
respect to such environmental review,
approval, or permit that is required by
the HCD Act. The grantee must notify
HUD in writing of its decision to adopt
another agency’s environmental review.
The grantee must retain a copy of the
review in the grantee’s environmental
records.

c. Unified Federal Review. The Sandy
Recovery Improvement Act was signed
into law on January 29, 2013, and
directed the Administration to

“establish an expedited and unified
interagency review process (UFR) to
ensure compliance with environmental
and historic requirements under Federal
law relating to disaster recovery
projects, in order to expedite the
recovery process, consistent with
applicable law.” The process aims to
coordinate environmental and historic
preservation reviews to expedite
planning and decision-making for
disaster recovery projects. This can
improve the Federal Government’s
assistance to States, local, and tribal
governments; communities; families;
and individual citizens as they recover
from future presidentially declared
disasters. Grantees receiving and
allocation of funds under this notice are
encouraged to in this process as one
means of expediting recovery. Tools for
the UFR process can be found at here:
http://www.fema.gov/unified-federal-
environmental-and-historic-
preservation-review-presidentially-
declared-disasters.

d. Release of funds. In accordance
with the Appropriations Act, and
notwithstanding 42 U.S.C. 5304(g)(2),
the Secretary may, upon receipt of a
Request for Release of Funds and
Certification, immediately approve the
release of funds for an activity or project
assisted with allocations under this
notice if the recipient has adopted an
environmental review, approval, or
permit under subparagraph b above, or
the activity or project is categorically
excluded from review under the
National Environmental Policy Act of
1969 (42 U.S.C. 4321 et seq.).

e. Historic preservation reviews.

To facilitate expedited historic
preservation reviews under section 106
of the National Historic Preservation Act
of 1966 (54 U.S.C. Section 306108),
HUD strongly encourages grantees to
allocate general administration funds to
retain a qualified historic preservation
professional, and support the capacity
of the State Historic Preservation
Officer/Tribal Historic Preservation
Officer to review CDBG-DR projects.
For more information on qualified
historic preservation professional
standards see https://www.nps.gov/
history/local-law/arch_stnds_9.htm.

21. Duplication of benefits. Section
312 of the Stafford Act, as amended,
generally prohibits any person, business
concern, or other entity from receiving
financial assistance with respect to any
part of a loss resulting from a major
disaster for which such person, business
concern, or other entity has received
financial assistance under any other
program or from insurance or any other
source. To comply with Section 312 and
the limitation on the use of CDBG-DR
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funds under the Appropriations Act for
necessary expenses, each grantee must
ensure that each activity provides
assistance to a person or entity only to
the extent that the person or entity has
a disaster recovery need that has not
been fully met. Grantees are subject to
the requirements of a separate notice
explaining the duplication of benefit
requirements (76 FR 71060, published
November 16, 2011). As a reminder, and
as noted in the November 16, 2011,
notice, in paragraph B of section VI,
CDBG-DR funds may not be used to pay
an SBA home or business loan.
Additionally, this notice does not
require households and businesses to
apply for SBA assistance prior to
applying for CDBG~DR assistance.
However, CDBG-DR grantees may
institute such a requirement in order to
target assistance to households and
businesses with the greatest need. In
addition to the requirements described
here and in the November 16, 2011
nolice, grantees must comply with
HUD'’s guidance published on July 25,
2013, “HUD Guidance on Duplication of
Benefits and CDBG Disaster Recovery
(DR) Assistance,” as amended, in
regards to declined SBA loans (https://
www.hudexchange.info/resource/3137/
cdbg-dr-duplication-of-benefit-
requirements-and-provision-of-
assistance-with-sba-funds/).

22, Procurement. States must comply
with the procurement requirements at
24 CFR 570.489(g).

Additionally, if a State grantee
chooses to provide funding to another
State agency, the State may specify in its
procurement policies and procedures
whether that State agency must follow
the procurement policies and
procedures that the State is subject to,
or whether the State agency must follow
the same policies and procedures to
which all other subrecipients are
subject.

HUD may request periodic updates
from grantees that employ contractors.
A contractor is a third-party firm that
the grantee acquires through a
procurement process to perform specific
functions, consistent with the
procurement requirements in the CDBG
program regulations. For contractors
employed to provide discrete services or
deliverables only, HUD is establishing
an additional alternative requirement to
expand on existing provisions of 2 CFR
200.317 through 200.326 and 24 CFR
570.489(g) as follows:

a. Grantees are also required to ensure
all contracts and agreements (with
subrecipients, recipients, and
contractors) clearly state the period of
performance or date of completion;

b. Grantees must incorporate
performance requirements and
liquidated damages into each procured
contract or agreement. Contracts that
describe work performed by general
management consulting services need
not adhere to this requirement; and

c. Grantees may contract for
administrative support but may not
delegate or contract to any other party
any inherently governmental
responsibilities related to management
of the funds, such as oversight, policy
development, and financial
management. Technical assistance
resources for procurement are available
to grantees either through HUD staff or
through technical assistance providers
engaged by HUD or the grantee.

23. Public Web site. HUD is requiring
grantees to maintain a public Web site
that provides information accounting for
how all grant funds are used and
managed/administered, including links
to all action plans, action plan
amendments, performance reports,
citizen participation requirements, and
activity/program information for
activities described in the action plan,
including details of all contracts and
ongoing procurement policies. The
creation and maintenance of the public
Web site is one component of the
Department’s certification of a grantee’s
proficient financial controls and
procurement processes as provided in
paragraph A.1.a. of section VI of this
notice. To meet this requirement, each
grantee must make the following items
available on its Web site: The action
plan (including all amendments); each
QPR (as created using the DRGR
system); procurement policies and
procedures; description of services or
goods currently being procured by the
grantee; a copy of contracts the grantee
has procured directly; and a summary of
all procured contracts, including those
procured by the grantee, recipients, or
subrecipients (e.g., a summary list of
procurements, the phase of the
procurement, requirements for
proposals, and any liquidation of
damages associated with a contractor’s
failure or inability to implement the
contract, etc.). Grantees should post
only contracts as defined in 2 CFR
200.22. To assist grantees in preparing
this summary, HUD has developed a
template. The template can be accessed
at: https://www.hudexchange.info/cdbg-
dr/cdbg-dr-laws-regulations-and-
federal-register-notices/. Grantees are
required to use this template, and attach
an updated version to the DRGR system
each quarter as part of their QPR
submissions. Updated summaries must
also be posted quarterly on each
grantee’s Web site.

24. Timely distribution of funds. The
provisions at 24 CFR 570.494 and 24
CFR 570.902 regarding timely
distribution of funds are waived and
replaced with alternative requirements
under this notice. Each grantee must
expend 100 percent of its allocation of
CDBG-DR funds on eligible activities
within 6 years of HUD’s execution of the
grant agreement.

25. Review of continuing capacity to
carry out CDBG-funded activities in a
timely manner. If HUD determines that
the grantee has not carried out its CDBG
activities and certifications in
accordance with the requirements in
this notice, HUD will undertake a
further review to determine whether or
not the grantee has the continuing
capacity to carry out its activities in a
timely manner. In making the
determination, the Department will
consider the nature and extent of the
recipient’s performance deficiencies,
types of corrective actions the recipient
has undertaken, and the success or
likely success of such actions, and apply
the corrective and remedial actions
specified in paragraph A.26 of section
VI of this notice.

26. Corrective and remedial actions.
To ensure compliance with the
requirements of the Appropriations Act
and to effectively administer the CDBG—
DR program in a manner that facilitates
recovery, particularly the alternative
requirements permitting States to act
directly to carry out eligible activities,
HUD is waiving 42 U.S.C. 5304(e) to the
extent necessary to establish the
following alternative requirement: HUD
may undertake corrective and remedial
actions for States in accordance with the
authorities applicable to entitlement
grantees in subpart O (including
corrective and remedial actions in 24
CFR 570.910, 570.911, and 570.913) or
under subpart I of the CDBG regulations
at 24 CFR part 570. This may include
the termination, reduction or limitation
of payments to State grantees receiving
funds under this notice.

27. Reduction, withdrawal, or
adjustment of a grant, or other
appropriate action.

Prior to a reduction, withdrawal, or
adjustment of a CDBG-DR grant, or
other actions taken pursuant to this
section, the recipient shall be notified of
the proposed action and be given an
opportunity for an informal
consultation.

Consistent with the procedures
described in this notice, the Department
may adjust, reduce, or withdraw the
CDBG-DR grant or take other actions as
appropriate, except for funds that have
been expended for eligible approved
activities.
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B. Housing and Related Floodplain
Issues

28. Housing-related eligibility waivers.

The broadening of eligible activities
under the HCD Act is necessary
following major disasters in which large
numbers of affordable housing units
have been damaged or destroyed, as is
the case of the disasters eligible under
this notice.

Therefore, 42 U.S.C. 5305(a)(24) is
waived to the extent necessary to allow:
(1) Homeownership assistance for
households with up to 120 percent of
the area median income; and (2) down
payment assistance for up to 100
percent of the down payment (42 U.S.C.
5305(a)(24)(D)). While homeownership
assistance may be provided to
households with up to 120 percent of
the area median income, only those
funds used to serve households with up
to 80 percent of the area median income
may qualify as meeting the low- and
moderate-income person benefit
national objective.

In addition, 42 U.S.C. 5305(a) is
waived and alternative requirements
adopted to the extent necessary to
permit new housing construction, and
to require the following construction
standards on structures constructed or
rehabilitated with CDBG-DR funds as

part of activities eligible under 42 U.S.C.

5305(a). All references to “‘substantial
damage” and “‘substantial
improvement” shall be as defined in 44
CFR 59.1 unless otherwise noted:

a. Green Building Standard for
Replacement and New Construction of
Residential Housing. Grantees must
meet the Green Building Standard in
this subparagraph for: (i) All new
construction of residential buildings
and (ii) all replacement of substantially
damaged residential buildings.
Replacement of residential buildings
may include reconstruction (i.e.,
demolishing and rebuilding a housing
unit on the same lot in substantially the
same manner) and may include changes
to structural elements such as flooring
systems, columns, or load bearing
interior or exterior walls.

b. Meaning of Green Building
Standard. For purposes of this notice,
the Green Building Standard means the
grantee will require that all construction
covered by subparagraph a, above, meet
an industry-recognized standard that
has achieved certification under at least
one of the following programs: (i)
ENERGY STAR (Certified Homes or
Multifamily High-Rise), (ii} Enterprise
Green Communities; (iii) LEED (New
Construction, Homes, Midrise, Existing
Buildings Operations and Maintenance,
or Neighborhood Development), (iv)

ICC-700 National Green Building
Standard, (v) EPA Indoor AirPlus
(ENERGY STAR a prerequisite), or (vi)
any other equivalent comprehensive
green building program acceptable to

c. Standards for rehabilitation of
nonsubstantially damaged residential
buildings. For rehabilitation other than
that described in subparagraph (a),
above, grantees must follow the
guidelines specified in the HUD CPD
Green Building Retrofit Checklist,
available at https://
www.hudexchange.info/resource/3684/
guidance-on-the-cpd-green-building-
checklist/. Grantees must apply these
guidelines to the extent applicable to
the rehabilitation work undertaken,
including the use of mold resistant
products when replacing surfaces such
as drywall. When older or obsolete
products are replaced as part of the
rehabilitation work, rehabilitation is
required to use ENERGY STAR-labeled,
WaterSense-labeled, or Federal Energy
Management Program (FEMP)-
designated products and appliances. For
example, if the furnace, air conditioner,
windows, and appliances are replaced,
the replacements must be ENERGY
STAR-labeled or FEMP-designated
products; WaterSense-labeled products
(e.g., faucets, toilets, showerheads) must
be used when water products are
replaced. Rehabilitated housing may
also implement measures recommended
in a Physical Condition Assessment
(PCA) or Green Physical Needs
Assessment (GPNA).

d. Implementation of green building
standards. (i) For construction projects
completed, under construction, or under
contract prior to the date that assistance
is approved for the project, the grantee
is encouraged to apply the applicable
standards to the extent feasible, but the
Green Building Standard is not
required; (ii) for specific required
equipment or materials for which an
ENERGY STAR- or WaterSense-labeled
or FEMP-designated product does not
exist, the requirement to use such
products does not apply.

e. Elevation stan asz for new
construction, repair of substantial
damage, or substantial improvement.
The following elevation standards apply
to new construction, repair of
substantial damage, or substantial
improvement of structures located in an
area delineated as a flood hazard area or
equivalent in FEMA’s data source
identified in 24 CFR 55.2(b)(1). All
structures, defined at 44 CFR 59.1,
designed principally for residential use
and located in the 1 percent annual (or
100-year) floodplain that receive
assistance for new construction, repair

of substantial damage, or substantial
improvement, as defined at 24 CFR
55.2(b)(10), must be elevated with the
lowest floor, including the basement, at
least two feet above the 1 percent
annual floodplain elevation. Residential
structures with no dwelling units and
no residents below two feet above the 1
percent annual floodplain, must be
elevated or floodproofed, in accordance
with FEMA floodproofing standards at
44 CFR 60.3(c)(3)(ii) or successor
standard, up to at least two feet above
the 1 percent annual floodplain.

All Critical Actions, as defined at 24
CFR 55.2(b)(3), within the 0.2 percent
annual floodplain (or 500-year)
floodplain must be elevated or
floodproofed (in accordance with the
FEMA standards) to the higher of the 0.2
percent annual floodplain flood
elevation or three feet above the 1
percent annual floodplain, If the 0.2
percent annual floodplain or elevation
is unavailable for Critical Actions, and
the structure is in the 1 percent annual
floodplain, then the structure must be
elevated or floodproofed at least three
feet above the 1 percent annual
floodplain level. Applicable State, local,
and tribal codes and standards for
floodplain management that exceed
these requirements, including elevation,
setbacks, and cumulative substantial
damage requirements, will be followed.

f. Broadgand infrastructure in
housing. Any new construction or
substantial rehabilitation, as defined by
24 CFR 5.100, of a building with more
than four rental units must include
installation of broadband infrastructure,
except where the grantee documents
that: (a) The location of the new
construction or substantial
rehabilitation makes installation of
broadband infrastructure infeasible; (b)
the cost of installing broadband
infrastructure would result in a
fundamental alteration in the nature of
its program or activity or in an undue
financial burden; or (c) the structure of
the housing to be substantially
rehabilitated makes installation of
broadband infrastructure infeasible.

g. Resilient Home Construction
Standard. Grantees are strongly
encouraged to incorporate a Resilient
Home Construction Standard, meaning
that all construction covered by
subparagraph (a) meet an industry-
recognized standard such as those set by
the FORTIFIED Home™ Gold level for
new construction of single-family,
detached homes; and FORTIFIED
Home™ Silver level for reconstruction
of the roof, windows and doors; or
FORTIFIED Home™ Bronze level for
repair or reconstruction of the roof; or
any other equivalent comprehensive
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resilient or disaster resistant building
program. Further, grantees are strongly
encouraged to meet the FORTIFIED
Home™ Bronze level standard for roof
repair or reconstruction, for all
construction covered under
subparagraph c. FORTIFIED Home™ is
a risk-reduction program providing
construction standards for new homes
and retrofit standards for existing
homes, which will increase a home’s
resilience to natural hazards, including
high wind, hail, and tropical storms.
Insurers can provide discounts for
homeowner’s insurance for properties
certified as FORTIFIED. Grantees should
advise property owners to contact their
insurance agent for current information
on what discounts may be available.
More information is also available at
https://disastersafety.org/fortified/
fortified-home/.

29. Primary Consideration of Unmet
Housing Needs. Grantees must propose
an allocation of CDBG-DR funds that
gives primary consideration to
addressing unmet housing needs.
Grantees may also allocate funds for
infrastructure or economic
revitalization, but in doing so grantees
must identify how any remaining unmet
housing needs will be addressed or how
the economic revitalization or
infrastructure activities will contribute
to the long-term recovery and
restoration of housing in the most
impacted and distressed areas.

30. Addressing Unmet Public Housing
Needs. The grantee must identify how it
will address the rehabilitation,
mitigation, and new construction needs
of each disaster-impacted PHA within
its jurisdiction, if applicable. The
grantee must work directly with
impacted PHAs in identifying necessary
and reasonable costs and ensure that
adequate funding from all available
sources is dedicated to addressing the
unmet needs of damaged public housing
(e.g., FEMA, insurance, and funds
available from HUD'’s Office of Public
and Indian Housing. In the
rehabilitation, reconstruction and
replacement of public housing provided
for in the action plan pursuant to
paragraph A.2.a.3 of section VI of this
notice, each grantee must identify
funding to specifically address the
unmet needs described in this
subparagraph. Grantees are reminded
that public housing is eligible for FEMA
Public Assistance and must ensure that
there is no duplication of benefits when
using CDBG-DR funds to assist public
housing. Information on the PHAs
impacted by the disaster is available on
the Department’s Web site.

31. Addressing Unmet Affordable
Rental Housing Needs. As part of the

requirement to give primary
consideration to unmet housing needs,
the grantee must identify how it will
address the rehabilitation,
reconstruction, replacement, and new
construction of rental housing that is
affordable to low or moderate income
households in the most impacted and
distressed areas and identify funding to
specifically address the unmet needs
identified in its action plan pursuant to
paragraph A.2.a.3 of section VI of this
notice. In order to meet the low-
moderate housing national objective,
affordable rental housing funded under
this notice must be rented to a low and
moderate income person at affordable
rents. The period that the rental housing
is affordable must be reasonably related
to the amount of CDBG-DR funding
used for the rental housing. The grantee
should impose the minimum period of
affordability through recorded use
restrictions or other mechanisms to
ensure that rental housing remains
affordable for a stated period of time.
The action plan must, at a minimum,
provide (1) a definition of “‘affordable
rents”’; (2) the income limits for tenants
of rental housing; (3) and a minimum
period of affordability. Grantees may
adopt the HOME program standards at
24 CFR 92.252(a), (c), (e}, and (f) to
comply with this requirement.

32. Housing incentives in disaster-
affected communities. Incentive
payments are generally offered in
addition to other programs or funding
(such as insurance), to encourage
households to relocate in a suitable
housing development or an area
promoted by the community's
comprehensive recovery plan. For
example, a grantee may offer an
incentive payment (possibly in addition
to a buyout payment) for households
that volunteer to relocate outside of
floodplain or to a lower-risk area.

Therefore, 42 U.S.C. 5305(a) and
associated regulations are waived to the
extent necessary to allow the provision
of housing incentives. These grantees
must maintain documentation, at least
at a programmatic level, describing how
the amount of assistance was
determined to be necessary and
reasonable, and the incentives must be
in accordance with the grantee’s
approved action plan and published
program design(s). This waiver does not
permit a compensation program. If the
grantee requires the incentives to be
used for a particular purpose by the
household receiving the assistance, then
the eligible use for that activity will be
that required use, not an incentive.

In undertaking a larger scale
migration or relocation recovery effort
that is intended to move households out

of high-risk areas, the grantee should
consider how it can protect and sustain
the impacted community and its assets.
Grantees must also weigh the benefits
and costs, including anticipated
insurance costs, of redeveloping high-
risk areas that were impacted by a
disaster. Accordingly, grantees are
prohibited from offering incentives to
return households to disaster-impacted
floodplains, unless the grantee can
demonstrate to HUD how it will resettle
such areas in a way that mitigates the
risks of future disasters and increasing
insurance costs resulting from
continued occupation of high-risk areas,
through mechanisms that can reduce
risks and insurance costs, such as new
land use development plans, building
codes or construction requirements,
protective infrastructure development,
or through restrictions on future disaster
assistance to such properties.

33. Limitation on emergency grant
payments—interim mortgage assistance.
42 U.S.C. 5305(a)(8) is modified to
extend interim mortgage assistance to
qualified individuals from 3 months to
up to 20 months. Interim mortgage
assistance is typically used in
conjunction with a buyout program, or
the rehabilitation or reconstruction of
single-family housing, during which
mortgage payments may be due but the
home is uninhabitable. The time
required for a household to complete
the rebuilding process may often extend
beyond 3 months, during which
mortgage payments may be due but the
home is inhabitable. Thus, this interim
assistance will be critical for many
households facing financial hardship
during this period. Grantees may use
interim housing rehabilitation payments
to expedite recovery assistance to
homeowners, but must establish
performance milestones for the
rehabilitation that are to be met by the
homeowner in order to receive such
payments. A grantee using this
alternative requirement must document,
in its policies and procedures, how it
will determine the amount of assistance
to be provided is necessary and
reasonable.

34. Rental assistance to displaced
homeowners. The requirement of 42
U.S.C. 5305(a)(8) are modified to
authorize grantees to extend rental
assistance payments on behalf of
qualified homeowners for up to 24
months. After a disaster, many
homeowners encounter unanticipated
delays and scarcity of available
construction and/or elevation
contractors in their area. While
undergoing rehabilitation of their
homes, most of these homeowners are
forced to pay not only a mortgage, but
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a rental payment as well since their
homes are not inhabitable. In other
cases, homeowners who have paid off
their mortgages must accommodate this
additional rental expense into their
budgets. In order to provide temporary
financial assistance to these families,
many of whom are low- or moderate-
income households, HUD is modifying
the requirements at 42 U.S.C. 5305(a)(8)
to the extent necessary to allow grantees
to provide up to 24 months of
homeowner rental assistance to eligible
applicants within the grantee’s single-
family rehabilitation/reconstruction
programs. In the case of rehabilitation
programs in which the homeowner is
responsible for construction oversight,
the grantee must establish performance
milestones for the rehabilitation that are
to be met by the homeowner in order to
receive such payments. A grantee using
this alternative requirement must
document, in its policies and
procedures, how it will determine the
amount of assistance to be provided is
necessary and reasonable. Homeowners
receiving interim mortgage assistance
are not eligible for rental assistance.

35. Acquisition of real property; flood
and other buyouts. Grantees under this
nolice are able to carry out property
acquisition for a variety of purposes.
However, the term “buyouts” as
referenced in this notice refers to
acquisition of properties located in a
floodway or floodplain that is intended
to reduce risk from future flooding or
the acquisition of properties in Disaster
Risk Reduction Areas as designated by
the grantee and defined below. HUD is
providing alternative requirements for
consistency with the application of
other Federal resources commonly used
for this type of activity.

Grantees are encouraged to use
buyouts strategically, as a means of
acquiring contiguous parcels of land for
uses compatible with open space,
recreational, natural floodplain
functions, other ecosystem restoration,
or wetlands management practices. To
the maximum extent practicable,
grantees should avoid circumstances in
which parcels that could not be
acquired through a buyout remain
alongside parcels that have been
acquired through the grantee’s buyout
program.

a. Clarification of “‘Buyout” and ‘‘Real
Property Acquisition’ activities.
Grantees that choose to undertake a
buyout program have the discretion to
determine the appropriate valuation
method, including paying either pre-
disaster or post-disaster fair market
value (FMV). In most cases, a program
that provides pre-disaster FMV to
buyout applicants provides

compensation at an amount greater than
the post-disaster FMV. When the
purchase price exceeds the current
FMV, any CDBG-DR funds in excess of
the FMV are considered assistance to
the seller, thus making the seller a
beneficiary of CDBG-DR assistance. If
the seller receives assistance as part of
the purchase price, this may have
implications for duplication of benefits
calculations or for demonstrating
national objective criteria, as discussed
below. However, a program that
provides post-disaster FMV to buyout
applicants merely provides the actual
value of the property; thus, the seller is
not considered a beneficiary of CDBG—
DR assistance.

Regardless of purchase price, all
buyout activities are a type of
acquisition of real property (as
permitted by 42 U.S.C. 5305(a)(1)).
However, only acquisitions that meet
the definition of a “buyout” are subject
to the post-acquisition land use
restrictions imposed by the applicable
prior notices. The key factor in
determining whether the acquisition is
a buyout is whether the intent of the
purchase is to reduce risk from future
flooding or to reduce the risk from the
hazard that lead to the property’s
Disaster Risk Reduction Area
designation. To conduct a buyout in a
Disaster Risk Reduction Area, the
grantee must establish criteria in its
policies and procedures to designate the
area subject to the buyout, pursuant to
the following requirements: (1) The
hazard must have been caused or
exacerbated by the Presidentially
declared disaster for which the grantee
received its CDBG-DR allocation; (2) the
hazard must be a predictable
environmental threat to the safety and
well-being of program beneficiaries, as
evidenced by the best available data and
science; and (3) the Disaster Risk
Reduction Area must be clearly
delineated so that HUD and the public
may easily determine which properties
are located within the designated area.

The distinction between buyouts and
other types of acquisitions is important,
because grantees may only redevelop an
acquired property if the property is not
acquired through a buyout program (i.e.,
the purpose of acquisition was
something other than risk reduction).
When acquisitions are not acquired
through a buyout program, the purchase
price must be consistent with applicable
uniform cost principles (and the pre-
disaster FMV may not be used).

b. Buyout requirements:

1. Any property acquired, accepted, or
from which a structure will be removed
pursuant to the project will be dedicated
and maintained in perpetuity for a use

that is compatible with open space,
recreational, or floodplain and wetlands
management practices.

2. No new structure will be erected on
property acquired, accepted, or from
which a structure was removed under
the acquisition or relocation program
other than: (a) A public facility that is
open on all sides and functionally
related to a designated open space (e.g.,
a park, campground, or outdoor
recreation area); (b) a rest room; or (c)

a flood control structure, provided that
structure does not reduce valley storage,
increase erosive velocities, or increase
flood heights on the opposite bank,
upstream, or downstream and that the
local floodplain manager approves, in
writing, before the commencement of
the construction of the structure.

3. After receipt of the assistance, with
respect to any property acquired,
accepted, or from which a structure was
removed under the acquisition or
relocation program, no subsequent
application for additional disaster
assistance for any purpose or to repair
damage or make improvements of any
sort will be made by the recipient to any
Federal entity in perpetuity.

The entity acquiring the property may
lease it to adjacent property owners or
other parties for compatible uses in
return for a maintenance agreement.
Although Federal policy encourages
leasing rather than selling such
property, the property may also be sold.

In all cases, a deed restriction or
covenant running with the property
must require that the buyout property be
dedicated and maintained for
compatible uses in perpetuity.

4. Grantees have the discretion to
determine an appropriate valuation
method (including the use of pre-flood
value or post-flood value as a basis for
property value). However, in using
CDBG-DR funds for buyouts, the
grantee must uniformly apply
whichever valuation method it chooses.

5. All buyout activities must be
classified using the “buyout” activity
type in the DRGR system.

6. Any State grantee implementing a
buyout program or activity must consult
with affected UGLGs.

7. When undertaking buyout
activities, in order to demonstrate that a
buyout meets the low- and moderate-
income housing national objective,
grantees must meet all requirements of
the HCD Act and applicable regulatory
criteria described below. Grantees are
encouraged to consult with HUD prior
to undertaking a buyout program with
the intent of using the low- and
moderate-income housing (LMH)
national objective. 42 U.S.C. 5305(c)(3)
provides that any assisted activity under
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this chapter that involves the
acquisition or rehabilitation of property
to provide housing shall be considered
to benefit persons of low- and moderate-
income only to the extent such housing
will, upon completion, be occupied by
such persons. In addition, the State
CDBG regulations at 24 CFR
570.483(b)(3) and entitlement CDBG
regulations at 24 CFR 570.208(a)(3)
apply the LMH national objective to an
eligible activity carried out for the
purpose of providing or improving
permanent residential structures that,
upon completion, will be occupied by
low- and moderate-income households.
Therefore, a buyout program that merely
pays homeowners to leave their existing
homes does not result in a low- and
moderate-income household occupying
a residential structure and, thus, cannot
meet the requirements of the LMH
national objective. Buyout programs that
assist low- and moderate-income
persons can be structured in one of the
following ways:

(a) The buyout program combines the
acquisition of properties with another
direct benefit—Low- and Moderate-
Income housing activity, such as down
payment assistance—that results in
occupancy and otherwise meets the
applicable LMH national objective
criteria in 24 CFR part 570 (e.g., if the
structure contains more than two
dwelling units, at least 51 percent of the
units must be occupied by low- and
moderate-income households;

(b) The program meets the low- and
moderate income area benefit criteria to
demonstrate national objective
compliance, provided that the grantee
can document that the properties
acquired through buyouts will be used
in a way that benefits all of the residents
in a particular area where at least 51
percent of the residents are low- and
moderate-income persons. When using
the area benefit approach, grantees must
define the service area based on the end
use of the buyout properties; or

(c) The program meets the criteria for
the low- and moderate-income limited
clientele national objective, including
the prohibition on the use of the limited
clientele national objective when an
activity’s benefits are available to all
residents of the area. A buyout program
could meet the national objective
criteria for the limited clientele national
objective if it restricts buyout program
eligibility to exclusively low- and
moderate-income persons, and the
buyout provides an actual benefit to the
low- and moderate income sellers by
providing pre-disaster valuation
uniformly to those who participate in
the program.

c. Redevelopment of acquired
properties.

1. Properties purchased through a
buyout program may not typically be
redeveloped, with a few exceiations. (see
subparagraph a.2 above).

2. Grantees may redevelop an
acquired property if the property is not
acquired through a buyout program and
the purchase price is based on the
property’s post-disaster value,
consistent with applicable cost
principles (the pre-disaster value may
not be used). In addition to the purchase
price, grantees may opt to provide
relocation assistance to the owner of a
property that will be redeveloped if the
property is purchased by the grantee or
subrecipient through voluntary
acquisition, and the owner’s need for
additional assistance is documented.

3. In carrying out acquisition
activities, grantees must ensure they are
in compliance with their long-term
redevelopment plans.

36. Alternative requirement for
housing rehabilitation—assistance for
second homes. The Department is
instituting an alternative requirement to
the rehabilitation provisions at 42
U.S.C. 5305(a) as follows: Properties
that served as second homes at the time
of the disaster, or following the disaster,
are not eligible for rehabilitation
assistance, residential incentives, or to
participate in a CDBG-DR buyout
program (as defined by this notice).
“Second homes” are defined in Internal
Revenue Service (IRS) Publication 936
(Mortgage Interest Deductions).

37. Flood insurance. Grantees,
recipients, and subrecipients must
implement procedures and mechanisms
to ensure that assisted property owners
comply with all flood insurance
requirements, including the purchase
and notification requirements described
below, prior to providing assistance. For
additional information, please consult
with the field environmental officer in
the local HUD field office or review the
guidance on flood insurance
requirements on HUD's Web site.

a. Flood insurance purchase
requirements. HUD does not prohibit
the use of CDBG-DR funds for existing
residential buildings in a Special Flood
Hazard Area (or 100-year floodplain).
However, Federal, State, local, and
tribal laws and regulations related to
both flood insurance and floodplain
management must be followed, as
applicable. With respect to flood
insurance, a HUD-assisted homeowner
for a property located in a Special Flood
Hazard Area must obtain and maintain
flood insurance in the amount and
duration prescribed by FEMA'’s National
Flood Insurance Program. Section 102(a)

of the Flood Disaster Protection Act of
1973 (42 U.S.C. 4012a) mandates the
purchase of flood insurance protection
for any HUD-assisted property within a
Special Flood Hazard Area. HUD also
recommends the purchase of flood
insurance outside of a Special Flood
Hazard Area for properties that have
been damaged by a flood, to better
protect property owners from the
economic risks of future floods and
reduce dependence on Federal disaster
assistance in the future, but this is not
a requirement.

b. Future Federal assistance to owners
remaining in a floodplain.

1. Section 582 of the National Flood
Insurance Reform Act of 1994, as
amended, (42 U.S.C. 5154a) prohibits
flood disaster assistance in certain
circumstances. In general, it provides
that no Federal disaster relief assistance
made available in a flood disaster area
may be used to make a payment
(including any loan assistance payment)
to a person for repair, replacement, or
restoration for damage to any personal,
residential, or commercial property if
that person at any time has received
Federal flood disaster assistance that
was conditioned on the person first
having obtained flood insurance under
applicable Federal law and the person
has subsequently failed to obtain and
maintain flood insurance as required
under applicable Federal law on such
property. This means that a grantee may
not provide disaster assistance for the
repair, replacement, or restoration to a
person who has failed to meet this
requirement and must implement a
process to check and monitor for
compliance.

2. Section 582 also imposes a
responsibility on a grantee that receives
CDBG-DR funds or that designates
annually appropriated CDBG funds for
disaster recovery. That responsibility is
to inform property owners receiving
disaster assistance that triggers the flood
insurance purchase requirement that
they have a statutory responsibility to
notify any transferee of the requirement
to obtain and maintain flood insurance,
and that the transferring owner may be
liable if he or she fails to do so. These
requirements are enumerated at hittp://
uscode.house.gov/view.xhtml?req=
granuleid:U.S.C.-prelim-title42-section
5154a&num=06&edition=prelim.

C. Infrastructure (Public Facilities,
Public Improvements, Public Buildings)

38. Buildings for the general conduct
of government. 42 U.S.C. 5305(a) is
waived to the extent necessary to allow
grantees to fund the rehabilitation or
reconstruction of public buildings that
are otherwise ineligible. HUD believes



Federal Register/Vol. 81, No. 224 /Monday, November

21, 2016/ Notices 83273

this waiver is consistent with the overall
purposes of the HCD Act, and is
necessary for many grantees to
adequately address critical
infrastructure needs created by the
disaster.

39. Elevation of Nonresidential
Structures. Nonresidential structures
must be elevated or floodproofed, in
accordance with FEMA floodproofing
standards at 44 CFR 60.3(c)(3)(ii) or
successor standard, up to at least two
feet above the 1 percent annual
floodplain. All Critical Actions, as
defined at 24 CFR 55.2(b)(3), within the
0.2 percent annual floodplain (or 500~
year) floodplain must be elevated or
floodproofed (in accordance with the
FEMA standards) to the higher of the 0.2
percent annual floodplain flood
elevation or three feet above the 1
percent annual floodplain. If the 0.2
percent annual floodplain or elevation
is unavailable for Critical Actions, and
the structure is in the 1 percent annual
floodplain, then the structure must be
elevated or floodproofed at least three
feet above the 1 percent annual
floodplain level. Applicable State, local,
and tribal codes and standards for
floodplain management that exceed
these requirements, including elevation,
setbacks, and cumulative substantial
damage requirements, will be followed.

40. Use of CDBG as Match.
Additionally, as provided by the HCD
Act, funds may be used to meet a
matching, share, or contribution
requirement for any other Federal
program when used to carry out an
eligible CDBG-DR activity. This
includes programs or activities
administered by the Federal Emergency
Management Agency (FEMA) or the U.S.
Army Corps of Engineers (USACE). By
law, the amount of CDBG-DR funds that
may be contributed to a USACE project
is $250,000 or less. Note that the
Appropriations Act prohibits the use of
CDBG-DR funds for any activity
reimbursable by, or for which funds are
also made available by FEMA or
USACE.

D. Economic Revitalization.

41. National Objective Documentation
for Economic Revitalization Activities.
24 CFR 570.483(b)(4)(i) is waived to
allow the grantees under this notice to
identify the low- and moderate-income
jobs benefit by documenting, for each
person employed, the name of the
business, type of job, and the annual
wages or salary of the job. HUD will
consider the person income-qualified if
the annual wages or salary of the job is
at or under the HUD-established income
limit for a one-person family. This
method replaces the standard CDBG

requirement—in which grantees must
review the annual wages or salary of a
job in comparison to the person’s total
household income and size (i.e., the
number of persons). Thus, it streamlines
the documentation process because it
allows the collection of wage data for
each position created or retained from
the assisted businesses, rather than from
each individual household.

42. Public benefit for certain
Economic Revitalization activities. The
public benefit provisions set standards
for individual economic revitalization
activities (such as a single loan to a
business) and for economic
revitalization activities in the aggregate.
Currently, public benefit standards limit
the amount of CDBG assistance per job
retained or created, or the amount of
CDBG assistance per low- and moderate-
income person to which goods or
services are provided by the activity.
These dollar thresholds were set two
decades ago and can impede recovery
by limiting the amount of assistance the
grantee may provide to a critical
activity.

This notice waives the public benefit
standards at 42 U.S.C. 5305(e)(3), 24
CFR 570.482(f}(1), (£)(2), (£(3), (f)(4)(i),
(f)(5), and (f)(6) for economic
revitalization activities designed to
create or retain jobs or businesses
(including, but not limited to, long-term,
short-term, and infrastructure projects).
However, grantees shall report and
maintain documentation on the creation
and retention of total jobs; the number
of jobs within certain salary ranges; the
average amount of assistance provided
per job, by activity or program; and the
types of jobs. Paragraph (g) of 24 CFR
570.482 is also waived to the extent
these provisions are related to public
benefit.

43. Clarifying note on Section 3
resident eligibility and documentation
requirements. The definition of “low-
income persons” in 12 U.S.C. 1701u and
24 CFR 135.5 is the basis for eligibility
as a section 3 resident. This notice
authorizes grantees to determine that an
individual is eligible to be considered a
section 3 resident if the annual wages or
salary of the person are at, or under, the
HUD-established income limit for a one-
person family for the jurisdiction. This
authority does not impact other section
3 resident eligibility requirements in 24
CFR 135.5. All direct recipients of
CDBG-DR funding must submit form
HUD-60002 annually through the
Section 3 Performance Evaluation and
Registry System (SPEARS) which can be
found on HUD's Web site: htip://portal.
hud.gov/hudportal/HUD?src=/program_
offices/fair_housing_equal_opp/
section3/section3/spears.

44, Waiver and modification of the job
relocation clause to permit assistance to
help a business return. CDBG
requirements prevent program
participants from providing assistance
to a business to relocate from one labor
market area to another if the relocation
is likely to result in a significant loss of
jobs in the labor market from which the
business moved. This prohibition can be
a critical barrier to reestablishing and
rebuilding a displaced employment base
after a major disaster. Therefore, 42
U.S.C. 5305(h), 24 CFR 570.210, and 24
CFR 570.482 are waived to allow a
grantee to provide assistance to any
business that was operating in the
disaster-declared labor market area
before the incident date of the
applicable disaster and has since
moved, in whole or in part, from the
affected area to another State or to a
labor market area within the same State
to continue business.

45. Prioritizing small businesses. To
target assistance to small businesses, the
Department is instituting an alternative
requirement to the provisions at 42
U.S.C. 5305(a) to require grantees to
prioritize assisting businesses that meet
the definition of a small business as
defined by SBA at 13 CFR part 121 or,
for businesses engaged in ‘‘farming
operations” as defined at 7 CFR 1400.3,
and that meet the United States
Department of Agriculture Farm Service
Agency (FSA), criteria that are described
at 7 CFR 1400.500, which are used by
the FSA to determine eligibility for
certain assistance programs.

46. Prohibiting assistance to private
utilities. Funds made available under
this notice may not be used to assist a
privately owned utility for any purpose.

E. Certifications and Collection of
Information

47. Certifications waiver and
alternative requirement. 24 CFR 91.325
is waived. Each State receiving a direct
allocation under this notice must make
the following certifications with its
action plan:

a. The grantee certifies that it has in
effect and is following a residential anti-
displacement and relocation assistance
plan in connection with any activity
assisted with funding under the CDBG
program.

b. The grantee certifies its compliance
with restrictions on lobbying required
by 24 CFR part 87, together with
disclosure forms, if required by part 87.

c. The grantee certifies that the action
plan for disaster recovery is authorized
under State and local law (as applicable)
and that the grantee, and any entity or
entities designated by the grantee, and
any contractor, subrecipient, or
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designated public agency carrying out
an activity with CDBG-DR funds,
possess(es) the legal authority to carry
out the program for which it is seeking
funding, in accordance with applicable
HUD regulations and this notice. The
grantee certifies that activities to be
undertaken with funds under this notice
are consistent with its action plan.

d. The grantee certifies that it will
comply with the acquisition and
relocation requirements of the URA, as
amended, and implementing regulations
at 49 CFR part 24, except where waivers
or alternative requirements are provided
for in this notice.

e. The grantee certifies that it will
comply with section 3 of the Housing
and Urban Development Act of 1968 (12
U.S.C. 1701u), and implementing
regulations at 24 CFR part 135.

. The grantee certifies that it is
following a detailed citizen
participation plan that satisfies the
requirements of 24 CFR 91.115 (except
as provided for in notices providing
waivers and alternative requirements for
this grant}. Also, each UGLG receiving
assistance from a State grantee must
follow a detailed citizen participation
plan that satisfies the requirements of 24
CFR 570.486 (except as provided for in
notices providing waivers and
alternative requirements for this grant).

g. The grantee certifies that it has
consulted with affected UGLGs in
counties designated in covered major
disaster declarations in the non-
entitlement, entitlement, and tribal
areas of the State in determining the
uses of funds, including the method of
distribution of funding, or activities
carried out directly by the State.

h. The grantee certifies that it is
complying with each of the following
criteria:

1. Funds will be used solely for
necessary expenses related to disaster
relief, long-term recovery, restoration of
infrastructure and housing and
economic revitalization in the most
impacted and distressed areas for which
the President declared a major disaster
in 2016 pursuant to the Robert T.
Stafford Disaster Relief and Emergency
Assistance Act of 1974 (42 U.S.C. 5121
et seq.) but prior to September 29, 2016.

2. With respect to activities expected
to be assisted with CDBG-DR funds, the
action plan has been developed so as to
give the maximum feasible priority to
activities that will benefit low- and
moderate-income families.

3. The aggregate use of CDBG-DR
funds shall principally benefit low- and
moderate-income families in a manner
that ensures that at least 70 percent (or
another percentage permitted by HUD in
a waiver published in an applicable

Federal Register notice) of the grant
amount is expended for activities that
benefit such persons.

4. The grantee will not attempt to
recover any capital costs of public
improvements assisted with CDBG-DR
grant funds, by assessing any amount
against properties owned and occupied
by persons of low- and moderate-
income, including any fee charged or
assessment made as a condition of
obtaining access to such public
improvements, unless: (a) Disaster
recovery grant funds are used to pay the
proportion of such fee or assessment
that relates to the capital costs of such
public improvements that are financed
from revenue sources other than under
this title; or (b) for purposes of assessing
any amount against properties owned
and occupied by persons of moderate
income, the grantee certifies to the
Secretary that it lacks sufficient CDBG
funds (in any form) to comply with the
requirements of clause (a).

i. The grantee certifies that the grant
will be conducted and administered in
conformity with title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. 2000d).

j. The grantee certifies that the grant
will be conducted and administered in
conformity with the Fair Housing Act
(42 U.S.C. 3601-3619) and
implementing regulations, and that it
will affirmatively further fair housing,
which means that it will take
meaningful actions to further the goals
identified in an AFH conducted in
accordance with the requirements of 24
CFR 5.150 through 5.180, and that it
will take no action that is materially
inconsistent with its obligation to
affirmatively further fair housing.

k. The grantee certifies that itias
adopted and is enforcing the following
policies, and, in addition, States
receiving a direct award must certify
that they will require UGLGs that
receive grant funds to certify that they
have adopted and are enforcing:

1. A policy prohibiting the use of
excessive force by law enforcement
agencies within its jurisdiction against
any individuals engaged in nonviolent
civil rights demonstrations; and

2. A policy of enforcing applicable
State and local laws against physically
barring entrance to or exit from a facility
or location that is the subject of such
nonviolent civil rights demonstrations
within its jurisdiction.

1. The grantee certifies that it (and any
subrecipient or administering entity)
currently has or will develop and
maintain the capacity to carry out
disaster recovery activities in a timely
manner and that the grantee has
reviewed the requirements of this notice
and requirements of the Appropriations

Act applicable to funds allocated by this
notice, and certifies to the accuracy of
its certification documentation
referenced at A.1.a. under section VI
and its risk analysis document
referenced at A.1.b. under section VI.

m. The grantee certifies that it will not
use CDBG-DR funds for any activity in
an area identified as flood prone for
land use or hazard mitigation planning
purposes by the State, local, or tribal
government or delineated as a Special
Flood Hazard Area in FEMA’s most
current flood advisory maps, unless it
also ensures that the action is designed
or modified to minimize harm to or
within the floodplain, in accordance
with Executive Order 11988 and 24 CFR
part 55. The relevant data source for this
provision is the State, local, and tribal
government land use regulations and
hazard mitigation plans and the latest-
issued FEMA data or guidance, which
includes advisory data (such as
Advisory Base Flood Elevations) or
preliminary and final Flood Insurance
Rate Maps.

n. The grantee certifies that its
activities concerning lead-based paint
will comply with the requirements of 24
CFR part 35, subparts A, B, J, K, and R.

o. The grantee certifies that it will
comply with environmental
requirements at 24 CFR part 58.

p. The grantee certifies that it will
comply with applicable laws.

VIL Duration of Funding

The Appropriations Act directs that
these funds be available until expended.
However, in accordance with 31 U.S.C.
1555, HUD shall close the appropriation
account and cancel any remaining
obligated or unobligated balance if the
Secretary or the President determines
that the purposes for which the
appropriation has been made have been
carried out and no disbursements have
been made against the appropriation for
two consecutive fiscal years. In such
case, the funds shall not be available for
obligation or expenditure for any
purpose after the account is closed.

VIII. Catalog of Federal Domestic
Assistance

The Catalog of Federal Domestic
Assistance numbers for the disaster
recovery grants under this notice are as
follows: 14.218; 14.228.

IX. Finding of No Significant Impact

A Finding of No Significant Impact
(FONSI) with respect to the
environment has been made in
accordance with HUD regulations at 24
CFR part 50, which implement section
102(2)(C) of the National Environmental
Policy Act of 1969 (42 U.S.C.
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4332(2)(C)). The FONSI is available for
public inspection between 8 a.m. and 5
p.m. weekdays in the Regulations
Division, Office of General Counsel,
Department of Housing and Urban
Development, 451 7th Street SW., Room
10276, Washington, DC 20410-0500.
Due to security measures at the HUD
Headquarters building, an advance
appointment to review the docket file
must be scheduled by calling the
Regulations Division at 202—708-3055
(this is not a toll-free number). Hearing-
or speech-impaired individuals may
access this number through TTY by
calling the Federal Relay Service at 800—
877-8339 (this is a toll-free number).

Dated: November 15, 2016.
Nani A. Coloretti,
Deputy Secretary.

Appendix A—Allocation of CDBG-DR
Funds to Most Impacted and Distressed
Areas Due to 2016 Federally Declared
Disasters Thru September 29, 2016

This section describes the methods behind
HUD’s allocation of $500 million in the 2016
CDBG-DR Funds. Section 145(a) of Division
C of the Continuing Appropriations Act,
Public Law 114-223, enacted on September
29, 2016, appropriates $500 million through
the Community Development Block Grant
(CDBG) program for necessary expenses for
authorized activities related to disaster relief,
long-term recovery, restoration of
infrastructure and housing, and economic
revitalization in the most impacted and
distressed areas resulting from a major
disaster declared in 2016 and occurring prior
to September 29, 2016.

This section requires that funds be
awarded directly to the State or unit of
general local government at the discretion of
the Secretary. The key underlying metric
used in the allocation process is the unmet
need that remains to be addressed from
qualifying disasters. Although funds may be
used to address infrastructure and economic
revitalization needs in addition to housing,
this allocation only uses unmet needs related
to housing to determine the most impacted
and distressed areas that are eligible for
grants and then to determine the amount of
funding to be made available to each grantee.
HUD only uses unmet housing needs for two
reasons: (1) There is very limited data on
infrastructure and economic revitalization
unmet needs for the largest of the eligible
disasters, and (2) the total funding provided
thro&lgh this allocation is limited relative to
need.

Methods for estimating unmet housing
needs. The data HUD staff have identified as
being available to calculate unmet needs for
qualifying disasters come from the FEMA
Individual Assistance program data on
housing-unit damage as of September 28,
2016.

The core data on housing damage for both
the unmet housing needs calculation and the
concentrated damage are based on home
inspection data for FEMA'’s Individual
Assistance program. HUD calculates “unmet

housing needs" as the number of housing
units with unmet needs times the estimated
cost to repair those units less repair funds
already provided by FEMA, where:

Each of the FEMA inspected owner units
are categorized by HUD into one of five
categories:

O Minor-Low: Less than $3,000 of FEMA
inspected real property damage.

O Minor-High: $3,000 to $7,999 of FEMA
inspected real property damage.

O Major-Low: $8,000 to $14,999 of FEMA
inspected real property damage.

O Major-High: $15,000 to $28,800 of FEMA
inspected real property damage and/or 4 to
6 feet of flooding on the first floor.

O Severe: Greater than $28,800 of FEMA
inspected real property damage or
determined destroyed and/or 6 or more feet
of flooding on the first floor.

To meet the statutory requirement of “most
impacted” in this legislative language, homes
are determined to have a high level of
damage if they have damage of *“major-low”
or higher. That is, they have a real property
FEMA inspected damage of $8,000 or
flooding over 1 foot. Furthermore, a
homeowner is determined to have unmet
needs if they reported damage and no
insurance to cover that damage.

FEMA does not inspect rental units for real
property damage so personal property
damage is used as a proxy for unit damage.
Each of the FEMA inspected renter units are
categorized by HUD into one of five
categories:

O Minor-Low: Less than $1,000 of FEMA
inspected personal property damage.

O Minor-High: $1,000 to $1,999 of FEMA
inspected personal property damage.

O Major-Low: $2,000 to $3,499 of FEMA
inspected personal property damage.

O Major-High: $3,500 to $7,499 of FEMA
inspected personal property damage or 4 to
6 feet of flooding on the first floor.

O Severe: Greater than $7,500 of FEMA
inspected personal property damage or
determined destroyed and/or 6 or more feet
of flooding on the first floor.

For rental properties, to meet the statutory
requirement of “most impacted” in this
legislative language, homes are determined to
have a high level of damage if they have
damage of “major-low” or higher. That is,
they have a FEMA personal property damage
assessment of $2,000 or greater or flooding
over 1 foot. Furthermore, landlords are
presumed to have adequate insurance
coverage unless the unit is occupied by a
renter with income of $20,000 or less. Units
that are occupied by a tenant with income
less than $20,000 are used to calculate likely
unmet needs for affordable rental housing.

The average cost to fully repair a home for
a specific disaster to code within each of the
damage categories noted above is calculated
using the average real property damage repair
costs determined by the Small Business
Administration for its disaster loan program
for the subset of homes inspected by both
SBA and FEMA for 2011 to 2013 disasters.
Because SBA is inspecting for full repair
costs, it is presumed to reflect the full cost
to repair the home, which is generally more
than the FEMA estimates on the cost to make
the home habitable.

For each household determined to have
unmet housing needs (as described above),
their estimated average unmet housing need
less assumed assistance from FEMA, SBA,
and Insurance was calculated at $27,455 for
major damage (low); $45,688 for major
damage (high); and $59,493 for severe
damage.

Most Impacted and Distressed Designation.
President Obama signed the Continuing
Resolution into law on September 29, 2016
and 33 disasters had received major
declarations in calendar year 2016 by that
date. To meet the statutory requirement that
the funds be targeted to “the most impacted
or distressed areas,” this allocation:

(1) Limits allocations to those disasters
where FEMA had determined the damage
was sufficient to declare the disaster as
eligible to receive Individual and Households
Program (IHP) funding. Only 11 of 33
disasters that were declared in 2016 have an
IHP designation.

(2) Limits the allocations to data from
counties with high levels of damage. For this
allocation, HUD is using the amount of
serious unmet housing need as its measure of
concentrated damage and limits the data
used for the allocation only to counties
exceeding a “natural break” in the data for
their total amount of serious unmet housing
needs. For the 2016 events, the serious unmet
housing needs break at the county level
occurs at $25 million.

(3) Among disasters with data meeting the
first two thresholds, HUD limits the
allocation to jurisdictions that have
substantially higher unmet needs than other
jurisdictions. Louisiana, Texas, and West
Virginia have far greater unmet needs than
other jurisdictions affected by major disasters
declared since January 1, 2016.

[FR Doc. 2016—27869 Filed 11-18—16; 8:45 am]
BILLING CODE 4210-67-P

DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND
URBAN DEVELOPMENT

[Docket No. FR- 5849-N-10]

Notice of a Federal Advisory
Committee; Manufactured Housing
Consensus Committee;
Teleconference

AGENCY: Office of the Assistant
Secretary for Housing—Federal Housing
Commissioner, Department of Housing
and Urban Development (HUD).

ACTION: Notice of a Federal Advisory
Committee Meeting: Manufactured
Housing Consensus Committee (MHCC).

SUMMARY: This notice sets forth the
schedule and proposed agenda for a
teleconference meeting of the MHCC.
The teleconference meeting is open to
the public. The agenda provides an
opportunity for citizens to comment on
the business before the MHCC.

DATES: The teleconference meeting will
be held on December 12, 2016, 1:00 p.m.
to 4:00 p.m. Eastern Standard Time



Attachment 3

CDBG-DR Rider

The contract contemplated under the preceding Request for Proposals (RFP) is funded in part by a
Community Development Block Grant Disaster Recovery grant (“CDBG-DR”) from the
Department of Housing and Urban Development (“HUD”). This CDBG — DR Rider contains
supplementary general conditions which will apply as required to the contract entered into with the
procured contractor(s) (“Contractor”). Accordingly, this CDBG-DR Rider shall be included as an
attachment, expressly made a part thereof, and fully incorporated therein by reference.

SECTION 3 NOTICE

HUD has previously issued proposed amendments to the Section 3 regulations in 24 CFR Part 135.
If HUD finalizes and promulgates the amendments to 24 CFR Part 135 during the term of this
Agreement, the Contractor will be required to adhere to the amended 24 CFR Part 135.
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ARTICLE 1. DEFINITIONS
As used in this CDBG-DR Rider:

(a) “Act” means Title 1 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 (Pub. L. 93-383)
as amended.

(b) “Agreement” means the “contract” (as defined by 2 CFR § 200.22) between WVDO and the
Contractor.

(c) “State” means the State of West Virginia by and through the West Virginia Development Office
(WVDO).

(d) “Construction” means the building, rehabilitation, alteration, conversion, extension, demolition,
painting or repair of any improvement to real property.

(e) “Contractor” means the entity or entities executing a contract entered into as a result of this
RFP, other than WVDO.

(f) “Equipment” means tangible personal property (including information technology systems)
having a useful life of more than one year and a per-unit acquisition cost which equals or exceeds $5,000.

(g) “Grant” means Community Development Block Grant Program funds provided to the State of
West Virginia by the Federal Department of Housing and Urban Development or a pass-through entity.

(h) “HUD” means the Secretary of Housing and Urban Development or a person authorized to act
on his or her behalf.

(i) “Program(s)” means the West Virginia Community Development Block Grant Program —
Disaster Recovery approved by HUD and contemplated under the RFP as the same may from time to time
be amended.

(k) "Real property” means land, including land improvements, structures and appurtenances
thereto, but excludes moveable machinery and moveable equipment.

(1) “Subcontractor” means any person, firm or corporation, other than employees of the Contractor
or another subcontractor who is engaged by the Contractor to furnish (i) services, (ii) labor or (iii) services
and/or labor and materials at the site of the work performed under this Agreement.

ARTICLE2. HOUSING AND COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT ACT_ AND NATIONAL
ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY ACT

The Agreement is subject to Title 1 of the Housing and Community Development Act of 1974 (P.L. 93-
383) as amended (The Act) and all rules, regulations and requirements now issued or hereafter issued
pursuant to the Act; the Agreement may be suspended and/or terminated without liability to the State if the
Grant to the State pursuant to the Act is suspended or terminated, and unless and until the State or WVDO
receives Community Development funds in an amount that is deemed sufficient to enable it to fund the
Agreement, the State or WVDO is under no obligation to make any payments to the Contractor. In this
regard, WVDO is under no obligation to make any payments to the Contractor, and shall not make any such
payment, and the Contractor shall not commence performance, until:



(@) WVDO has received from HUD an Authorization to Use Grant Funds and/or instructions to
proceed, evidencing compliance with the National Environmental Policy Act, as amended, and with
regulations of the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development, related thereto, found at
24 CFR Part 58, and

(b) the Contractor has been notified of such instructions by WVDO. Furthermore, the Contractor and
WVDO mutually agree that the Contractor shall not advance any funds, from any source without
limitation, to pay for costs intended to be paid for under the Agreement prior to the receipt and
notification described in this paragraph (a), and WVDO shall not reimburse the Contractor for any
costs incurred in violation of this provision.

ARTICLE 3. LABOR REQUIREMENTS

The following labor requirements shall be applicable to the Agreement and must be included in all
subcontracts entered into by the Contractor.

(a) Section 3. This Agreement is subject to Section 3 of the Housing and Urban Development Act of
1968 (P.L. 90-448) and implementing regulations at 24 CFR Part 135, as may be amended during
the term of this Agreement. Pursuant to 24 CFR § 135.38, the Contractor agrees to the following:

1.

The work to be performed under the Agreement is subject to the requirements of Section 3
of the Housing and Urban Development Act of 1968, as amended, 12 U.S.C. § 1701 u
(Section 3). The purpose of Section 3 is to ensure that employment and other economic
opportunities generated by HUD assistance or HUD-assisted projects covered by Section 3
shall, to the greatest extent feasible, be directed to low- and very low-income persons,
particularly persons who are recipients of HUD assistance for housing.

The parties to the Agreement agree to comply with HUD’s regulations in 24 CFR Part 135,
which implement Section 3. As evidenced by their execution of this Agreement, the parties
to the Agreement certify that they are under no contractual or other impediments that
would prevent them from complying with the Part 135 regulations.

The Contractor agrees to send to each labor organization or representative of workers with
which the Contractor has a collective bargaining agreement or other understanding, if any,
a notice advising the labor organization or workers’ representative of the Contractor’s
commitments under this Section 3 clause, and will post copies of the notice in conspicuous
places at the work site where both employees and applicants for training and employment
positions can see the notice. The notice shall describe the Section 3 preference, shall set
forth minimum number and job titles subject to hire, availability of apprenticeship and
training positions, the qualifications for each; and the name and location of the person(s)
taking applications for each of the positions; and the anticipated date the work shall begin.

The Contractor agrees to include this Section 3 clause in every subcontract subject to
compliance with regulations in 24 CFR Part 135, and agrees to take appropriate action, as
provided in an applicable provision of the subcontract or in this Section 3 clause, upon a
finding that the subcontractor is in violation of the regulations in 24 CFR Part 135. The
Contractor will not subcontract with any subcontractor where the Contractor has notice or
knowledge that the Subcontractor has been found in violation of the regulations in 24 CFR
Part 135.



5. The Contractor will certify that any vacant employment positions, including training
positions, that are filled (1) after the Contractor is selected but before the Agreement is
executed, and (2) with persons other than those to whom the regulations of 24 CFR Part
135 require employment opportunities to be directed, were not filled to circumvent the
Contractor’s obligations under 24 CFR Part 135.

6. Noncompliance with HUD’s regulations in 24 CFR Part 135 may result in sanctions,
termination of the Agreement for default, and debarment or suspension from future HUD
assisted contracts.

7. With respect to work performed in connection with Section 3 covered Indian Housing
Assistance, Section 7(b) of the Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act
(25 U.S.C. 450¢) also applies to the work to be performed under the Agreement. Section
7(b) requires that to the greatest extent feasible (i) preference and opportunities for training
and employment shall be given to Indians, and (ii) preference in the award of contracts and
subcontracts shall be given to Indian organizations and Indian-owned Economic
Enterprises. Parties to the Agreement that are subject to the provisions of Section 3 and
Section 7(b) agree to comply with Section 3 to the maximum extent feasible, but not in
derogation of compliance with Section 7(b).

8. The Contractor agrees to submit, and shall cause its subcontractors to submit, quarterly
reports to the State detailing the number of new employees hired, the number of new
Section 3 employees hired, and any affirmative efforts made to direct hiring efforts to low-
and very low-income persons, particularly persons who are recipients of HUD assistance
for housing during the previous quarter.

(b) The Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. §§ 3141 et seq.). In Construction contracts involving an excess
of $2000, unless exclusively in connection with the rehabilitation of residential property containing
fewer than 8 units, the Contractor shall pay all laborers and mechanics at a rate not less than those
determined by the Secretary of Labor to be prevailing for the State, which rates are to be provided
by the State. These wage rates are a federally mandated minimum only, and will be superseded by
any State or State requirement mandating higher wage rates. The Contractor also agrees to comply
with Department of Labor Regulations pursuant to the Davis-Bacon Act found in 29 CFR Parts 1,
3, 5 and 7, which enforce statutory labor standards provisions. This provision supersedes section
D(1)(a) of the Uniform Federal Contract Provisions Rider for Federally Funded Procurement
Contracts.

(c) Overtime. In Construction contracts involving an excess of $2000, and subject to the exception in
24 CFR section 570.603 (regarding the rehabilitation of residential property containing less than 8
units), Contractor shall comply and with sections 103 and 107 of the Contract Work Hours and
Safe Standards Act (40 U.S.C. §§ 3701 et seq.), which provides that no laborer or mechanic shall
be required or permitted to work more than eight hours in a calendar day or in excess of forty hours
in any workweek, unless such laborer or mechanic is paid at an overtime rate of 1% times his/her
basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of these limits. In the event of a violation of this
provision, the Contractor shall not only be liable to any affected employee for his/her unpaid
wages, but shall be additionally liable to the United States for liquidated damages. This provision
supersedes section D(1)(b) of the Uniform Federal Contract Provisions Rider for Federally
Funded Procurement Contracts.

ARTICLE 4. {Reserved}



ARTICLE 5. FEDERAL NON-DISCRIMINATION LAWS

The Agreement is subject to:

(@)

Section 109 of the Act, which requires that no person in the United States shall on the grounds of
race, color, national origin, religion, or sex be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits
of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial
assistance made available pursuant to the Act. Section 109 also directs that the prohibitions against
discrimination on the basis of age under the Age Discrimination Act and the prohibitions against
discrimination on the basis of disability under Section 504 shall apply to programs or activities
receiving Federal financial assistance under Title I programs. The Contractor agrees to comply with
provisions of 24 CFR Part 6, 8, and 146.

(b) Title VIII of the Civil Rights Act of 1968 (P.L. 90-284; 42 U.S.C. §§ 3602-3620), as amended,

(©)

which prohibits discrimination in the sale or rental of housing and in the provision of brokerage
services based on race, color, religion, sex, national origin, disability, or familial status, and which
requires affirmative action in the furtherance of Fair Housing objectives.

Executive Order 11063, as amended by Executive Order 12259, pursuant to regulations issued at 24
CFR Part 107, which prohibits discrimination on the basis of race, color, religion, sex or national
origin and requires equal opportunity in housing constructed, operated or provided with federal
funds.

(d) Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (P.L. 88-352; 42 U.S.C. §§ 2000d et seq.) and

(e)

®

implementing regulations in 24 CFR Part 1, which states that no person shall, on the ground of
race, color or national origin, be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or
otherwise be subject to discrimination under any Program or activity made possible by, or resulting
from, this Agreement.

Consistent with 24 CFR § 570.614, the Contractor warrants that all services, programs, and/or
Construction (including design and alteration) under this Agreement shall be performed in
accordance with all federal, state and local laws and regulations regarding accessibility standards
for persons with disabilities including, but not limited to, the following: Section 504 of the
Rehabilitation Act, the Architectural Barriers Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. § 4151-4157), the Uniform
Federal Accessibility Standards (Appendix A to 24 CFR Part 40 and Appendix A to 41 CFR Part
101-19, subpart 101-19.6), and the Americans with Disabilities Act (42 U.S.C. § 12131; 47 U.S.C.
§§ 155, 201, 218, and 225).

If the Contractor is, or may be deemed to be, a religious or denominational institution or
organization operated for religious purposes which is supervised or controlled by or in connection
with a religious or denominational institution or organization, the Contractor agrees that in
connection with services to be provided under this Agreement:

i. it shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment
on the basis of religion and shall not limit employment or give preference
in employment to persons on the basis of religion.

ii. it shall not discriminate against any person applying for such public
services on the basis of religion or religious belief and shall not limit such
services or give preference to persons on the basis of religion or religious
belief.



iii. it shall provide no religious instruction or counseling, conduct no religious
worship or services, engage in no religious proselytizing, and exert no
other religious influence in the provision of such public services.

iv. it shall not use CDBG funds for the acquisition, construction, or
rehabilitation of structures to the extent that those structures are used for
inherently religious activities. CDBG funds may be used for the
acquisition, construction, or rehabilitation of structures only to the extent
that those structures are used for conducting eligible activities under 24
CFR Part 570. Where a structure is used for both eligible and inherently
religious activities, CDBG funds may not exceed the cost of those portions
of the acquisition, construction, or rehabilitation that are attributable to
eligible activities in accordance with the cost accounting requirements
applicable to CDBG funds in 24 CFR Part 570. Sanctuaries, chapels, or
other rooms that a CDBG-funded religious congregation uses as its
principal place of worship, however, are ineligible for CDBG-funded
improvements. Disposition of real property is subject to 24 CFR §
570.200(3)(5). In addition, payment may be authorized for a portion of
eligible rehabilitation or construction costs attributable to the non-religious
use of a facility that is not used exclusively for religious purposes,
pursuant to Section VI(A)(4)(c) of HUD Docket No. FR-56960-N-01.

The non-discrimination provisions in this Article shall be incorporated in and made a part of all

subcontracts executed in connection with the Agreement.

(g) Along with WVDO, Contractor shall comply with all civil-rights related requirements, pursuant to

24 CFR § 570.503(b)(5).

ARTICLE 6. ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION: ENERGY EFFICIENCY; HISTORIC
PRESERVATION; FLOOD PROTECTION; LEAD-BASED PAINT

(a)

For agreements, subcontracts, and subgrants of amounts in excess of $150,000, the Contractor shall
comply with all applicable standards, orders, or requirements issued under the Clean Air Act (42
U.S.C. § 7401, Federal Water Pollution control Act (33 U.S.C. §§ 1251, et seq.) Section 508 of the
Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. § 1368), Executive Order 11738, and Environmental Protection
Agency regulations (provisions of 40 CFR Part 50 and 2 CFR Part 1532 related to the Clean Air
Act and Clean Water Act). Violations must be reported to the Federal Agency and the Regional
Office of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).

(b) The Contractor shall comply with mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency

(©)

that are contained in any of the State’s energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the
Energy Policy Conservation Act (Pub. L 94-163). Further, the Contractor shall comply with the
construction standards concerning energy efficiency set forth in the Notice attached to the RFP as
Attachment 2.

This Agreement is subject to laws and authorities listed in 24 CFR § 58.5, including the Historic
Preservation Act of 1966 (P.L. 89-665; 16 U.S.C. §§ 470 et seq.), the Archeological and Historic
Preservation Act of 1974 (P.L. 93-291; 16 U.S.C. §§ 469-469c), Executive Order 11593 and
regulations at 36 CFR Part 800. In general, this requires concurrence from the State Historic



Preservation Officer for all rehabilitation and demolition of historic properties that are fifty years
old or older or that are included on a Federal, state, or local historic property list.

(d) This Agreement is subject to the Lead-Based Paint Poison Prevention provisions found in 24 CFR
§ 570.608, the Lead-Based Paint Poisoning Prevention Act (42 U.S.C. §§ 4821-4846), the
Residential Lead Based Paint Hazard Reduction Act of 1992 (U.S.C. §§ 4851-4856, and 24 CFR
Part 35, subparts A, B, J, K, and R. This provision is to be included in all subcontracts, for work in
connection with this Agreement, which relate to residential structures.

(e) Pursuant to the provisions in 24 CFR § 570.605, Section 202(a) of the Flood Disaster Protection
Act of 1973 (42 U.S.C. § 4106), and the regulations in 44 CFR Parts 59-79 apply to this
Agreement.

ARTICLE 7. {Reserved}

ARTICLE 8. UNIFORM ADMINISTRATIVE REQUIREMENTS (INCLUDING

PROCUREMENT STANDARDS), COST PRINCIPLES, AND AUDIT REQUIREMENTS FOR
FEDERAL AWARDS

(a) Pursuant to 2 CFR § 2400.101 and 24 CFR § 85.1, Contractors are subject to the Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards at 2
CFR Part 200 (commonly referred to the “Super Circular”), as applicable.

(b) Contractors are subject to the Uniform Federal Contract Provisions Rider, attached hereto as
Exhibit 3-1.

ARTICLE 9. UNEARNED PAYMENTS: INCOME; DOCUMENTATION OF COSTS;
ACCOUNTING SYSTEM; FIDELITY BONDS: DISBURSEMENT RESTRICTIONS

(a) Unearned payments under this Agreement may be suspended or terminated upon refusal to accept
any additional conditions that may be imposed by HUD at any time, or if the Grant to the State
under the Act is suspended or terminated. Unearned payments received by the Contractor will be
returned to the State.

The Contractor agrees that if any income is generated from the Community Development Block
Grant Program funded activities, Contractor shall return such income to the State’s Community
Development Block Grant Program unless expressly authorized by the State. Such funds are
subject to all applicable requirements governing the use of Community Development Block Grant
funds, including 24 CFR § 570.503(b)(3), which provides that, at the end of the program year, the
State may require remittance of all or part of any program income balances (including investments
thereof) held by the WVDO (except those needed for immediate cash needs, cash balances of a
revolving loan fund, cash balances from a lump sum drawdown, or cash or investments held for
section 108 security needs). Alternative program requirements concerning the definition of
“program income” are set forth in Section VI(A)(17)(a)-(b) of Docket No. FR-56960-N-01, as
amended by Section II(5) of Docket No. FR-5710-N-01.



(b) All costs shall be supported by properly executed payrolls, time records, invoices, contracts, or

©)

vouchers, or other official documentation evidencing in proper detail the nature and propriety of the
charges. All checks, payrolls, invoices, contracts, vouchers, orders or other accounting documents,
pertaining in whole or in part to the Agreement, shall be clearly identified and readily accessible.

{reserved}

(d) If required by the Federal awarding agency or elsewhere in this Agreement, WVDO must receive a

(e)

statement from the Contractor’s chief fiscal officer or its insurer assuring that all persons handling
funds received or disbursed under this Agreement are covered by fidelity insurance in an amount
equal to cash advances from the State. If the bond is cancelled or coverage is substantially reduced,
the Contractor shall promptly notify the WVDO of this fact in every case not later than 48 hours.
In such event, WVDO shall not disburse any more funds to the Contractor until it has received
assurance that adequate coverage has subsequently been obtained.

No money under this Agreement shall be disbursed by the WVDO to any Contractor except
pursuant to a written contract which incorporates the applicable Supplementary General Conditions
and unless the Contractor is in compliance with HUD requirements with regard to accounting and
fiscal matters, to the extent they are applicable, and provided that the State has completed HUD
requirements, including but not limited to environmental certifications pursuant to 24 CFR Part 58.

ARTICLE 10. RECORDS AND AUDITS

(a)

Records shall be maintained in accordance with requirements prescribed by or in 2 CFR § 200.333,
WVDO, HUD and/or the State with respect to all matters covered by the Agreement and retained
for at least three years after the State makes final payments and all other pending matters
concerning the Agreement are closed, subject to the exceptions in 2 CFR § 200.333.

(b) At such times on such forms as WVDO, HUD and/or the State may require, there shall be furnished

(©)

to WVDO, HUD and/or the State such statements, records, reports, data and information, as
WVDO, HUD and/or the State may request pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement. Ata
minimum, such forms will include the following:

(i) Quarterly Data Collection Report forms for the purpose of including specific Program
description, accomplishment, expenditure and beneficiary information in the State’s
Quarterly Performance Reports.

(i)  Annual Property Register forms for the purpose of tracking the use of CDBG purchased
equipment.

At any time during normal business hours and as often as WVDO, the State, HUD, Inspector
General, U.S. General Accounting Office, and/or the Comptroller General of the United States may
deem necessary, the Contractor shall make available for examination to the State, HUD, Inspector
General, U.S. General Accounting Office and/or representatives of the Comptroller General all of
its books, accounts, records, reports, files, and other papers or property with respect to all matters
covered by this Agreement and shall permit WVDO, the State, HUD and/or representatives of the
Comptroller General and the U.S. General Accounting Office to audit, examine, make excerpts of,
and make transcriptions from such books, accounts, records, reports, files, and other papers or
property and to make audits of all contracts, invoices, materials, payrolls, records or personnel,
conditions of employment and other data relating to all matters covered by this Agreement.



ARTICLE 11. SUBCONTRACTORS
(a) The provisions of the Agreement shall apply to Subcontractors and their officers, agents and
employees in all respects as if they were employees of the Contractor. The Contractor shall not be
discharged from its obligations and liabilities, but shall be liable for all acts and negligence of
Subcontractors, and their officers, agents and employees, as if they were employees of the
Contractor.

(b) Employees of the Subcontractor shall be subject to the same provisions as employees of the
Contractor.

(c) The services furnished by Subcontractors shall be subject to the provisions hereof as if furnished
directly by the Contractor, and the Contractor shall remain responsible therefor.

(d) Any subcontracts entered into pursuant to this Agreement shall include Exhibit 3 (Investigations
Clause, Conflicts of Interest Clause; and Executive Order No. 50 provisions, which shall be binding
on every Subcontractor.)

ARTICLE 12. CONFLICTS; EXHIBITS

(a) If any provision in this CDBG Rider directly conflicts with any other provision in the Agreement,
the provision in CDBG Rider shall be controlling.

(b) Federal Exhibits 1 and 2 are attached to, and made a part of this CDBG Rider.

ARTICLE 13, {Reserved}

ARTICLE 14. {Reserved}

ARTICLE 15. {Reserved}

ARTICLE 16. {Reserved}

ARTICLE 17, {Reserved}

ARTICLE 18. PERFORMANCE REQUIREMENTS AND REMEDIES

The Disaster Relief Appropriations Act, 2013 (Public L. 113-2) of January 29, 2013, requires contracts to
contain “performance requirements and penalties.” Accordingly, Contractor shall be subject to any

performance requirements and remedial provisions and/or liquidated damages set forth in the Agreement.
Contractor acknowledges that negative performance evaluations may impair its ability to win future



contracts with WVDO. To the extent allowed by the applicable laws, regulations and rules, such
performance evaluations shall be considered by WVDO in:

(1) making a determination of the Contractor’s responsibility or non-responsibility in future WVDO
procurements, and

(2) deciding to renew or not to renew the Agreement.



Attachment 4

UNIFORM FEDERAL CONTRACT PROVISIONS RIDER

As explained in the Request for Proposals to which this Uniform Federal Contract Provisions
Rider (the Rider) is attached, the Programs are funded by a CDBG-DR grant from HUD and
administered by the State. By submitting a proposal to this RFP and in the event Respondent is
awarded a contract pursuant to its proposal submitted, Respondent understands and expressly
agrees that it will be bound by the applicable requirements set forth in this Rider. Accordingly, this
Rider which includes various federal regulations are incorporated into the RFP in their entirety,
and made an integral part thereof.

A.

Definitions. As used in this Rider:

(1) “Awarding Entity” means the entity awarding the Contract. The Awarding Entity
may be the State or a contractor at any tier.

(2) “Construction” means the building, rehabilitation, alteration, conversion,
extension, demolition, painting or repair of any improvement to real property.

(3) “Contract” refers to the contract or the agreement between the Awarding Entity
and the Contractor.

(4) “Contractor” means the entity performing the services pursuant to a contract.

(5) “Executive Director” means the head of the State agency entering into this
Contract.

(6) “Federal Agency” means the U.S. agency or agencies funding this Contract in
whole or in part.

(7) “Government” means the U.S. government.

(8) “Rider” means this Uniform Federal Contract Provisions Rider.

(9) “State” means the State of West Virginia or its designee (the West Virginia
Development Office, the “WVDO”)

Termination and Remedies for Breach of Contract. The following provisions
concerning remedies for breach of contract and termination apply to Contracts
between the State and the State’s Contractor.

(1) Remedies for Breach of Contract. If the Contractor violates or breaches the
Contract, the State may avail itself of any or all of the remedies provided for
elsewhere in this Contract. If there are no remedies provided for elsewhere in this
Contract, the State may avail itself of any or all of the following remedies.



After declaring the Contractor in default pursuant to the procedures in paragraph
(a) of subdivision (2) of this section (B) below, the State may (i) withhold payment
for unsatisfactory services, (ii) suspend or terminate the Contract in whole or in
part; and/or

(iii) have the services under this Contract completed by such means and in such
manner, by contract procured with or without competition, or otherwise, as the
State may deem advisable in accordance with all applicable Contract
provisions and law. After completion of the services under this Contract, the
State shall certify the expense incurred in such completion, which shall include
the cost of procuring that contract. Should the expense of such completion, as
certified by the State, exceed the total sum which would have been payable
under the Contract if it had been completed by the Contractor, any excess
shall be promptly paid by the Contractor upon demand by the State. The
excess expense of such completion, including any and all related and incidental
costs, as so certified by the State may be charged against and deducted out of
monies earned by the Contractor.

(2) Termination. The State shall have the right to terminate the Contract in whole
or in part for cause, for convenience, due to force majeure, or due to reductions
in federal funding. If the Contract does not include termination provisions
elsewhere, the following termination provisions apply:

a. Termination for Cause. The State shall have the right to
terminate the Contract, in whole or in part, for cause upon a
determination that the Contractor is in default of the Contract.
Unless a shorter time is determined by the State to be necessary,
the State shall effect termination according to the following
procedure:

i. Notice to Cure. The State shall give written notice
of the conditions of default signed by the
Executive Director, setting forth the ground or
grounds upon which such default is declared
(“Notice to Cure”). The Contractor shall have ten
(10) days from receipt of the Notice to Cure or any
longer period that is set forth in the Notice to Cure
to cure the default. The Executive Director may
temporarily suspend services under the Contract
pending the outcome of the default proceedings
pursuant to this section.

ii. Opportunity to be Heard. If the conditions set
forth in the Notice to Cure are not cured within the
period set forth in the Notice to Cure, the Executive
Director may declare the Contractor in default.
Before the Executive Director may exercise his or
her right to declare the Contractor in default, the
Contractor must be given an opportunity to be



iii.

iv.

heard upon not less than five (5) business days’
notice. The Executive Director may, in his or her
discretion, provide for such opportunity to be in
writing or in person. Such opportunity to be heard
shall not occur prior to the end of the cure period
but notice of such opportunity to be heard may be
given prior to the end of the cure period and may be
given contemporaneously with the Notice to Cure.

Notice of Termination. After an opportunity to be
heard, the Executive Director may terminate the
Contract, in whole or in part, upon finding the
Contractor in default. The Executive Director shall
give the Contractor written
notice of such termination (“Notice of
Termination™), specifying  the applicable
provision(s) under which the Contract is terminated
and the effective date of termination. If no date is
specified in the Notice of Termination, the
termination shall be effective either 10 calendar
days from the date the notice is personally
delivered or 15 calendar days from the date
Notice of Termination is sent by another method.
The Notice of Termination shall be personally
delivered, sent by certified mail return receipt
requested, or sent by fax and deposited in a post
office box regularly maintained by the United
States Postal Service in a postage pre-paid
envelope.

Grounds for Default. The State shall have the
right to declare the Contractor in default:

1. Upon a breach by the Contractor of
a material term or condition of this Contract,
including unsatisfactory performance of the
services;

2. Upon insolvency or the
commencement of any proceeding by or against the
Contractor, either voluntarily or involuntarily,
under the Bankruptcy Code or relating to the
insolvency, receivership, liquidation, or
composition of the Contractor for the
benefit of creditors;

3. If the Contractor refuses or
fails to proceed with the services under the
Contract when and as directed by the Executive
Director;



4, If the Contractor or any of its
officers, directors, partners, five percent (5%) or
greater shareholders, principals, or other employee
or person substantially involved in its activities are
indicted or convicted after execution of the
Contract under any state or federal law of any of the
following:

a. a criminal offense incident to
obtaining or attempting to obtain or
performing a public or private contract;

b. fraud, embezzlement, theft,
bribery, forgery, falsification, or destruction
of records, or receiving stolen property;

c. a criminal violation of any
state or federal antitrust law;

d. violation of the

Racketeer
Influence and Corrupt Organization Act,
18
U.S.C. § 1961 et seq., or the Mail Fraud
Act, 18 U.S.C. § 1341 et seq., for acts in
connection with the submission of bids or
proposals for a public or private contract;

e. conspiracy to commit any
act or omission that would constitute
grounds for
conviction or liability under any
statute
described in subparagraph (d)
above; or

f. an offense indicating a lack

of business integrity that seriously and
directly affects responsibility as a State
vendor.

5. If the Contractor or any of its
officers, directors, partners, five percent (5%) or
greater shareholders, principals, or other employee
or person substantially involved in its activities are
subject to a judgment of civil liability under any
state or federal antitrust law for acts or omissions in
connection with the submission of bids or proposals
for a public or private contract; or

6. If the Contractor or any of its
officers, directors, partners, five percent (5%) or
greater shareholders, principals, or other employee
or person substantially involved in its activities



makes or causes to be made any false, deceptive, or
fraudulent material statement, or fail to make a
required material statement in any bid, proposal, or
application for State or other government work.

v. Basis of Settlement. The State shall not incur or
pay any further obligation pursuant to this Contract
beyond the termination date set by the State in its
Notice of Termination. The State shall pay for
satisfactory services provided in accordance with
this Contract prior to the termination date. In
addition, any obligation necessarily incurred by the
Contractor on account of this Contract prior to
receipt of notice of termination and falling due after
the termination date shall be paid by the State in
accordance with the terms of this Contract. In no
event shall such obligation be construed as
including any lease or other occupancy agreement,
oral or written, entered into between the Contractor
and its landlord.

b. Termination for Convenience. The State shall have the
right to terminate the Contract for convenience, by providing
written notice (“Notice of Termination”) according to the
following procedure. The Notice of Termination shall specify the
applicable provision(s) under which the Contract is terminated and
the effective date of termination, which shall be not less than 10
calendar days from the date the notice is personally delivered or
15 days from the date the Notice of Termination is sent by
another method. The Notice of Termination shall be personally
delivered, sent by certified mail return receipt requested, or sent by
fax and deposited in a post office box regularly maintained by the
United States Postal Service in a postage pre-paid envelope. The
basis of settlement shall be as provided for in subparagraph (iv)
of paragraph (a) of subdivision (2) of this section (B), above.

¢. Termination due to Force Majeure

i. For purposes of this Contract, a force majeure
event is an act or event beyond the control and
without any fault or negligence of  the
Contractor  (“Force =~ Majeure Event”). Force
Majeure Events may include, but are not limited to,
fire, flood, earthquake, storm or other natural
disaster, civil commotion, war, terrorism, riot, and
labor disputes not brought about by any act or
omission of the Contractor.



ii. In the event the Contractor cannot comply with the
terms of the Contract (including any failure by the
Contractor to make progress in the performance of
the services) because of a Force Majeure Event,
then the Contractor may ask the Executive
Director to excuse the nonperformance and/or
terminate the Contract. If the Executive Director, in
his or her reasonable discretion, determines that the
Contractor cannot comply with the terms of the
Contract because of a Force Majeure Event, then
the Executive Director shall excuse the
nonperformance and may terminate the Contract.
Such a termination shall be deemed to be without
cause.

iii. If the State terminates the Contract due to a
Force Majeure Event, the basis of settlement shall
be as provided for in subparagraph (iv) of
paragraph (a) of subdivision (2) of this section (B),
above.

d. Termination due to Reductions in Federal Funding

i. This Contract is funded in whole or in part by funds
secured from the Federal government. Should
the Federal government reduce or discontinue
such funds, the State shall have, in its sole
discretion, the right to terminate this Contract in
whole or in part, or to reduce the funding and/or
level of services of this Contract caused by such
action by the Federal government, including, in the
case of the reduction option, but not limited to, the
reduction or elimination of programs, services or
service components; the reduction or elimination of
contract-reimbursable staff or staff-hours, and
corresponding reductions in the budget of this
Contract and in the total amount payable under this
Contract. Any reduction in funds pursuant to
this
paragraph shall be accompanied by an

a ppropriate reduction in the services performed
under this Contract.

ii. In the case of the reduction option referred to in
subparagraph (i), above, any such reduction shall be
effective as of the date set forth in a written
notice thereof to the Contractor, which shall be not
less than 30 calendar days from the date of such



notice. Prior to sending such notice of reduction,
the State shall advise the Contractor that such
option is being exercised and afford the Contractor
an opportunity to make within seven calendar
days any suggestion(s) it may have as to which
program(s), service(s), service component(s), staff
or staff-hours might be reduced or eliminated,
provided, however, that the State shall not be
bound to utilize any of the Contractor’s
suggestions and that the State shall have sole
discretion as to how to effectuate the reductions.

iii. If the State reduces funding pursuant to this
paragraph (c), the basis of settlement shall be as
provided for in subparagraph (iv) of paragraph (a)
of subdivision (2) of this section (B), above.

Standard Provisions. The Contractor shall comply with, include in its
subcontracts, and cause its subcontractors to comply with the following provisions,
as applicable:

(1) Reporting. Contractor shall be required to produce and deliver such reports
relating to the services performed under the Contract as may be required by the
Awarding Entity, State or any other State or Federal governmental agency with
jurisdiction.

(2) Non-Discrimination. Contractor shall not violate any Federal, State, or
State law prohibiting discrimination concerning employment, the provision of
services, and, if applicable, housing, funded by this Contract.

(3) Environmental Protection. If the Contract is in excess of $150,000, the
Contractor shall comply with all applicable standards, orders, or regulations
issued under the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. § 7401-7671q), Federal Water
Pollution control Act (33 U.S.C. §§ 1251-

1387) Section 508 of the Clean Water Act (33 U.S.C. § 1368), Executive Order
11738, and Environmental Protection Agency regulations (provisions of 40
CFR Part 50 and 2

CFR Part 1532 related to the Clean Air Act and Clean Water Act). Violations
must be

reported to the Federal Agency and the Regional Office of the Environmental
Protection

Agency (EPA). The Contractor shall include this provision in all subcontracts.

(4) Energy Efficiency. The Contractor shall comply with mandatory standards and
policies relating to energy efficiency that are contained in the New
York State energy conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy
Policy Conservation Act (Pub. L.

94-163).



(5) Debarment. The Contractor certifies that neither it nor its principals is currently
in a state of debarment, suspension, or other ineligible status as a result of prior
performance, failure, fraud, or violation of State laws. The Contractor further
certifies that neither it nor

its principals is debarred, suspended, otherwise excluded from or ineligible for
participation in Federal assistance programs. The State reserves the right to
terminate this Contract if knowledge of debarment, suspension or other
ineligibility has been withheld by the Contractor.

(6) Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment (31 USC §1352). Contractor certifies that it will
not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or
organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee
of any Federal agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress,
or any employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining this
Contract. If the Contract is $100,000 or more, the Contractor shall disclose to the
State any lobbying with non-Federal funds that took place in connection with
obtaining this Contract. Each lower tier subcontractor shall make such
certification and forward any required disclosures from tier to tier up to the State
as grant recipient. (Certification appears in Federal Appendix A)

(7) Solid Waste Disposal Act. Pursuant to 2 CFR § 200.322, Contractor must comply
with section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as amended by the Resource
Conservation and Recovery Act (codified at 42 USC § 6962). The requirements
of Section 6002 include procuring only items designated in guidelines of the
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 CFR Part 247 that contain the
highest percentage of recovered materials practicable, consistent with
maintaining a satisfactory level of competition, where the purchase price of the
item exceeds $ 10,000 or the value of the quantity acquired during the preceding
fiscal year exceeded $ 10,000; procuring solid waste management services in a
manner that maximizes energy and resource recovery; and establishing an
affirmative procurement program for procurement of recovered materials
identified in the EPA guidelines.

(8) Documentation of Costs. All costs shall be supported by properly executed
payrolls, time records, invoices, or vouchers, or other official documentation
evidencing in proper detail the nature and propriety of the charges. All checks,
payrolls, invoices, contracts,
vouchers, orders or other accounting documents, pertaining in whole or in
part to the Agreement, shall be clearly identified and regularly accessible.

(9) Records Retention. The Contractor shall retain all books, documents, papers, and
records relating to the services performed under the Contract for three years after
final payment under the Contract is made and all other pending matters are
closed.

(10) Records Access. The Contractor shall grant access to the State, State or
any other pass-through entity, the Federal Agency, Inspectors General, and/or
the Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their duly authorized
representatives, to any books, documents, papers, and/or records of the



Contractor that are pertinent to the Contract for the purpose of making audits,
examinations, excerpts, and transcripts. The right also includes timely and
reasonable access to the Contractor’s personnel for the purpose of interview and
discussion related to such documents. The rights of access in this section are not
limited to the required retention period but last as long as the records are

retained.

(11) Small Firms, M/WBE Firms, and Labor Surplus Area Firms. Contractor shall
take the following affirmative steps in the letting of subcontracts, if subcontracts
are to be let, in order to ensure that minority firms, women’s business enterprises,

and labor

surplus area firms are used when

possible:

a.

Placing qualified small and minority businesses and
women’s business enterprises on solicitation lists;

Assuring that small and minority businesses, and
women’s business enterprises are solicited whenever
they are potential sources;

Dividing total requirements, when economically feasible,
into smaller tasks or quantities to permit maximum
participation by small and minority businesses, and
women’s business enterprises;

Establishing delivery schedules, where the requirement
permits, which encourage participation by small and
minority businesses, and women’s business enterprises;
and

Using the services and assistance of the Small Business
Administration, and the Minority Business Development
Agency of the Department of Commerce.

(12) Intangible Property.

a.

Pursuant to 2 CFR § 200.315(d), the Government reserves
a royalty-free, non-exclusive, and irrevocable right to
obtain, reproduce, publish, or otherwise use, and to
authorize others to use, for Government purposes: (a) the
copyright in any work developed under the Contract or
subcontract; and (b) any rights of copyright to which a
Contractor purchases ownership with grant support.

Any reports, documents, data, photographs, deliverables,
and/or other materials produced pursuant to the Contract
(“Copyrightable Materials™), and any and all drafts and/or
other preliminary materials in any format related to such
items produced pursuant to the contract, shall upon their



creation become the exclusive property of the State. The
Copyrightable Materials shall be considered “work-made-
for-hire” within the meaning and purview of Section 101
of the United States Copyright Act, 17 U.S.C. § 101, and
the State shall be the copyright owner thereof and of all
aspects, elements and components thereof in which
copyright protection might exist. To the extent that the
Copyrightable Materials do not qualify as “work-made-
for-hire,” the Contractor hereby irrevocably transfers,
assigns and conveys exclusive copyright ownership in and
to the Copyrightable Materials to the State, free and clear
of any liens, claims, or other encumbrances. The
Contractor shall retain no copyright or intellectual
property interest in the Copyrightable Materials. The
Copyrightable Materials shall be used by the Contractor
for no purpose other than in the performance of this
Contract without the prior written permission of the State.
The State may grant the Contractor a license to use the
Copyrightable Materials on such terms as determined by
the State and set forth in the license.

. The Contractor acknowledges that the State may, in its sole
discretion, register copyright in the Copyrightable
Materials with the United States Copyright Office or any
other government agency authorized to grant copyright
registrations. The Contractor shall fully cooperate in this
effort, and agrees to provide any and all documentation
necessary to accomplish this.

. The Contractor represents and warrants that the
Copyrightable Materials: (i) are wholly original material
not published elsewhere (except for material that is in the
public domain); (ii) do not violate any copyright law; (iii)
do not constitute defamation or invasion of the right of
privacy or publiState; and (iv) are not an infringement, of
any kind, of the rights of any third party. To the extent
that the Copyrightable Materials incorporate any non-
original material, the Contractor has
obtained all necessary permissions and clearances, in
writing, for the use of such non-original material under this
Contract, copies of which shall be provided to the State
upon execution of this Contract.

. The Contractor shall promptly and fully report to the State

any discovery or invention arising out of or developed in
the course of performance of this Contract and the
Contractor shall promptly and fully report to the
Government to make a determination as to whether patent



protection on such invention shall be sought and how the
rights in the invention or discovery, including rights under
any patent issued thereon, shall be disposed of and
administered in order to protect the public interest.

f. If the Contractor publishes a work dealing with any aspect
of performance under this Agreement, or with the results
of such performance, the State shall have a royalty-free,
non-exclusive irrevocable license to reproduce, publish,
or otherwise use such work for State governmental

purposes.

Special Provisions for Construction Contracts. If this Contract involves
Construction work, design for Construction, or Construction services, all such work
or services performed by the Contractor and its subcontractors shall be subject to the
following requirements in addition to those set forth above in paragraphs (A), (B),
and (C):

(1) Federal Labor Standards. The Contractor will comply with the following:

a. The Davis-Bacon Act (40 U.S.C. §§ 3141-3148): If
required by the federal program legislation, in Construction
contracts involving an excess of $2000, and subject to any
other federal program limitations, all laborers and
mechanics must be paid at a

rate not less than those determined by the Secretary of
Labor to be prevailing for the State, which rates are to be
provided by the State. These wage rates are a federally
mandated minimum only, and will be superseded by any
State or State requirement mandating higher wage rates.
The Contractor also agrees to comply with Department of
Labor Regulations pursuant to the Davis-Bacon Act found
in 29 CFR Parts 1, 3, 5 and 7 which enforce statutory
labor standards provisions.

b. Ifrequired by the federal program legislation and subject

to any other federal program limitations, Sections 103 and
107 of the Contract Work Hours and Safe Standards Act

(40 U.S.C. §§

3701-3708), which provides that no laborer or mechanic
shall be required or permitted to work more than eight
hours ina

calendar day or in excess of forty hours in any workweek,
unless such laborer or mechanic is paid at an overtime rate
of 1% times

his/her basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of
these limits, under any Construction contract costing in
excess of $2000. In the event of a violation of this
provision, the



Contractor shall not only be liable to any affected
employee for his/her unpaid wages, but shall be
additionally liable to the United States for liquidated
damages.

c. The Copeland “Anti-Kickback™ Act (18 U.S.C. § 874),
as supplemented by the regulations contained in 29
CFR Part 3, requiring that all laborers and mechanics
shall be paid unconditionally and not less often than
once a week, and prohibiting all but “permissible”
salary deductions.

(2) Equal Employment Opportunity. Executive Order 11246, as amended by

Executive Order
11375, and as supplemented in Department of Labor regulations (41 CFR chapter
60) for Construction contracts or subcontracts in excess of $10,000. The
Contractor shall include the notice found at FEDERAL EXHIBIT I in all
Construction subcontracts. For the purposes of the Equal Opportunity
Construction Contract Specifications and Clause below, the term “Construction
Work” means the construction, rehabilitation, alteration, conversion, extension,
demolition or repair of buildings, highways, or other changes or improvements to
real property, including facilities providing utility services. The term also
includes the supervision, inspection, and other onsite functions incidental to the
actual construction .

Standard Federal Equal Employment Opportunity Construction Contract Specifications for
Contracts and Subcontracts in Excess of $10,000.

1. As used in these specifications:

a. “Covered area” means the geographical area described in the
solicitation from which this Contract resulted;

b. “Director” means Director, Office of Federal Contract

Compliance Programs, United States Department of Labor, or any person to
whom the Director delegates authority;

c. “Employer identification number” means the Federal Social
Security number used on the Employer’s Quarterly Federal Tax Return, U.S.
Treasury Department Form 941.

d. “Minority” includes:
@) Black (all persons having origins in any of the Black
African racial groups not of Hispanic origin);

(ii) Hispanic (all persons of Mexican, Puerto Rican, Cuban,
Central or South American or other Spanish Culture or origin, regardless
of race);

(1ii) Asian and Pacific Islander (all persons having origins in
any of the original peoples of the Far East, Southeast Asia, the Indian
Subcontinent, or the Pacific Islands); and



(iv)  American Indian or Alaskan Native (all persons having
origins in any of the original peoples of North America and maintaining
identifiable tribal affiliations through membership and participation or
community identification).

2. Whenever the Contractor, or any subcontractor at any tier, subcontracts a
portion of the work involving any Construction trade, it shall physically include in
each subcontract in excess of $10,000 the provisions of these specifications and
the Notice which contains the applicable goals for minority and female
participation and which is set forth in the solicitations from which this Contract
resulted.

3. If the Contractor is participating (pursuant to 41 CFR 60-4.5) in a
Hometown Plan approved by the U.S. Department of Labor in the covered area
either individually or through an association, its affirmative action obligations on
all work in the Plan area (including goals and timetables) shall be in accordance
with that Plan for those trades which have unions participating in the Plan.
Contractors must be able to demonstrate their participation in and compliance
with the provisions of any such Hometown Plan. Each Contractor or
subcontractor participating in an approved Plan is individually required to
comply with its obligations under the EEO clause, and to make a good faith effort
to achieve each goal under the Plan in each trade in which it has employees. The
overall good faith performance by other Contractors or subcontractors toward a
goal in an approved Plan does not excuse any covered Contractor’s or
subcontractor’s failure to take good faith efforts to achieve the Plan goals and
timetables.

4. The Contractor shall implement the specific affirmative action standards
provided in paragraphs 7 a through p of these specifications. The goals set
forth in the solicitation from which this Contract resulted are expressed as
percentages of the total hours of employment and training of minority and
female utilization the Contractor should reasonably be able to achieve in each
Construction trade in which it has employees in the covered area. Covered
Construction Contractors performing Construction Work in geographical areas
where they do not have a Federal or federally assisted Construction contract
shall apply the minority and female goals established for the geographical areas
where the work is being performed. Goals are published periodically in the
Federal Register in notice form, and such notices may be obtained from any
Office of Federal Contract Compliance Programs office or from Federal
procurement contracting officers. The Contractor is expected to make
substantially uniform progress in meeting its goals in each craft during the
period specified.

5. Neither the provisions of any collective bargaining agreement, nor the
failure by a union with whom the Contractor has a collective bargaining
agreement, to refer either minorities or women shall excuse the Contractor’s
obligations under these specifications, Executive Order 11246, or the regulations
promulgated pursuant thereto.

6. In order for the nonworking training hours of apprentices and trainees to
be counted in meeting the goals, such apprentices and trainees must be employed



by the Contractor during the training period, and the Contractor must have made
a commitment to employ the apprentices and trainees at the completion of their
training, subject to the availability of employment opportunities. Trainees must
be trained pursuant to training programs approved by the U.S. Department of
Labor.

7. The Contractor shall take specific affirmative actions to ensure equal
employment opportunity. The evaluation of the Contractor’s compliance with
these specifications shall be based upon its effort to achieve maximum results
from its actions. The Contractor shall document these efforts fully, and shall
implement affirmative action steps at least as extensive as the following:

a. Ensure and maintain a working environment free of harassment,
intimidation, and coercion at all sites, and in all facilities at which the
Contractor’s employees are assigned to work. The Contractor, where possible,
will assign two or more women to each Construction project. The Contractor
shall specifically ensure that all foremen, superintendents, and other on-site
supervisory personnel are aware of and carry out the Contractor’s obligation to
maintain such a working environment, with specific attention to minority or
female individuals working at such sites or in such facilities.

b. Establish and maintain a current list of minority and female
recruitment sources, provide written notification to minority and female
recruitment sources and to community organizations when the Contractor or its
unions have employment opportunities available, and maintain a record of the
organization’s responses.

c. Maintain a current file of the names, addresses and telephone
numbers of each minority and female off-the-street applicant and minority or
female referral from a union, a recruitment source or community organization and
of what action was taken with respect to each such individual. If such individual
was sent to the union hiring hall for referral and was not referred back to the
Contractor by the union or, if referred, not employed by the Contractor, this shall
be documented in the file with the reason therefor, along with whatever additional
actions the Contractor may have taken.

d. Provide immediate written notification to the Director when the
union or unions with which the Contractor has a collective bargaining agreement
has not referred to the Contractor a minority person or woman sent by the ‘
Contractor, or when the Contractor has other information that the union referral
process has impeded the Contractor’s efforts to meet its obligations.

e. Develop on-the-job training opportunities and/or participate in
training programs for the area which expressly include minorities and women,
including upgrading programs and apprenticeship and trainee programs relevant
to the Contractor’s employment needs, especially those programs funded or
approved by the Department of Labor. The Contractor shall provide notice of
these programs to the sources compiled under 7b above.

f. Disseminate the Contractor’s EEO policy by providing notice of
the policy to unions and training programs and requesting their cooperation in
assisting the Contractor in meeting its EEO obligations; by including it in any



policy manual and collective bargaining agreement; by publicizing it in the
company newspaper, annual report, etc.; by specific review of the policy with all
management personnel and with all minority and female employees at least once
a year; and by posting the company EEO policy on bulletin boards accessible to
all employees at each location where Construction Work is performed.

g Review, at least annually, the company’s EEO policy and
affirmative action obligations under these specifications with all employees
having any responsibility for hiring, assignment, layoff, termination or other
employment decisions including specific review of these items with on-site
supervisory personnel such as
Superintendents, General Foremen, etc., prior to the initiation of Construction
Work at any job site. A written record shall be made and maintained
identifying the time and place of these meetings, persons attending, subject
matter discussed, and disposition of the subject matter.

h. Disseminate the Contractor’s EEO policy externally by including
it in any advertising in the news media, specifically including minority and
female news media, and providing written notification to and discussing the
Contractor’s EEO policy with other Contractors and subcontractors with whom
the Contractor does or anticipates doing business.

i Direct its recruitment efforts, both oral and written, to minority,
female and community organizations, to schools with minority and female
students and to minority and female recruitment and training organizations
serving the Contractor’s recruitment area and employment needs. Not later than
one month prior to the date for the acceptance of applications for apprenticeship
or other training by any recruitment source, the Contractor shall send written
notification to organizations such as the above, describing the openings, screening
procedures, and tests to be used in the selection process.

J- Encourage present minority and female employees to recruit
other minority persons and women and, where reasonable, provide after school,
summer and vacation employment to minority and female youth both on the site
and in other areas of a Contractor’s work force.

k. Validate all tests and other selection requirements where
there is an obligation to do so under 41 CFR Part 60-3.

L. Conduct, at least annually, an inventory and evaluation at least
of all minority and female personnel for promotional opportunities and
encourage these employees to seek or to prepare for, through appropriate
training, etc., such opportunities.

m. Ensure that seniority practices, job classifications, work
assignments and other personnel practices, do not have a discriminatory effect by
continually monitoring all personnel and employment related activities to ensure
that the EEO policy and the Contractor’s obligations under these specifications
are being carried out.



n. Ensure that all facilities and company activities are non-
segregated except that separate or single-user toilet and necessary changing
facilities shall be provided to assure privacy between the sexes.

0. Document and maintain a record of all solicitations of offers for
subcontracts from minority and female Construction contractors and suppliers,
including circulation of solicitations to minority and female Contractor
associations and other business associations.

p- Conduct a review, at least annually, of all supervisor’s adherence
to and performance under the Contractor’s EEO policies and affirmative action
obligations.

8. Contractors are encouraged to participate in voluntary associations
which assist in fulfilling one or more of their affirmative action obligations (7a
through p). The efforts of a Contractor association, joint Contractor-union,
Contractor-community, or other similar group of which the Contractor is a
member and participant, may be asserted as fulfilling any one or more of its
obligations under 7a through p of these specifications provided that the
Contractor actively participates in the group, makes every effort to assure that
the group has a positive impact on the employment of minorities and women in
the industry, ensures that the concrete benefits of the Program are reflected in
the Contractor’s minority and female work force participation, makes a good
faith effort to meet its individual goals and timetables, and can provide access to
documentation which demonstrates the effectiveness of actions taken on behalf
of the Contractor. The obligation to comply, however, is the Contractor’s and
failure of such a group to fulfill an obligation shall not be a defense for the
Contractor’s noncompliance.

9. A single goal for minorities and a separate single goal for women have
been established. The Contractor, however, is required to provide equal
employment opportunity and to take affirmative action for all minority groups,
both male and female, and all women, both minority and non-minority.
Consequently, the Contractor may be in violation of the Executive Order if a
particular group is employed in a substantially disparate manner (for example,
even though the Contractor has achieved its goals for women generally, the
Contractor may be in violation of the Executive Order if a specific minority
group of women is underutilized).

10. The Contractor shall not use the goals and timetables or
affirmative action standards to discriminate against any person because of
race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.

11.  The Contractor shall not enter into any Subcontract with any person or
firm debarred from Government contracts pursuant to Executive Order 11246 or
suspended or is otherwise excluded from or ineligible for participation in federal
assistance programs.

12.  The Contractor shall carry out such sanctions and penalties for violation
of these specifications and of the Equal Opportunity Clause, including
suspension, termination and cancellation of existing subcontracts as may be
imposed or ordered pursuant to Executive Order 11246, as amended, and its



implementing regulations, by the Office of Federal Contract Compliance
Programs. Any Contractor who fails to carry out such sanctions and penalties
shall be in violation of these specifications and Executive Order 11246, as
amended.

13.  The Contractor, in fulfilling its obligations under these specifications,
shall implement specific affirmative action steps, at least as extensive as those
standards prescribed in paragraph 7 of these specifications, so as to achieve
maximum results from its efforts to ensure equal employment opportunity. If the
Contractor fails to comply with the requirements of the Executive Order, the
implementing regulations, or these specifications, the Director shall proceed in
accordance with 41 CFR 60-4.8.

14.  The Contractor shall designate a responsible official to monitor all
employment related activity to ensure that the company EEO policy is being
carried out, to submit reports relating to the provisions hereof as may be
required by the Government and to keep records. Records shall at least include
for each employee the name, address, telephone numbers, Construction trade,
union affiliation if any, employee identification number when assigned, social
security number, race, sex, status (e.g., mechanic, apprentice trainee, helper, or
laborer), dates of changes in status, hours worked per week in the indicated
trade, rate of pay, and locations at which the work was performed. Records shall
be maintained in an easily understandable and retrievable form; however, to the
degree that existing records satisfy this requirement, Contractors shall not be
required to maintain separate records.

15.  Nothing herein provided shall be construed as a limitation upon the
application of other laws which establish different standards of compliance or
upon the application of requirements for hiring of local or other areas residents
(e.g., those under the Public

Works Employment Act of 1977 and the Community Development Block Grant
Program).

(3) (A) Equal_Opportunity Clause (for contracts for Construction Work)
required by 41
CFR Part 6-1.4(b).

During the performance of this contract, the Contractor agrees as follows:

(1) The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for
employment because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender
identity, or national origin. The Contractor will take affirmative action to ensure
that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment
without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender
identity, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the
following: Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or
recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of
compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The
Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and
applicants for employment, notices to be provided setting forth the provisions of
this nondiscrimination clause.



(2) The Contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees
placed by or on behalf of the Contractor, state that all qualified applicants will
receive considerations for employment without regard to race, color, religion,
sex, sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin.

(3) The Contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers
with which he has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or
understanding, a notice to be provided advising the said labor union or workers’
representatives of the Contractor’s commitments under this section, and shall
post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and
applicants for employment.

(4) The Contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of
September 24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the
Secretary of Labor.

(5) The Contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive
Order

11246 of September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the
Secretary of Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books,
records, and accounts by the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor
for purposes of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules,
regulations, and orders.

(6) In the event of the Contractor’s noncompliance with the nondiscrimination
clauses of this contract or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this
contract may be canceled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the
Contractor may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts or
federally assisted construction contracts in accordance with procedures
authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other
sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order
11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of
Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.

(7) The Contractor will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding
paragraph (1) and the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (7) in every
subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of
the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246
of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each
subcontractor or vendor. The Contractor will take such action with respect to any
subcontract or purchase order as the administering agency may direct as a means
of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance: Provided,
however, That in the event a Contractor becomes involved in, or is threatened
with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such direction by the
administering agency the Contractor may request the United States to enter into
such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

(B) Equal Opportunity Clause (for contracts for Construction Work) required by
41

CFR Part 6-1.4(b).



During the performance of this contract, the Contractor agrees as follows:

(1) The Contractor will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for
employment because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender
identity, or national origin. The Contractor will take affirmative action to ensure
that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment
without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, sexual orientation, gender
identity, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the
following:

Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment
advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation;
and selection for training, including apprenticeship. The Contractor agrees to
post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for
employment, notices to be provided setting forth the provisions of this
nondiscrimination clause.

(2) The Contractor will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees
placed by or on behalf of the Contractor, state that all qualified applicants will
receive consideration for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex,
sexual orientation, gender identity, or national origin.

(3) The Contractor will not discharge or in any other manner discriminate against
any employee or applicant for employment because such employee or applicant
has inquired about, discussed, or disclosed the compensation of the employee or
applicant or another employee or applicant. This provision shall not apply to
instances in which an employee who has access to the compensation information
of other employees or applicants as a part of such employee’s essential job
functions discloses the compensation of such other employees or applicants to
individuals who do not otherwise have access to such information, unless such
disclosure is in response to a formal complaint or charge, in furtherance of an
investigation, proceeding, hearing, or action, including an investigation

conducted by the employer, or is consistent with the Contractor’s legal duty to
furnish information.

(4) The Contractor will send to each labor union or representative of workers
with which he has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract or
understanding, a notice to be provided advising the said labor union or workers’
representatives of the Contractor’s commitments under this section, and shall
post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and
applicants for employment.

(5) The Contractor will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of
September 24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the
Secretary of Labor.

(6) The Contractor will furnish all information and reports required by Executive
Order

11246 of September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the
Secretary of



Labor, or pursuant thereto, and will permit access to his books, records, and
accounts by the administering agency and the Secretary of Labor for purposes of
investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.

(7) In the event of the Contractor’s noncompliance with the nondiscrimination
clauses of this contract or with any of the said rules, regulations, or orders, this
contract may be canceled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the
Contractor may be declared ineligible for further Government contracts or
federally assisted construction contracts in accordance with procedures
authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other
sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order
11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of
Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.

(8) The Contractor will include the portion of the sentence immediately
preceding paragraph (1) and the provisions of paragraphs (1) through (8) in
every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or
orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive
Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding
upon each subcontractor or vendor. The Contractor will take such action with
respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the administering agency may
direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for
noncompliance:

Provided, however, that in the event a Contractor becomes involved in, or is
threatened with, litigation with a subcontractor or vendor as a result of such
direction by the administering agency, the Contractor may request the United
States to enter into such litigation to protect the interests of the United States.

Rights to Inventions. [Special Provisions For Contracts Involving
Experimental, Developmental, or Research Work.]

(1) If this Contract involves the performance of experimental, developmental, or
research work by the Contractor or its subcontractors, and the entity
performing such work is a Nonprofit Organization or Small Business Firm
as defined below, the following provisions apply in addition to those set forth
above in paragraphs (A), (B), and (C), unless the Contract specifically states that
this provision is superseded:

a. Definitions. The following definitions apply to this section
D).

i. “Invention” means any invention or discovery
which is or may be patentable or otherwise
protectable under Title 35 of the United States
Code, or any novel variety of plant which is or
may be protected under the Plant Variety
Protection Act (7 U.S.C. § 2321 et seq.).



ii. “Subject invention” means any invention of the
Contractor conceived or first actually reduced to
practice in the performance of work under this
Contract,
provided that in the case of a variety of plant, the
date of determination (as defined in section 41(d)
of the Plant Variety Protection Act, 7 U.S.C.
2401(d)) must also occur during the period of
Contract performance.

iii. “Practical Application” means to manufacture in
the case of a composition or product, to practice in
the case of a process or method, or to operate in the
case of a machine or system; and, in each case,
under such conditions as to establish that the
invention is being utilized and that its benefits are,
to the extent permitted by law or
government regulations, available to the
public on reasonable terms.

iv. “Made” when used in relation to any invention
means the conception or first actual reduction to
practice of such invention.

v. “Small Business Firm” means a small business
concern as defined at section 2 of Pub. L. 85-536
(15 U.S.C. 632) and implementing regulations of
the Administrator of
the Small Business Administration. For the
purpose of this clause, the size standards for
small business
concerns involved in government procurement and
subcontracting at 13 CFR 121.3-8 and 13 CFR
121.3-12, respectively, will be used.

vi. “Nonprofit Organization” means a university or
other institution of higher education or an
organization of the type described in section
501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1954
(26 U.S.C. 501(c) and exempt from taxation under
section 501(a) of the Internal Revenue Code (25
U.S.C. 501(a)) or any nonprofit scientific or
educational organization qualified under a state
nonprofit organization statute.

b. Allocation of Principal Rights. The Contractor may
retain the entire right, title, and interest throughout the
world to each subject invention subject to the provisions
of this clause and 35



C.

U.S.C.

203. With respect to any subject invention in

which the Contractor retains title, the Federal
government shall have a nonexclusive, nontransferable,
irrevocable, paid-up license to practice or have practiced
for or on behalf of the United States the subject
invention throughout the world.

Invention Disclosure, Election of Title and Filing of Patent
Application by

1.
to

ii.

Contractor.

The Contractor will disclose each subject invention

the State and the Federal Agency within two
months after the inventor discloses it in writing to
Contractor personnel responsible for patent matters.
Such disclosure shall be in the form of a written
report and shall identify the contract under which
the invention was made and the inventor(s). It shall
be sufficiently complete in technical detail to
convey a clear understanding to the extent known at
the time of the disclosure, of the nature, purpose,
operation, and the physical, chemical,

biological or electrical characteristics of the
invention. The disclosure shall also identify any
publication, on sale or public use of the invention
and whether a manuscript describing the invention
has been submitted for publication and, if so,
whether it has been accepted for publication at the
time of disclosure. In addition,

after such disclosure, the Contractor will promptly
notify the State and the Federal Agency of the
acceptance of

any manuscript describing the invention for
publication or of any on sale or public use planned
by the

Contractor.

The Contractor will elect in writing whether or

not to retain title to any such invention by

notifying the State

and the Federal Agency within two years of
disclosure to

the State and the Federal Agency. However, in any
case where publication, on sale or public use has
initiated the one year statutory period wherein valid
patent protection can still be obtained in the United
States, the period for election of title may be
shortened by the Federal Agency to a date that is no



iii.

iv.

more than 60 days prior to the end of the statutory
period.

The Contractor will file its initial patent
application on a subject invention to which it elects
to retain title within one year after election of title
or, if earlier, prior to the end of any statutory period
wherein valid patent protection can be obtained in
the United States after a publication, on sale, or
public use. The Contractor will file patent
applications in additional countries or international
patent offices within either ten months of

the corresponding initial patent application or six
months from the date permission is granted by the
Executive Director of Patents and Trademarks to file
foreign patent applications where such filing has
been prohibited by a Secrecy Order.

Requests for extension of the time for disclosure,
election, and filing under subparagraphs (1), (2),
and (3) may be granted at the discretion of the
Federal Agency.

d. Conditions When the Government May Obtain Title

The Contractor will convey to the Federal Agency, upon
written request, title to any subject invention --

i

ii.

iii.

If the Contractor fails to disclose or elect title

to the subject invention within the times

specified in (c), above, or elects not to retain

title; provided that the Federal Agency may

only request title within 60 calendar days after
learning of the failure of the

Contractor to disclose or elect within the specified
times.

In those countries in which the Contractor fails
to file patent applications within the times
specified in (c) above; provided, however, that if
the Contractor has filed a patent application in a
country after the times specified in (c) above, but
prior to its receipt of the written request of the
Federal Agency, the Contractor shall continue to
retain title in that country.

In any country in which the Contractor decides
not to continue the prosecution of any application
for, to pay the maintenance fees on, or defend in



reexamination or opposition proceeding on, a
patent on a subject invention.

e. Minimum Rights to Contractor and Protection of the

Contractor

Right to
File

1.

ii.

iii.

The Contractor will retain a nonexclusive royalty-
free license throughout the world in each subject
invention to which the Government obtains title,
except if the Contractor fails to disclose the
invention within the

times specified in (c), above. The Contractor’s
license extends to its domestic subsidiary and
affiliates, if any,

within the corporate structure of which the
Contractor is

a party and includes the right to grant sublicenses of
the same scope to the extent the Contractor was
legally obligated to do so at the time the Contract
was awarded. The license is transferable only with
the approval of the Federal Agency except when
transferred to the successor of that party of the
Contractor’s business to which the invention
pertains.

The Contractor’s domestic license may be revoked
or modified by the funding Federal Agency to the
extent necessary to achieve expeditious practical
application of the subject invention pursuant to an
application for an exclusive license submitted in
accordance with applicable provisions at 37 CFR
Part 404 and agency licensing regulations (if any).
This license will not be revoked in that field of use
or the geographical areas in which the Contractor
has achieved practical application and continues to
make the benefits of the invention reasonably
accessible to the public. The license in any foreign
country may be revoked or modified at the
discretion of the funding Federal Agency to the
extent the Contractor, its licensees, or the domestic
subsidiaries or affiliates have failed to achieve
practical application in that foreign country.

Before revocation or modification of the license,
the funding Federal Agency will furnish the
Contractor a written notice of its intention to revoke
or modify the license, and the Contractor will be



allowed thirty calendar days (or such other time as
may be authorized by the funding Federal Agency
for good cause shown by the Contractor) after the
notice to show cause why the license should not be
revoked or modified. The Contractor has the right
to appeal, in accordance with applicable regulations
in 37 CFR Part 404 and Federal Agency regulations
(if any) concerning the licensing of Government-
owned inventions, any decision concerning the
revocation or modification of the license.

f. Contractor Action to Protect the Government’s

i

ii.

iii.

Interest

The Contractor agrees to execute or to have
executed and promptly deliver to the Federal
Agency all instruments necessary to (i) establish or
confirm the rights the Government has throughout
the world in those subject inventions to which the
Contractor elects to retain title, and (ii) convey title
to the Federal Agency when requested under
paragraph (d) above and to enable the Government
to obtain patent protection throughout the world in
that subject invention.

The Contractor agrees to require, by written
agreement, its employees, other than clerical and
nontechnical employees, to disclose promptly in
writing to personnel identified as responsible for the
administration of patent matters and in a format
suggested by the Contractor each subject invention
made under contract in order that the Contractor can
comply with the disclosure provisions of paragraph
(c), above, and to execute all papers necessary to
file patent applications on subject inventions and to
establish the Government’s rights in the subject
inventions. This disclosure format should require, as
a minimum, the information required by (c)(1),
above. The Contractor shall instruct such employees
through employee agreements or other suitable
educational programs on the importance of
reporting inventions in sufficient time to permit the
filing of patent applications prior to U.S. or foreign
statutory bars.

The Contractor will notify the Federal Agency of
any decisions not to continue the prosecution of a
patent application, pay maintenance fees, or defend



in a reexamination or opposition proceeding on a
patent, in any country, not less than thirty calendar
days before the expiration of the response period
required by the
relevant patent
office.

iv. The Contractor agrees to include, within the
specification of any United States patent
applications and any patent issuing thereon
covering a subject invention, the following
statement, “This invention was made with
government support under (identify the
contract) awarded by (identify the Federal
Agency). The government has certain rights in the
invention.”

g
Subcontracts

i. The Contractor will include this clause, suitably
modified to identify the parties, in all subcontracts,
regardless of tier, for experimental, developmental
or research work to be performed by a small
business firm or domestic nonprofit organization.
The subcontractor will retain all rights provided for
the Contractor in this clause, and the Contractor
will not, as part of the consideration for awarding
the subcontract, obtain rights in the subcontractor’s
subject inventions.

ii. The Contractor will include in all other
subcontracts, regardless of tier, for experimental
developmental or research work the patent rights
clause required by 2 CFR
§ 200.315(c) and Appendix II to 2 CFR Part 200.

h. Reporting on Utilization of Subject Inventions. The
Contractor agrees to submit on request periodic reports no
more frequently than annually on the utilization of a
subject invention or on efforts at obtaining such utilization
that are being made by the Contractor or its licensees or
assignees. Such reports shall include information
regarding the status of development, date of first
commercial sale or use, gross royalties received by the
Contractor, and such other data and information as the
Federal Agency may reasonably specify. The Contractor
also agrees to provide additional reports as may be



requested by the Federal Agency in connection with any
march-in proceeding undertaken by the Federal Agency in
accordance with paragraph (j) of this clause. As required
by 35 U.S.C. § 202(c)(5), the Federal Agency agrees it
will not disclose such information to persons outside the
Government without permission of the Contractor.

Preference for United States Industry. Notwithstanding any
other provision of this clause, the Contractor agrees that
neither it nor any assignee will grant to any person the
exclusive right to use or sell any subject inventions in the
United States unless such person agrees that any products
embodying the subject invention or produced through the
use of the subject invention will be manufactured
substantially in the United States. However, in individual
cases, the requirement for such an agreement may be
waived by the Federal Agency upon a showing by the
Contractor or its assignee that reasonable but unsuccessful
efforts have been made to grant licenses on similar terms to
potential licensees that would be likely to manufacture
substantially in the United States or that under the
circumstances domestic manufacture is not commercially
feasible.

March-in Rights. The Contractor agrees that with respect
to any subject invention in which it has acquired title, the
Federal Agency has the right in accordance with the
procedures in 37

CFR § 401.6 and any supplemental regulations of the
Federal Agency to require the Contractor, an assignee or
exclusive licensee of a subject invention to grant a
nonexclusive, partially exclusive, or exclusive license in
any field of use to a responsible applicant or applicants,
upon terms that are reasonable under the circumstances,
and if the Contractor, assignee, or exclusive licensee
refuses such a request the Federal Agency has the right
to grant such a license itself if the Federal Agency
determines that:

i. Such action is necessary because the Contractor or
assignee has not taken, or is not expected to take
within a reasonable time, effective steps to achieve
practical application of the subject invention in
such field of use.

ii. Such action is necessary to alleviate health or
safety needs which are not reasonably satisfied
by the Contractor, assignee or their licensees;



ii.

iv.

Such action is necessary to meet requirements for
public use specified by Federal regulations and
such requirements are not reasonably satisfied by
the Contractor, assignee or licensees; or

Such action is necessary because the agreement
required by paragraph (i) of this clause has not
been obtained or waived or because a licensee of
the exclusive right to use or sell any subject
invention in the United States is in breach of such
agreement.

k. Special Provisions for Contracts with Nonprofit

Organizations.

If the Contractor is a nonprofit organization, it agrees

i.

il

iii.

iv.

that:

Rights to a subject invention in the United States
may not be assigned without the approval of the
Federal Agency, except where such assignment is
made to an organization which has as one of its
primary functions the management of inventions,
provided that such assignee will be subject to the
same provisions as the Contractor;

The Contractor will share royalties collected on a
subject invention with the inventor, including
Federal employee co-inventors (when the Federal
Agency deems it appropriate) when the subject
invention is assigned in accordance with 35 U.S.C.
§ 202(e) and 37 CFR §

401.10

b

The balance of any royalties or income earned by
the Contractor with respect to subject inventions,
after payment of expenses (including payments to
inventors) incidental to the administration of
subject inventions, will be utilized for the support
of scientific research or education; and

It will make efforts that are reasonable under the
circumstances to attract licensees of subject
invention that are Small Business Firms and that it
will give a preference to a Small Business Firm
when licensing a subject invention if the Contractor
determines that the Small Business Firm has a plan
or proposal for marketing the invention which, if



executed, is equally as likely to bring the invention
to practical application as any plans or proposals
from applicants that are not Small Business Firms;
provided, that the Contractor is also satisfied that
the Small Business Firm has the capability and
resources to carry out its plan or proposal. The
decision whether to give a preference in any
specific case will be at the discretion of the
Contractor. However, the Contractor agrees that the
Secretary may review the Contractor’s licensing
program and decisions regarding Small Business
Firm applicants, and the Contractor will negotiate
changes to its licensing policies, procedures, or
practices with the Secretary when the Secretary’s
review discloses that the Contractor could take
reasonable steps to implement more effectively the
requirements of this paragraph (k)(iv).

. Com munication. The central point of contact at the Federal
Agency for communications on matters relating to this
clause may be obtained from the State upon request.



Certification Regarding Lobbyvi

The undersigned Contractor certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge, that:

L

No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or
employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or
an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal
contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering
into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal,
amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative
agreement.

If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency,
a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a
Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or
cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL,
“Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions.

The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in
the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants,
and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all
subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a
prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by 31, U.S.C. § 1352
(as amended by the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995). Any person who fails to file the
required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not
more than $100,000 for each such failure.

The Contractor, Thompson Const. Gp., Incertifies or affirms the truthfulness and
acy of each statement of its certification and disclosure, if any. In addition, the
derstands and agrees that the provisions of 31 U.S.C. § 3801 et seq.,

Signature of Contractor’s Authorized Official

C. Curtis Hutto, CFO

Name and Title of Contractor’s Authorized Official

12/28/2017

Date




EXHIBIT B
(PROPOSAL)



State of West Virginia
Request For Quotation
Construction

Procurement Folder : 341932

Document Description : CDBG-DR POST-DISASTER RESIDENTIAL MANUFACTURED HOUSING
Procurement Type : Agency Master Agreement

Date Issued | Solicitation Closes Solicitation No Version Phase
2017-06-07 2017-06-23 ARFQ 0307 DEV1700000003 1 Final
13:30:00

SUBNIT RESPONSESITO

ENGOET

Vendor Name, ;A&dress and Telephone
Tim McCoy - tmccoy@thompsonind.com

Thompson Construction Group, Inc.
205-229-5565 100 N. Main St.
Sumter, SC 29150
803-938-2641

FOR INFORMATION CONTACT THE
Sheila L Hannah

(304) 957-2076
sheila.l.hannah@wv.gov

Qg
Signature X N\%S FEIN# 57-0836917 pATE June 22, 2017

All offers subject to all terms and conditions contained in this solicitation
Date Printed : Jun 07, 2017 Solicitation Number : DEV1700000003

Page : 1 FORM ID : WV-PRC-ARFQ-001



DEPT OF COMMERCE FINANCE DIVISION
BLDG 6 ROOM 652

1900 KANAWHA BLVD E

Wwv DEVLOPMENTOFFICE IS REQUESTING BIDS TO PROVIDE POST-DISASTER RESIDENTIAL MANUFACTURED HOUSING UNIT
REPLACE MENT SERVICES. FOR THE UP-TO-CODE HOUSING RESTORATION PROGRAM AND WV RENTAL ASSISTANCE PROGRAM.

WV DEVELOPMENT OFFICE
ADMINISTRATION

1800 KANAWHA BLVD E BLDG 6 RM 645

CHARLESTON WV25305 CHARLESTON WV 25305-0311
us us
Line Commodity Line Description Qty Unit Issue Unit Price Total Price
1 POST-DISASTER RESIDENTIAL 1.00000 JOB
MANUFACTURED HOUSING UNIT
|[Commodity Code Manufacturer __Model # Specification
30000000

Extended Description

POST-DISASTER RESIDENTIAL MANUFACTURED HOUSING UNIT REPLACEMENT SERVICES

Line ‘ - Event

1 MANDATORY PREBID MEETING AT
10:00 AM

2 TECHNICAL QUESTIONS DUE BY
4:.00PM

3 BID CLOSING 1:30 PM

Date Printed : Jun 07, 2017 Solicitation Number : DEV1700000003

Event Date
2017-06-14

2017-06-15
2017-06-23

Page : 2 FORM ID : WV-PRC-ARFQ-001




DEV1700000003

Document Phase
Final

Document Description
CDBG-DR POST-DISASTER RESIDENTIAL
MANUFACTURED HOUSING

Page 3
of 3

ADDITIONAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

See attached document(s) for additional Terms and Conditions N/A




The undersigned Contractor certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge, that:

1.

No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the
undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or
employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or
an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal
contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering
into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal,
amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative
agreement.

If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency,
a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a
Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or
cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL,
“Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying,” in accordance with its instructions.

The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in
the award documents for all subawards at all tiers (including subcontracts, subgrants,
and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all
subrecipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when this transaction was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a
prerequisite for making or entering into this transaction imposed by 31, U.S.C. § 1352
(as amended by the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995). Any person who fails to file the
required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not
more than $100,000 for each sych failure.

The Contractor, \\’\0“\035\(\ lﬂ'\'~"-;'*Dzértiﬁes or affirms the truthfulness and

accuracy of each statement of its certification and disclosure, if any. In addition, the

Contractor understands and agrees that the provisions of 31 U.S.C. § 3801 et seq.,
pply to this certification and disclosure, if any.

Signature ofComractol(s Authrized Official

T Me (o Senis~ PW

Name and Title of Contractor’s Authorized Official

(o~ a&dﬁﬁ

Date
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Thompson

June 20, 2017

Thompson Construction and our team of sub consultants, appreciates the opportunity to submit
proposals to Post Disaster RISE West Virginia in response to the 2016 regional flooding.

The Thompson Construction team has the leadership, commitment, and integrity to ensure Post Disaster
RISE West Virginia’s success in restoring its communities, neighborhoods, and families.

Thompson Construction hopes to have the opportunity to implement our vast disaster response and
construction experience to better the state of West Virginia and the lives of its citizens.

Thompson has assembled a Team with experience to cooperatively achieve the goals of this project, and
commits to working with many qualified West Virginia contractors during this process. Joining
Thompson to prepare necessary studies, provide permit application and coordination, bidding support
and construction administration services including demolition, hauling, elevation, building, construction,
engineering, and community outreach are:

BELFOR: BELFOR Property Restoration is the North American leader in integrated disaster recovery and
property restoration services.

COTTON: Cotton Holdings, Inc., is a leading infrastructure support services company providing property
restoration and recovery, construction, roofing, consulting, and workforce staffing.

RSS: RSS, LLC. Brings over 30 years of experience in pre-construction, design-build, construction
management, program management, and emergency response.

OnSite Temp Housing: OnSite Temp Housing offers twenty-five years of experience in delivery and
installation of Mobile and Modular home solutions.

Allied Response: Allied Response LLC is an industry leader in disaster response project management
solutions, with a track record of success in CDBG construction programs.



ACS: Headquartered in Bridgeport, West Virginia — Applied Construction Services is a Platinum Level

Award Winner with 35 years of Value-engineered driven construction solutions. They are recognized
by the Associated Builders and Contractors, Contractors Association of West Virginia, and Associated
General Contractors of American Safety.

We hope to have the opportunity to bring our consolidated resources to West Virginia by joining the
Post Disaster RISE West Virginia effort.

Sincerely,
QE g

Tim McCoy
Senior Project Manager
Thompson Construction






Thompson Construction Group’s Mission is to provide innovative, practical and
high quality service that delivers value to industrial, commercial and government

clients.

In order to achieve our Vision....

We Commit To:

® A “Thinking Below Zero” behavior based
safety culture that is the foundation for every-
thing we do.

® Treating our employees with respect and
appreciation for contributions each can make.
We support and encourage the desire to
improve the job skills and performance in
order to enhance the employee’s potential as
well as the company’s capabilities.

®  Working with our clients, partners and
vendors on a basis of mutual respect without
compromising our commitment to continued
improvement. We aim to maintain a long-term
relationship that is mutually beneficial, while
operating as a responsible corporate citizen.

Thompson Headquarters

“We believe these commitments will enable us to achieve success for our company,
create opportunities and motivation for our employees, and bring value to
our customers.”

- www.thompsonsoutheast.com







Thompson

If awarded the RESIDENTIAL MANUFACTURED HOUSING contract, we will discuss details and
expectations with Post Disaster RISE West Virginia project management, but based on all
current information and guidance our suggested plan is as follows.

1. Submission of floor plan and elevation for approval by Construction Management Company.
2. Receive Work Order

3. Obtain all pre-construction permits

4. Place order for Manufactured Housing Unit (MHU)

5. Send Storage Container (POD) to homeowner for temporary storage of personal belongings
during construction

6. Organize and execute demolition or site preparation for MHU installation

7. Based on elevation certificate prepare site for any needed MHU elevation

8. Home delivery and installation

9. Post-construction inspections and issuance of Certificate of Occupancy

10. Key turnover and warranty explanation visit with homeowner

11. Scheduling pickup of POD after verified move-in is completed

A.) Staffing Plan:
Summary of Staffing Capacity:
“Thompson Construction: 1,216 Current Full time employees.

Thompson Partner Network:

Over 100 full-service offices in the U.S.

Nearly 10,000 Partner Network Team Members.

Over 102,000+ Completed Projects Each Year.

Nearly $2 Billion dollars in combined Annual Revenue.”

Introduction to Staffing Methodology:

In considering this project and our plan to meet its demands, the Thompson team established
key factors that will ultimately make this a success. Throughout this submittal, we demonstrate
how considerations have shaped the development of our team organization and sub-consultant
selection, the presentation of our critical experience, and the formulation of the approach
presented.

Along with the right blend of technical expertise and regional experience, the Thompson team
provides Post Disaster RISE West Virginia with targeted local resources to meet the demands of



this aggressive schedule, which will involve initiating numerous simultaneous tasks to ensure
that we meet milestones and produce viable alternatives that are informed by environmental
realities and community and stakeholder needs.

Responsive and Responsible Project Management:
Our program management team and resources will be locally based in Kanawha and
Greenbrier, giving us ready access all affected counties.

Thompson will ensure that all team project management personnel are identified by a standard
color collared shirt and photo identification.

The depth of our program and assistant program manager’s direct experience managing large
contracts in multiple locations has been a key to the success that the Thompson team has had
in recent CDBG program applications.

B.) Scheduling and Deployment Plan:
Thompson Senior Project management will be on site no later than July 15, 2017.

Deployment of construction crews with happen within 72 hours of receipt of qualified ready
work orders from project manager.

Each construction site will have a minimum of FOUR team members, including ONE Thompson
team Project Manager.

Within the first 30 days, we should accomplish with sufficient work order assignments, 50% of
full capacity production.

In MONTH TWO, it is our plan to be at 100% of capacity contingent upon the quantity of
available work orders.

Completion of 40 work orders per month is our minimum acceptable output plan, which would
allow for an expected PROGRAM COMPLETION within 12 months.

Thompson will provide a minimum of one Project Briefing to the program manager per week
which outlines all current work to date, all work currently underway, and all future operations

planned.

C.) Quality Assurance Plan:
Thompson will ensure compliance with all aspects of the HUD based State Action Plan.

Thompson will approve all specifications on work and materials used in the execution of the
work order.

Random spot check and upon request quality control checks will be conducted by Thompson



Project Managers.

Thompson will monitor each housing unit at least once every two weeks for compliance with
construction progress and quality and safety inspections.

Scheduled quality control checks will be made before submitting a house to program or county
final inspection.

A Thompson Project Manager will be on site with contractor at the time of final inspection.

Thompson will ensure compliance with all Federal, State, and Local Environmental standards
and follow all established environmental standards during the conduct of all work for the
duration of the contract.

Thompson will ensure strict compliance with all HUD standards and will adjust to any HUD
updates.

D.) Customer Service Plan:
The Thompson team prides itself on our dedication to homeowner customer service.

We understand the added stress that these homeowners are under during the duration of the
onboarding, processing, and construction phases.

We aim to manage their expectations and needs through focused and regular contact.
Thompson will provide a local and toll free number for customer service questions and
warranty inquiries that will be made available starting during the work order assignment phase.
Customer service representatives will be available by phone and email, 7 days per week.

Expectations:

1. Upon receipt of work order, a Thompson representative will call the homeowner to schedule
a POD delivery and review with them the scope of work and estimated time frame to which it
will be completed. Thompson will gather a homeowner projected move-out date, to be
reported to program manager.

2. Weekly Updates. A Thompson representative will call the homeowner weekly to update
them on the progress of their work order, and answer any questions that may arise during the
process.

3. Upon completion of the work order, a key-turnover event will be scheduled with the

homeowner and commitment to warranty representation reiterated and explained.

E.) Financial and materials tracking and reporting process:



Our current senior project management staff are proficient in both HGMS and Carbon software
platforms that are expected to be used on this program.

Our compliance and monitoring is in line with the expectations of focus on:
e FINANCIAL REPORTING

¢ ACCOUNTING RECORDS

e INTERNAL CONTROL PROCEDURES

e BUDGET CONTROL PROCEDURES

e ALLOWABLE COSTS

¢ SOURCE DOCUMENTATION

While supplementary and internal processes may be executed for materials tracking and
reporting, Thompson is committed to daily and regular updates of all HGMS and Carbon
platform expectations. We are in full compliance with the accounting standards set forth by the
Carbon invoicing system and GAAP.

Our project managers and inspectors utilize Housing Quality Standards and municipal ordinance
checklists to verify compliance with all construction standards. Quality control is built into every
process to make sure each Thompson is ready to withstand not only a HUD audit, but a HUD
OIG audit.

Thompson on site construction training leads will work with each case manager, environmental
specialist, damage assessor, construction inspector and all administrative staff to develop
systems for a construction-focused audit and close out from the beginning.

F.) Purchasing process to include a discussion of procedures for securing quality, products and
competitive prices for services and materials

The Thompson procurement department will assist in the procurement of all project materials
and services and will verify that those products will meet program, State and HUD Green
standards.

Pre-construction subcontractor briefings will be used to relay and reinforce the commitment to
those standards and purchasing guidelines.

An additional emphasis will be added on products and materials that can be sourced directly in
West Virginia.

G.) Procedure for addressing change orders from the original scope of work
Thompson is always committed to a course of action that limits the need for change orders to

only unforeseen damages or incidents. Involvement in creation or thorough review and
verification of the scope of work is the first step in addressing possible change orders.



When a condition arises where a change order is necessary, Thompson will require detailed
notes, measurements, pictures, and reasoning that all tie in to original Estimated Cost of Repair
and Narrative explanations.

A Change Order request will be drawn and submitted to program specifications, either via
Carbon and HGMS entry, or print delivery with verified receipt.

Upon approval of change order request, the work attached will be ordered for immediate start.

When final invoicing for the work order is done, a copy of the change order approval will be
attached, with a work order medication document.



ompson

100 North Main Street

Sumter, South Carolina

Phone (803) 773-8005
Fax (803) 775-3357

www.thompsonsoutheast.com .
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Thompson Construction Group’s Mission is to provide innovative, practical and
high quality service that delivers value to industrial, commercial and government
clients.

In order to achieve our Vision....

We Commit To:

® A “Thinking Below Zero” behavior based
safety culture that is the foundation for every-
thing we do.

® Treating our employees with respect and
appreciation for contributions each can make.
We support and encourage the desire to
improve the job skills and performance in
order to enhance the employee’s potential as
well as the company’s capabilities.

@ Working with our clients, partners and
vendors on a basis of mutual respect without
compromising our commitment to continued
improvement. We aim to maintain a long-term
relationship that is mutually beneficial, while
operating as a responsible corporate citizen.

Thompson Headquarters

“‘We believe these commitments will enable us to achieve success for our company,
create opportunities and motivation for our employees, and bring value to
our customers.”

www.thompsonsoutheast.com




Corporate Office

Regional Service Locations

Date of Incorporation

State of Incorporation

Type of Business

Corporate Officers

(* denotes shareholder)

Former Name

Website

Thompson Construction Group, Inc.
100 North Main Street

Sumter, SC 29150

Telephone: (803) 773-8005

Fax: (803) 775-3357

Columbia, SC

North Charleston, SC

Greenville, SC

December 31, 1986

South Carolina

Corporation

»Greg A. Thompson, President CEO

» Lewis E. Thompson, Vice President & Assistant Secretary

xHarold L. Turner, Jr., Vice President & Assistant Secretary

William L. Bryant, Vice President, Capital Projects

C. Curtis Hutto, Vice President, Secretary, Treasurer & CFO
John J. Halbig, Ill, Vice President & Assistant Secretary
Janice W. Poplin, Vice President & Assistant Secretary
Barry K. Falin, Vice President

Michael W. Gruber, Vice President

Robert B. Landers, Jr. Vice President

Thompson Industrial Services, Inc.

www.thompsonsoutheast.com

‘Business is all about momentum. Let’s move ahead together”

www.thompsonsoutheast.com



Industries Served

Thompson provides widely varying services to the following market sectors.

o Steel & Alloys ¢ Chemical & Fibers ¢ Institutional
¢ Food & Pharmaceutical e Pulp & Paper ¢ Educational
¢ Manufacturing o Power e Medical

e Commercial o Automotive & Aerospace e Tobacco

Services Provided

Industrial Construction
New construction, retrofit and maintenance services are managed from offices
North Charleston, Greenville and Sumter, South Carolina.

Self-Performed Services
o Steel Erection / Rigging

e Process Piping

e Code Welding Services

e Electrical

e Instrumentation

e Controls

e Equipment Setting

¢ Mechanical Equipment Assembly
e Civil/ Foundations

e Structural Welding

e Structural Concrete

e Underground Utility Piping

“Thompson has a proven record of delivering value through cost reduction and
efficiency improvements."

1

_www.thompsorisoutheast.com



ECode Work

Project Management

Fabrication

ASME “S” and “U” Certificate

NBIC “R” Certificate holder

On Staff: AWS Certified Welding Inspectors
and welding inspectors qualified in SNT-TC-
1A, AWS, ASME, NBIC and API Codes and
Standards

Boiler Pressure part repair and replacement
Shop construction and field assembly of
Power Boiler Parts and field assembly of
Power Boilers to ASME Code Section |
Shop construction and field assembly of
Pressure Vessels to ASME Code Section
VI, Div. 1

Shop construction and field construction
and assembly of Boiler External Piping to
ASME Section B31.1

Shop and field repairs and alterations to the
above in accordance with the National Board
Inspection Code (NBIC) and Jurisdiction
requirements

Estimating & Scheduling
Procurement

Construction Management
Commissioning Assistance

Process Piping
Code Fabrication Shop
Small Vessels

“Thompson Construction Group delivers large-scale construction services to

industrial clients in a way that moves their business forward.”

‘www.thompsonsoutheast.com




Power Services

Thompson has the ability to bundle services in order to be a one-stop” contractor for all
aspects of a power project or turnaround assignment. A

Steam Generators
¢ Furnace Wall & Floor Tubing Replacements
e Reheat, Superheat & Economizer Section Replacements
¢ Header Replacements
e High Energy Piping Replacements
¢ Burner & Fuel Piping Installation
¢ Ash Handling & Conveying Systems
¢ Fuel Conversions
e Sootblower / Piping Replacement
o New Boiler Erection

Electrostatic Precipitators (ESP
¢ New Installations / Modifications
¢ Internals Replacement
¢ Ductwork Repairs / Replacements
e Casing & Roof Repairs / Replacements
SCR'S
¢ New Equipment & Ductwork Installations
e Catalyst Change-Outs
e Vacuum Truck Services
Gas Turbines
¢ New Installations
¢ Heat Recovery Steam Generator Erection
¢ Fuel Piping Installations
¢ Inlet Filter Replacements

Air Heaters ghouses T

o Basket Change-Outs ¢ New Installations

¢ Flow Conversions ¢ Equipment Repairs / Replacements
Feedwater Heaters e Pulse Jet Conversion Module Installations

e Repairs / Replacements ¢ Ductwork Repairs / Replacements

¢ Piping Modifications Fans

e F.D, |.D., & Booster Fan Installations

“We understand the intricacies of your industry and equipment. We will mobilize
the proper number of high quality, fully trained personnel and related management

at your fac://ty to meet the full range of anticipated needs
www.thompsonsoutheast.com : ‘




Mamtenance, Operatlmons Support, Spéclallty Cleaning and Small Capital Projects

Thompson can provide customers with full-time embedded personnel. These
Thompson employees satisfy the day-to-day needs of the customers, drive
maintenance & reliability improvements, and collaborate with the customer to
transition from a culture of unplanned/react maintenance to planned/predictive
maintenance. ]

Services include but are not limited to:
e Equipment Maintenance

¢ Facilities Maintenance

¢ Mechanical Construction

¢ Small Capital Projects

e Operations Support

Ductwork & Specialty Cleaning

“ Thompson delivers value through top tier safety performance, culture of
continual improvement/innovation, and ease of doing business. Our commitment
is to build long term relationships by consistently delivering the value and service

that our customers expect.”
www.thompsonsoutheast.com




Building Construction - Thompson Turner Construction
Thompson Turner Construction provides construction services from offices in Sumter,

North Charleston, Columbia, and Greenville, South Carolina.

Services include:

« New Construction
 Renovations
« Additions

Markets include:

o Educational

« Government/ Municipal
o Commercial

e Museums

« Sports & Recreation

Restorations
Pre-engineered Buildings

Office / Corporate
Warehouses
Covered Storage
Churches
Industrial




|'State
Alabama

mmmmm

General Contractor

i

07/31/2017

G:'Kahuna

RSN

08-000717

25153
Arizona General Contractor 290839 03/31/2018
Arkansas Building, Specialty 67610416 04/30/2017
Arkansas Boiler & Pressure Vessels R747 & 12148 12/31/2017
Connecticut Major Contractor MCO0.0903086 06/30/2017
Florida General Contractor CGC061000 08/31/2018
Florida Plumbing CFC057360 06/30/2018
Georgia Electrical EN215888-Hodapp 06/30/2018
Georgia Electrical EN212615-Mapes 06/30/2018
Georgia General Contractor GCCO004231-Bryant 06/30/2016
Georgia General Contractor GCCO0002126-Halbig 06/30/2018
Georgia Boiler B-3308 03/09-2019
lowa General Contractor C097739 05/05/2017
Kentucky Boiler Contractor KY2076 11/30/2017
Kentucky Electrical CE64987 01/31/2018
Louisiana Heavy Const., Elec., Bidg., Pib. 38137 12/31/2017
Maryland Out of State Contractor 04/30/2017
Mississippi Bldg., Process Piping, Electrical 10648-MC 10/08/2017
North Carolina Electrical-Hodapp/Mapes 19502-U 10/03/2017
North Carolina Plumbing 22928 12/31/2017
North Carolina General Contractor 29939 12/31/2017
Ohio Boiler Contractor C86327 07/31/2017
Ohio Electrical 47728 07/21/2017
Oklahoma Boiler & Pressure Vessels 7034 03/31/2018
South Carolina General Contractor G12953 10/31/2018
South Carolina Mechanical Contractor M100573 10/31/2017
SC - Thompson Turner General Contractor G104406 10/31/2018
South Carolina Ti Group Architecture 100245 08/31/2017
Tennessee Mech., Bldg., Plb., Elec. 46199 01/31/2019
Tennessee Boiler & Pressure Vessels 737 06/30/2017
Texas Electrical 25674 09/05/2017
Virginia Contractor 2705 037931 03/31/2019
Virginia Electrical 2710 057183-Hodapp 10/31/2017
Virginia Electrical 2710 039084-Mapes 04/30/2018
Virginia Plumbing 2710 030757 02/28/2019
West Virginia Contractor & Boiler with R Stamp | WV055107 06/15/2018

/2018

/ExpirationD:
05/08

Thompson Constructors, LLC

John Halbig

GCQA003957

06/30/2018

Thom

pson Constructors, LLC_

General Contractor

GCC0003951

06/30/2018

10



Thompson puts safety at the forefront of all
we do, regardless of project size or scope of
work.

Thompson employs full time safety
professionals to perform safety training and to
conduct independent, unannounced safety
audits at its job sites. Thompson also
provides incentives to its employees that
exercise safe practices in the work place.

Thompson’s commitment to safety s
evidenced by the safety performance
summary provided below. Summary data
was obtained from Thompson’s OSHA logs.

2.50 -

2.00 A

1.50 A

1.00 -

0.50 H

0.00

2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017

z EMR
RIR

EMR TIR
2011 2,175,279 0.76 0.83
2012 1,848,245 0.69 0.54
2013 3,048,287 0.71 1.44
2014 3,625,637 0.75 0.73
2015 2,744,046 0.82 1.09
2016 3,069,680 0.71 0.98
2017 Q1 548,855 0.59 0.36

“Thompson’s safety performance measures and benchmarks are among the
industry’s most stringent.”
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Global Diater Solutions
introduction

Disasters are both inevitable and unpredictable, guaranteed to happen but often without
warning. Varying in type and magnitude, disasters happen suddenly, creating chaos and
uncertainty for those affected. For entities of all sizes, a disaster means abrupt disruption of
all or part of its business operations, resulting in possible revenue loss or inability to provide
public assistance.

Every disaster has one or more causes and effects. The causes can be natural, human, or
mechanical in origin, ranging from a small event such as a pipe break effecting few to an
event of magnitude that effects tens of thousands - hurricanes, earthquakes, fire, floods,
pandemics, terrorist attacks. Consequences can range from small interruptions in daily
activity to total enterprise shutdown for days or months, or at worst, terminal damage to
businesses and agencies.

The process of preparing a disaster recovery plan begins by identifying these possible causes
and effects, analyzing their likelihood and severity, and ranking the outcomes in terms of
priority. The ultimate results are a formal assessment of risk, a recovery plan that includes all
available mechanisms, and a formalized Disaster Recovery Team (Cotton and Partner Client)
that has responsibility for planning, rehearsing, and executing the disaster recovery plan.

In summary, disaster recovery plans should identify and classify the threats and risks that
may result from disasters, define the resources and processes that ensure business
continuity during the disaster, and define the reconstitution mechanisms to get the enterprise
back to normal during the disaster recovery state. Effective disaster recovery plans play their
role in all stages from pre to post planning and are continuously improved by disaster
recovery mock training and feedback capture processes.

Planning Fundamentals

Cotton and the Partner Client work to establish policies and procedures that allow for the
minimization of damages, preservation of a functioning administration, and maintenance of
activities essential to survival and recovery. The Partner Client and Cotton recovery plan
establishes guidelines for conducting efficient, effective, coordinated emergency operations
involving all Cotton Resources, the Partner Client and maximization of interoperability.



Global Disaster Solutions

Concept of Operations

The Partner Client is the ultimate authority for the allocation of emergency resources. Cotton
services for the Partner Client will include contingencies for, but not limited to:

Business Continuity Planning Catastrophe Consulting
Catastrophe Management Emergency Response/Management
Restoration/Recovery Services Construction Services/Consulting
Environmental Response Logistics Service

Debris Management/Services Leader Involvement

Operational Lines of Effort

Cotton and the Client Partner will establish four specific times to assist in the implementation
of a disaster recovery plan:

Preparedness — The continuity planning phase is a period of time during which
activities are undertaken by Cotton to increase readiness posture, policies, procedures and
incident command systems of the partnership. This includes, but is not limited to,
identification of risks that can bring about disasters by conducting risk analysis covering
threats to business continuity. Also, this period includes, but is not limited to, pre-disaster
assessment of critical infrastructure with emphasis on the vulnerabilities that may affect the
likelihood of catastrophic failure for an enterprise.

Response — The reaction phase is a period of time during which notification procedure
activities and initial damage and disruption surveys are undertaken. To establish how the
contingency plan will be executed following a disaster, it is crucial to evaluate the nature and
degree of damage to the enterprise. Cotton then activates response plans and begins to
execute contingency actions with the Partner Client.

Mitigation — The mitigation phase starts immediately after the disaster recovery plan
has been activated and appropriate teams have been mobilized. The activities of this phase
focus on setting in motion the disaster recovery system, reduction of initial damage, and
detailed evaluation of the crisis and potential for additional crisis or ancillary risks. The
recovery procedure reflects priorities previously analyzed during the activation planning
phase.

Recovery — In the reconstitution phase, activities are undertaken to fully recover the
enterprise from disaster, place them back in a pre-loss condition, and return the enterprise
operations back to the Partner Client through a complete host of catastrophe management
and reconstruction services.



Global Dteolutions
Organization

Cotton is one of the world’s most experienced full service disaster recovery and restoration
firms. Cotton stands at the forefront of major disasters, providing around-the-clock service
backed by cutting-edge technology, highly skilled personnel, and years of operational
expertise to recover enterprises as quickly as possible. Founded in Houston, Texas, in 1996,
Cotton built upon its reputation of excellence to expand throughout Texas, then to key
locations in the United States and beyond. Cotton focuses on serving corporate and retail
businesses, manufacturing and industrial clients, the healthcare, education and hospitality
industries, and government agencies. Cotton’s success is directly attributed to providing the
highest level of customer service.

Cotton retains a base of over 130 full time employees. With its comprehensive strategic
partnerships, Cotton multiplies its force into the thousands as needed by project and location.
As an example, Cotton deployed its resources to service multiple commands and disaster
sites during Hurricanes Katrina and lke, 9/11, and the recent Gulf Coast Oil Spill Recovery.
Cotton has base revenue of $40-70mm annually and on event driven years has completed
over $150mm in revenue. Cotton’s projected revenue for its current fiscal year is $65-75mm.

Cotton meets the compliance standards established by the U.S. General Services
Administration (GSA) for total solutions for emergency/disaster response and environmental
remediation services (GSA Contract Holder: GS-07F-0076X and GS-10F-0061T). By GSA
criteria, Cotton is listed as a small business under the GSA Environmental Schedule and a
large business under the GSA Total Solutions Schedule. Cotton has performed GSA
scheduled work, Department Defense projects as a large subcontractor, and presently does
not have established DHS or DoD contracts.

References
References with contact information are available upon request. In brief, below is a snapshot

of our clients that depend on Cotton for planning, response, recovery, restoration and
reconstruction:

Wal-Mart Chevron

Johns Hopkins-APL Home Depot

Marriott International Virginia Commonwealth
HCA Health Jones Lang LaSalle
University of Houston Fluor

CB Richard Ellis BP - Americas

Case Studies

Please find included vignettes of some of the body of work performed by Cotton.
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TIMELINE

APPLIED
_8 O L .

CONSTRUCTIO

ACS
In 2009 MEC Energy Begins building gas
Crane MEC assets and name Transportation | q(5ted facilities after
Construction Construction sold Corporation Founded non compete fall 2015

Founded 1961 Founded 1981 changed to ACS 2012



Energy Transportation and Applied Construction Solutions,
and its subsidiaries, pride themselves on creating safety
centered environment incorporating;

v Accountable to our customer

v’ 35 years experience in the natural gas industry
v’ Transparent to the core values

v’ Provide a one stop solution

v Adaptive to the regulatory environment

v’ Valued engineered approach to solving problems

Experienced 4

Resilient

Problem Solvers

Transparent

Accountability
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SAFETY FIRST & FOREMOST

~Company . .. | ._. EMR 2016 .

Safety Team

TAILGATE MEETINGS

DAILY JOB SAFETY ANALYSIS MEETINGS

CONTINUED UPDATING AND REFINEMENT

Wisr Vingina

i

IQ5A MBC ASHE CA) Sorractors

g =1 Association
WEST VIRGINIA Noar Con — Of West Virginia

Aslodmd Bu!!dm
Contrsctors. Inc.
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IBC

Auomd Bu!ldm
Contractors, Inc.

Contractors
Association
of West Vlrglnia

Nosarw Cinrrar Wist Viacivia

IG/\

WEST VIRGINIA

SABC

ol
STEP

Safety Training
Evaluation Process

Associated Builders and Contractors Platinum Level Winner
2009, 2010, 2011, 2012, 2013

Associated Builders and Contractors West Virginia Chapter
2011

Associated General Contractors of American Safety Award
2012, 2013

Contractor Association of West Virginia
2006, 2007, 2011

ABC STEP DIAMOND Award
2016




Mockingbird
Cooler Placement,
Pine Grove, WV

Sweeney Bridge,
Sweeney, WV

Deep Valley Dehy

Cornwell Station,
Clendenin, WV
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NVIRO EAM SERVICES
Case Study
Massive Train Derailment Cleanup

The nature of emergencies makes them unpredictable, without notice and blind to the time, weather or ready
resources to respond. Most importantly, emergencies such as liquid spills can range from small to massive.
Nearly 30 tank cars of the 109-car train carrying oil from the Bakken Shale in North Dakota derailed in Fayette
County, West Virginia on February 16, 2015. The derailment sparked explosions and fires, destroying one
house and causing evacuations of other residents. Crews used vacuum trucks to remove oil/water mixture
from the derailment area and from Armstrong Creek and the Kanawha River. Workers had to drill into the ice
to check for oil and fly helicopters to look for sheen on the Kanawha River. When called, Energy
Transportation, recognizing the seriousness and complexities of the incident, immediately deployed a crew to
pitch in with other companies asked to respond. Within four hours, three of which were travel time to the
site, ET’s EnviroTeam Services Team was actively working to clean up the oil R




Mﬂ IRANSPORTAION, L6
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The weather was a significant challenge as snow
and very cold temperatures made already
difficult access to the actual derailment site a
critical concern. ET’s crew knew the importance
of being able to maneuver through these bad
conditions without getting stuck or worse yet,
creating additional mess.

The ET Team worked tirelessly to support all
efforts in retrieving the oil both that spilled out
and the remaining within damaged tanker cars.

ET crews also vacuumed out the severely
damaged rail cars, now only worth scrap, before steam cleaning was done in preparation for salvage
operations.

As is practice with ET, the crew also paid detailed attention to

the immediate environment including potential contamination EA’"HO EdM SERVICES

of waterways and surrounding land.

ET demonstrated its strong capabilities and proven expertise to fully contribute to such a large incident
timely, safely and in true collaborative partnership with others.
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APPLIED CONSTRLICTION

v’ Fabrication Shop v" NCCO Certified Crane Operators

v’ Trucking capabilities v Confined Space Entries & Rescues

v’ Torqueing v NACE Inspector

¥ Environmental Services v’ Certified/Trained Personnel: SSPC Coating, ASME B.31.1, B.31.3

v Safety Training and Clean-Up of Sites,
Spill Prevention and Remediation.

v’ Hydro excavation and Procedures
Air Excavation for Pot Holing

Welder Procedures, AP 1104 Procedures, Stainless Welding

v' Hydro testing




ACS

APPLIED CONSTRL l(‘T!ON

v'Gas Plant Construction: Reciprocating, Skid Mounted & v'Tie ins/Hot Taps
Turbine Installation v'Hydro excavation and

v'Facility upgrades including Horsepower Additions, Air Excavation for Pot Holing
Equipment Replacement v'Confined Space Entries & Rescues

v'Launcher/Receiver Installations
v'Piping and Structural Fabrication and Installation

APPLIED CONSTRUCTION SOLUTIONS, INC.

Serving the Natural Gas Industry | Exploration ¢ Production ¢ Mid Stream ¢ Gathering ¢ Transmission ¢ Distribution
Operating in WV, OH, PA, VA, MD, NC, NY, KY, FL & SC



ACS

APPLIED CONSTRUCTION

"Energy - Public Infrastructure

v’ Earthmoving
v Road & Highway Construction
v Underground Utilities/ Water Transfer

v" Environmental Mitigation

v" Landfill Construction, Expansion & Closures
v Deep Mine Face-ups/ Strip Mine Reclamation
v Reclamation & Mitigation Ponds

v Slip Repairs & Hillside Stabilization




ACS

APPLIED CONSTRUCTION

v'Dehy v'Miscellaneous Piping Work

v'"Muffler, ESD, piping modifications and chalk work v'Tubing and Muffler

v'Cooler Replacement v'Suction Valve Replacement

v'Tank Farm
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David B. Alvarez, Owner & CEO — ACS, ET

Alvarez has extensive experience in a wide variety of enterprises, serving in various capacities from frontline
duties to top management positions including board of directors. David was instrumental in growing his family’s
business, MEC Construction, into a well-respected, successful company serving the North Eastern natural gas
markets. Alvarez completed his tenure with MEC in July of 2014 and began focusing efforts on Energy
Transportation, LLC (ET). ET in its short history has grown to be a regional service provider for the Natural Gas
Industry. Under Alvarez’s leadership ET now offers EnviroTeam Services. These services include plant
environmental waste stream and dike management, emergency spill response, drum service, etc.

David Alvarez is a household name in the natural gas transmission arena. Under his leadership in various
companies, David has built numerous facilities for the natural gas industry, more specifically Dominion. Projects
under his leadership included greenfield compressor stations and existing facility modification throughout the
Dominion system. This includes projects at Cove Point, Hasting Extraction and most recently with ET an
environmental restoration at Jones Station in Gilmer County, WV.

Alvarez is credited with founding several new companies, which continue to benefit the economy of West Virginia
and the surrounding states while providing employment for many West Virginians. These companies include
Applied Construction Solutions, Energy Transportation and Blue Mountain Equipment Corporation.

Currently Alvarez is a member of the West Virginia University Board of Governors where he serves as facilities and
finance chair. He is a member of the Medbrook Children’s Charity Board, the Harrison County Economic
Development Corporation, member of the Richmond Federal Reserve Industry Round Table and is Vice Chairman
of MVB Bank. Alvarez is a past president of the Contractors Association of WV, WV Utility Contractors, and
Associated Builders and Contractors.

: @e ,
Cell: (304) 777-7711
Office: (304) 423-8760
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43912 N Black Canyon Hwy, New River, AZ 85087
www.onsitetemphousing.com

Corporate Overview

e OnSite Temp Housing is a privately held sub-s corporation.
e Headquartered in Phoenix, Arizona.
e Fleet of 105 RV travel trailers located across North America.
€ Placed trailers in all 48 contiguous US states.
€ Over 250 placements per year.
€ 70% Insurance related placements.
¢ 15% B2B.
€ 15% Governmental agencies including;
e Army Corps of Engineers
Bureau of Land Management
US Park Service
US Forestry Service
USDA

Services

e |Lease/rent trailers to businesses looking for short-term, immediate and affordable
housing for one person to hundreds.
e Several long-term clients
€ Golden Voice Ent. - Coachella Festival
€ Scottsdale Bike Week
€ Phoenix International Raceway
4 Numerous insurance & placement companies

Trailers (RV, mobile home, steel boxes)
Logistics for the purchase, delivery, set-up and management of units.
40 foot RV travel trailers (several sleeping configurations)

o Includes a full kitchen, two bedrooms, and one bathroom
Delivery, setup and pickup
On-premise technicians for each deployment
Linen and Kitchen kits available (additional cost)



Why use us
e 7 years of experience
e Over 250 deployments per year
e 10-15 large deployments per year (20+ units)
e When you need housing ASAP

Recent Events & Multi-trailer Deployments

Coachella Festival

2014-2017

Coachella, CA

April

35 units

5 week deployment for the event staff of over 100 people.

Arizona Bike Week

2012-2017

Scottsdale, AZ

March

20 units

One week biker rally

Our units are setup for ten days for the event workers and VIP guests.

Phases of the Moon Festival

2014

Danwville, IL

September

25-30 units

Four day music festival

Our units are setup for the event workers and musical performers for two weeks.



Attachment 1

Manufactured Housing Unit Replacement Pricing

PRICE PROPOSAL

Manufactured Housing Unit without Structural Elevation

3 Bedrooms/ 1 Bathroom

Turnkey Price $59,513.00
ADA Moadification $9,000.00
Structural Elevation additional cost

Foundation $15,500.00
Per 8" rise $4,900.00

8 ft. Maximum













Thompson Construction Group, Inc. | A Company History

Thompson is a privately held, progressive
company headquartered in Sumter, South
Carolina, serving Southeastern markets.
We provide innovative, practical and high
quality construction and maintenance
services to industrial, commercial and
governmental clients. Our experienced
team bhas developed an outstanding
reputation in these markets through years
of delivering quality services, on time, with
competitive pricing.

Thompson Construction Group, Inc.
was formed by Greg A. Thompson and
Lewis E. Thompson in 1986. Thompson
has three Regional Service Offices located
in Columbia, Greenville and North
Charleston, South Carolina. Having
four strategically placed locations,
including the corporate headquarters,
TCG can deliver large-scale
construction services to industrial clients
in a way that moves their business
forward. Thompson has the expertise
needed for your building project, whether
it may be a new construction, a retrofit
or maintenance services. Our
specialists deliver the highest caliber
of quality, safety and efficiency in
executing a wide array of work.

Construction Services

Thompson combines proven building
experience with expertise in a number of
specialties that are critical to quality
industrial construction. The result is a high
level of competency in delivering solutions
to clients that directly supports their
business objectives.

» Concrete
Power Services
Code Welding
Steel Erection/Rigging
Buildings
Equipment Erection
Piping
Maintenance Services
Electrical & Instrumentation

Corporate Headquarters, Sumter, SC

Post-Construction Support

Thompson can provide cost-efficient
support to our customers on an ongoing
basis through facilities maintenance,
production equipment maintenance, and
production support personnel. This strategy
allows our customers to focus on their core
competencies while leaving maintenance
issues to people who specialize in that
function.

A Culture of Safety

Thompson puts safety at the forefront of all we
do, regardless of project size or scope. Our
principle of doing business extends from top
management down to field operations. We
worked deliberately to develop a culture where
safety comes first, and we are fully committed
to sustaining it. As a result, we have zero
tolerance for practices that do not promote a
safe workplace.

Corporate Officers

Greg A. Thompson, President/CEO*
Lewis E. Thompson, Vice President*
Hal Turner, Vice President*

William L. Bryant, VP, Capital Projects
Curtis Hutto, Vice President/CFO
Michael Gruber, Vice President

Robert B. Landers, Jr., VP, Power Svcs.
Janice Poplin, Vice President

Barry Falin, Vice President

John Halbig, Vice President
*denotes shareholder @

Thompson

100 N. Main Street, Sumter, South Carolina 29150 (803)773-8005



ompson

Corporate Headquarters
Regional Office: Industrial Construction
Regional Office: General Contracting

100 N. Main
Sumter, SC 29150
(803) 773-8005
(800) 849-8040

Fax: (803) 775-3357
12,765 ft2

Regional Office: Industrial Construction
Regional Office: General Contracting

6550 Ward Avenue

North Charleston, SC 29406-4718
(843) 569-3441

(800) 628-7141

Fax: (843) 569-3443

2,592 ft2 office

8,000 ft2 warehouse and/or fabrication
7.3 acres outdoor laydown area

Regional Office: Industrial Construction
Regional Office: General Contracting

1116 Henderson Street
Suite 200

Columbia, SC 29201
(803) 933-9337

Fax: (803) 933-0373
4,300 ft2 office

Regional Office: Pipe Fabrication
Regional Office: Industrial Construction

879 South Guignard Drive

Sumter, SC 29150

(803) 773-8005

Fax: (803) 774-0346

3,520 ft2 office

15,300 ft2 fabrication and warehouse
5.5 acres outdoor laydown area




Thompson

Regional Office: Power Services
Regional Office: Industrial Construction

75 Beattie Place, Suite 910
Greenville, SC 29601

(864) 751-3406

Fax: (864) 752-0471

5,205 ft2 office

www.thompsonsoutheast.com




CERTIFIED TO BE A TRUE AND CORRECT COPY
AS TAKEN FROM AND COMPARED WITH THE
ORIGINAL ON FILE IN THIS OFFICE

Jan 26 2017
REFERENCE 1D: 1701261028504

e _:;.7‘?“ *-la:své(ct ST AR

STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
SECRETARY OF STATE
NOTICE OF CHANGE OF REGISTERED OFFICE
OR REGISTERED AGENT OR BOTH

, OF A SOUTH CAROLINA
, OR FOREIGN CORPORATION
| .
l TYPE OR PRINT CLEARLY IN BLACK INK

Pursuant to Sections 33-5-102 and 33-15-108 of the 1976 South Carolina Code of Laws as amended,
the undersigned corporation submits the following information

} 1 The name of the corporation 1s Thompson Construction Group, inc
T~
2 The corporation is (complete either a or b whichever 1s applicable)

' a adomestic corporation Incorporated 1n South Carolina on 12/31/86 - Amended 03/13/06 , or

! b a foreign corporation incorporated on ,and
! : State Date
-authorzed to do business in South Carolina on
Date
3 The street address of the present registered office In South Carolina 1s 115 Broad Street
. Street & Number
i the crty of Sumter . South Carolina 29150, '
' Zip Code
] : .
4 If the current registered office is to be changed, the street address to which its registered office is
i ' to be changed is 100 N /Mam Street in the city of Sumter South
| Street Address
Carolina 29150
. Zip Code
J I
5 The name of the present réglstered agentis Gregory A_Thompsan
8 If the current registered agent is to be changed the name of the successor registered agent i1s
N/A
|
i / * | hereby consent to the appointment as registered agent of the corporation
i ! NA .
' Signature of New Registered Agent
7 The address of the registered office and the address of the business office of the registered
agent, as changed will be identical
N 8 Unless a delayed date 1s specified, this will be effective upon acceptance for fiing by the
Secretary of State (See Section 331 -230(b) of the 1976 South Carolina Code of Laws, as

amended

*Pursuant to Sections 33-5-102(5) and 33-5-108(5) of the 1976 South Carolina Code of Laws, as
amended the wntten consent of the registered aaent mav be attached to this form

0811260148 FILED 11/25/2008
\ ' THOMPSON CONSTRUCTION GROUP INC
: Fi

A
Mark Hammond Soutl-1 Carolina Secretary of State

R
|



CERTIFIED TO BE A TRUE AND CORRECT COPY
AS TAKEN FROM AND COMPARED WITH THE
ORIGINAL ON FILE IN THIS OFFICE ’ .

Jan 26 2017
REFERENCE 1D: 1701261028504

l 'iwgwdarécaxﬁnmu

Thompson Construction Group, Inc

Name of Corporation

Dt n’lm\IO?)

Gregory A Thompson, President

Type or Prnt Name and Title
-, : ]
FILING INSTRUCTIONS
) 1 Two copies of this form the onginal and erther a duplicate onginal or a coqfonned copy must be filed
2 . Filing Fea (paﬁble to tﬁe Seaetary of State at the time of'ﬁ!mg this document) - $10 00
3 Pursuant to Section 33 5 102(b) of the 1976 South Carolma Code of Laws as amended the registered agent can file

this when the only change is the streat address of the registered office In this situation the following statement should be
} lyped on the form above the registered agent s signature  The comparation has been notified of this change Inthis case
the filing fee 1s $2 00

Retumto Secretary of State
l P O Box 11350
' Columbia SC 29211

' . BOM NOTICE OF CHG OF REG OFFICE OR AGT doc Form Revised by'South Carolina
: - Secretary of State January 2000



CERTHFIED TO BE A TRUE AND CORRECT COPY Ce—
AS TAKEN FROM QND COMPARED WITH THE
'ORIGINAL ON FILE IN THIS OFFICE

Jan 26 2017
REFERENCE ID: 1701261028504
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STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA
SECRETARY OF STATE

ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT

TYPE OR PRINT CLEARLY IN BLACK INK

Pursuant Section 33-10-106 of the 1976 South Car%lma Code of Laws, as amended; the undersigned
corporation adopts the following Articles of Amendment to tts Articles of Incorporation

71 The name of the corporation is Thompsen industnal Services, Inc
2 Date of Incorporation December'31, 1986
3 Agent's Name and Address Gregory A Thompson, 115 Broad Street: Sumter SC 29150
4

On___ March 6, 2006 , the corporation adopted the following Amendment (s) of its Articles

of Incorporation  (Type or attach the complete text of each Amendment)

The name of the corporation Is hereby changed from

Thompsen Industnal Services, Inc to Thompson Construction Group, Inc

5 The manner, If not set forth In the Amendment, 1n which any exchange, reclassification, or
cancellation of 1ssued shares provided for in the Amendment shall be effected, 1s as follows (if not

applicable, insert "not applicable” or "NA")

6 Complete either “a” or “b®, whichever is applicable

a Amendment(s) adapted by shareholder action

- At the date of adoption of the Amendment, the number of cutstanding shares of each voting
group entitled to voie separately on the Amendment, and the vote of such shares was

Number of Number of Number of Votes
Voting Outstanding Votes Entitled Represented at
Group Shares o be Cast the meeting
common . 108,500 * 106,500 106,500
shareholders -
0803130088 FILED- 03/13/2006

THOMPSON CONSTRUCTION GROUP, INC

- A

Mark Hammond South Carolina Secretary o

Number of Undisputed*

106,500 for amendment




CERTIFIED TO BE A TRUE AND CQRRECT COPY e _ _ e
AS TAKEN FROM AND COMPARED WITH THE
orfGINAL ON.FlLE.IN THIS OFFICE
Jan 26 2017
REFERENCE ID: 1701261028504~

Thompson Industrial Services. Inc
~,;773‘£¢%£%%é— : Namo of Corporation

*NOTE Pursuant to Section 33-10-106(6)(1) of the 1976 South Carolina Code of Laws, as amended, the
corporation can alternatively state the total number of disputed shares cast for the amendment
by each voting group together with a statement that the number of cast for the amendment by
8ach voting group was sufficient for approval by that voting group

b O The Aﬁxendment(s) was duly adopted by the incorporators or board of directors without
shareholder approval pursuant to Sectan 33-6-102(d), 33-10-102 and 33-10-105 of the
1976 South Carolina Code of Laws, as amended, and shareholder achon was not reduired

7 Unless a delayed dated s specified, the effective date of these Articles of Amendment shall be the v
date of acceptance for filng by the Secretary of State (See Section 33-1-230(b) of 1976 South
Carolina Code of Laws, as amended)

Dafte March 6, 2008

. Type or Pant Nema and Offica ,

ILING INSTRUCTION

1 Two coples of this form, the onginal and etther a duplicate onginal or a cenformed copy must by filed

2  [fthe space in s form s insutficient, please attach additonal shests contanung a reference to the appropnate paragraph
thus fom .

3 Filing fees and taxes payable lo the Secretary of State at time of filing application

Fitng Fee $ 1000
Filing tax 100 00
Total $110 00

Returnto Secretary of State
PO Box 11350
Columbra, SC 29211

BOM-ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT doc Form Rewised by South Carglina
Secretary of State, January 2000
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CERTIFIED TO BE A TRUE AND CORRECT COPY
AS TAKEN FROM AND COMPARED WITH THE
. ORIGINAL ON FILE IN THIS OFFICE

" Jan2s .‘ )
REFERENCE lD:‘l?OlZGlOZESW M

" STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

AY OF STATE ‘! SECRETARY OF STATE
~ECRETA ) v
FILED

= _ ARTICLES OF AMENDMENT
AM"JUN051,991 i -

TTala[mmpel i [2[3[4[5]8) ~

A

Y

Pursuant §Section 3-10-106 of the 1976 South Carolina Code,

( as amended, the findersigned cor-.
poration adopts the following Articles of Amendment to its Artici

es of Incorporation:

.1. The name of the corporation is Thompson Industrial Serviceg, Inc. -

2. On _May 26, 1997
Articles of Incorporation;

(Type or attach the complete text of Each Amendment)
See Copy of Minutes Attached )

the corporation adopted the following Amendmenti(s) of its

‘\
3. The manner, if not set forth in the amendment, in which any exchange, reclassification, or cancella-

tion of issued shares provided for in the Amendment shall be effected, is as follows: (if not applicable,

insert *“not applicable” or*‘NA"’).

N/A

4. Complete either a or b, whichever is applicable.
a. BX Amendment(s) adopted by shareholder action.
At the date of adoption of the amendment, the number of outstanding shares of each voting
group entitled to vote separately on the Amendment, and the vote of such shares was:

Number of Numbaer of Number of Votes Number of Undisputed*
Voting Outstanding Vates Entitled Reprasented at Shares Voted
Group Shares to be Cast the meeting . Against
Common 1,070 < 1,070 1,070 1,070 ~0-

\

97-014418BC



CERTIFIED TO BE A TRUE AND CORRECT COPY .

A N -:‘;’gé’p}‘é‘v}r}s”fm Section 33-10-106(6)(), the corporation can alternatively state the total number of shares
Jn262017  ©881 for the amendmaent by each voting group together with a statement that the number of cast for the amend-
reFerence I0: 170126100808 Dy each voting group was sufficlent for approval by that voting group.

—
M .
TS TR ARy O B1ATE G SOUTH CAMOLRA .

b. ] The Amendment(s) was duly adopted by the incorporators or board of directors without
shareholder approval pursuant to §33-6-102(d), 33-10-102 and 33-10-105'of the
1976 South Carolina Code as amended, and shareholder action was not required. -

5. Unless a delayed date is specified, the effective date of these Articles of Amendment shall be
the date of acceptance for filing by the Secretary of State (See §33-1-230(b)):

DATE _May 26, 1997

Greg A. Thompson, President )

(Type or Print Name and Offics)

FILING INSTRUCTIONS
1. Two copies of hia farm, mooﬁginmandoit;m-dupthmodﬁmlaamfumm.mwﬁw.

2. umupmtntmmmnaumm.mmmmmmamwmm&wnmm.
3 nummwmmmhmmamasmauumumgm '

Flling Feo $ 10.00
Fliing tax 100,00 .
Totss $110.00

Form Approved by South Caroiina '
Secretary of State 1/89
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CERTIFIED TO BE A TRUE,AND CORRECT COPY
AS TAKEN FROM AND COMPARED WITH THE
ORIGINAL ON FILE IN THIS OFFICE

Jan 26 2017
° REFERENCE'ID: 1701261028504

MINUTES OF THE
SHAREHOLDERS MEETING
' OF :
THOMPSON INDUSTRIAL SERVICES, INC.

Pursuant to waiver of notice (copies of which are attached), a special meeting ofthe °
Shareholders of the above corporation was held on May 26, 1997 at 4:00 PM at the corporation'’s
place of business.

}

I. QUORUM. A quorum was declared present based on the following Shareholders who were
present-or represented by proxy as follows:

- Shareholder: Greg A. Thompson
Number of Shares: 700
The Shareholder was represented in person.

- Shareholder; Lewis E. Thompson
Number of Shares: 300
The Shareholder was represented in person.

- Shareholder: Marco.G. Lardi
Number of Shares: 65
The Shareholder was represented in person.

- Shareholder: M. Richard Hamby, Jr.
Number of Shares: §
The Shareholder was represented in person. |

The following corporate actions were taken by appropriate motions duly made, seconded, 'and
adopted by the unanimous vote 6f the Shareholders entitled to vote (unless a higher voting
approval is stated).

II. AUTHORIZATION OF CORPORATE ACTION. The Officers were authorized to take
ali actions and to sign all'documents reasonably needed to: i

-III, AUTHORIZED STOCK. Amend the Articles of Incorporation to increase the authorized
shares of the Company from 10,000 shares to 200,000 shares.

There being no further business, the meeting was duly adjourned.

1420 d@ﬂeﬁr
Greg!A. Thompso;

President ‘

A}

Initials:
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TE m;mv 08 STATE CF SOUTH CAROLIA

pro2gsid " < T gTaTE F SOUTH CAROLINA

RS .07+ . 'SECRETARYOFSTATE -
. ARTICLES OF INCORPORATION
- S op T onanen

DEC3 1 1986,
ajujie 2}

viTh pson ]:'ndixsti'ial"Seryieés In MR
o - . (f;'ﬂéthisl-‘orﬁa‘in . < o ‘
B . . Dupﬂcatg Originals) - - . " -This S_pnfce for Use - . ) RN

- {§33-1-30,0f 1976 Code) o Secretary of Stite R

S - JuL-01762 4773

. B7-860044/B7-008044 694220 892 - N i

S . . , ST -82-87 Piv:445.60 - §
LT . : S T © - SECT-OF STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

I. Thenameof lhe'proi:qscdcorpota'lior; is Wk—ne, Tne
. Theinitiel reglstered office of the corporation is 115 Broad Street - - I
- \ . ) . T  -Sinvt & Nembey T . |
Sumter . .. - ... Sumter L - s 29150 - . G, - :
' T On o Cousty T Tacee . A

. andthe initiﬁl.regis_tcrul: agent at such address is Greg A Thompson

~

4. The corporation is at;thérizcd to issue shares of stock as follows:
Gwoimua " Avthotzro Ne: of Exch Clae . Purvane

Common ‘ ~10,000 - : L 41000

If shares are divided into two 6¢ more classes or if any class oi‘ shates is divided into scries within a class, the . i
-+ relative rights, preferences, and limitations of the shares of cach class, and of each series within a class, are as . :
follows: ) . : o o oo i

Not. Applicable.

) .6 The existence of, the corporation shall begin as of 't:he filing date with the Se.cre':‘ary':of State mm
. N : e e s

7. -“The number of dfi’éc}ors' constituting the initial board of din;'c‘um of the corporation is _ :
" and the names and addresses of the persons who are to serve as directors until the first annual meeting of

’!

s. Totalauthorizgdcapiial,stockk e . and g n 3100 000 g0y - ‘,
. . c - I
[

|

F

shareholders or until their successars be elected and-qualify arc as /follnvbs:‘ o . ‘
. . " . - - .- ) E - LN i

© . oGee A Thomsn - 7 . 115 Broad Street, Sumer. sC 20is0 - [
B e I VR o
. e — - : = .

B. The general nature of the business for which the corporation'is organized is as follows: (1t is not necessary B
ta set foith the' powers enumerated irf §33-3-10 of 1976 Code) Any and all things permitted by the o
.- .. South Carolina Corporations Act and more ‘particularly to engage in’ the repair L i
* improvements, ‘redecorating, -sandblasting, painting, refurbishing,fmaintenmce..” N |
. " renovation-and alterations: of business, .commercial, industrial and residential . - -
7. “sites and all. other related and collateral activities. . : - . R

9. Provisions which the incor, oratars elect to include in the driicles of incorporatlon are os follows: (Attach -
. additional sheel(s) if fecessary) - - . - o ¢ T, T o
 None = - -

]
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CERTIFIED TO BY
AS TAKEN FROM
ORIGINAL O

REFERENGS

. g,,'.;.f. of Isocpotstos . - Typeot Prist Mame
S ’ IR *. Styrstare of laeomponttér g . PR 3 ".-Tz_;-'nrmuNn:

...Szuuiullmv Lo e o . Taot or Prich Ksme .

;' . Slgulunl:l Imapomn ; ‘. : - . - 0T '(»u'.n;mm-u . ., 5
. Date: e ’ o . .
courm'op SUMI'ER L T — e L S R
Th:undcrsxgned Gre,,_A__Thnnpsm IR DR e o
do hiereby certify that thcy arethe j meorporalors of _Th nstria Tvic . S :,
"-Cotporation and are authorized to execute.this vyerification; that ench orthe undersngneddaes hereby cemry that . .,
he or she has read the roresomg document, undl:rstands the in: .dnd purport of ﬂxe sfalemem.s therem con-
tained and the same are true: to the. hest ‘of hxs or her informano ¢ bclch . Y o R
N — : X .Ih‘lmnhu‘;;luurr.ztcr ﬂ'l'flh'cﬂlnmv'uxlu :

- Syaatute of locwrpacstor - - . L * ¢, Sigastxre of larasporator
RS B : [ . . .

OERTlFlCATE OF A'I'I'ORNEY

L Marvin B MeMillap, Jel D anauorneyncensed topmuneln th:Smleof B
.. South Carolina, ccmfy that the corporation, to whose amclcs of incorporation this certificate is attached, ‘has '
- : compliedwitli the requirements of Chapter 7 of Title 33 of the Code of Lavis of South Carolina (1976) relaling to..

'the organizanon of corpomiuns. and lhat in my opmi ‘n. the ccrporanon is urgamzed for a law ubpurpose. |
. Date~ . (8 4.4 . _ E
; - R éhrvm E, Mcbﬁ_llm Jr” '

R PR ERE E . - Trpeor ]
T FEU e Post 0ff1ce Box 1289 /' :
. . E ,-',. . ' Sumter c, - SC-

. T SOHEDULE OF FEES:
PR ARTP (Payable at t:mc of fiting- Aruclcs with Secrcta.ry of State)

R Fee!orﬂllughxlitle: ST ;' C L
R | | ndﬂ:lcnmlheabov:.s.ﬂomrmh .
et T SI.owworlbeummmueor .
- . .. shares which’ lh:mwadmhamho- Do o L Tl .o
rimdtohsue.hmlnuoemlmlhan STt 4000 . - e T P
~nnrmamhnn Lo . . ) . |.ooo.no : - *

v NDTE' 'n-us FORM MUS‘F BE coum.mo NATS ENT]RETY aszu-: m wu.l. BE ACCEPTED‘ FOR FILING. oo
A THIS FORM. MUST BE ACCOMPANIED BY THE FIRST REPORT, OF conromnons AND A cnecx m The.
o moum- oF :xooopmam.sro THE SOUTH" CAROI._INA TAxcommss:ou. Tt T




JobCode
ACCTS
ACTCLK
ADM
APM-IND
BDD
BOM
CAR

CF

CH 1-3
CMAPM
CMASU
CMF
CMFSU
CMPM
CONF
CONSTDIR
CONTADM
CRANE
Ccwi
DIROF
DRIVE
EFSU
ELE
ELE1
ELEH
ELF
ELLM
ELMT
ELT
ENG
EQMGR
EST 07
EST 17
EXEC
EXEC-OP
FE
FEIND
FOR

GF
HOUSE
HRGEN
HRMGR
HVACMEC
HVACST
IETECH
IF

IT

ITD

w

IWF
IWH4

THOMPSON CONSTRUCTION GROUP, INC.

JobDesc

Accountants

Accounting Clerk

Admin - Office Personnel
Industrial Asst Proj Mgr.
Business Development Dir
Boiler Maker
Carpenter/Civil
Carpenter/Civil Foreman
Carpenter/Civil Helper1-3
Commercial Asst Proj Mgr
Commercial Asst Super
Commercial Foreman
Commercial Field Superint
Commercial Project Mgr
Concrete Finisher
Construction Director
Contract Administrator
Crane Operator

Certified Weld Inspector
Director of Finance

TOM Vehicle Driver
Electrical Field Superint
Electrician

Electrical Helper (Top)
Electical Helper Level2-4
Electrical Foreman
Electrical Leadman
Electronics/Mechanic Tech
Electronics Technician
Engineer

Equipment Manager
Estimator 07

Estimator 17
Executive-Administration
Executive-OfficePersonnel
Field Engineer Commercial
Field Engineer Industrial
Foreman

General Foreman
Housekeeping Labor

HR Generalist

HR Manager

HVAC Mechanic

HVAC Serv Technician
Instrumentation-Ele. Tech
Instrument Fitter
Information Technology

IT Director

Iron Worker

Iron Worker Foreman

iron Worker Helper (top)

Page 1

Employees
2
4
43
4
2

-
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IWW
LAB
LAB1
LOG
LOGL
MARKET
MASON
MASU
MC
MCF2
MCFSU
MCL
MECHSM
MFSU
MGF
MHL
MHL1-3
MIL
MILL
MILLF
MOPM
MPM
MPSCH
MSHLP
MSM
MTECH
MTECHL
MX

oP

PA

PA1
PAL
PAM
PCCORD
PCM
PF

PFF
PFH
PFL
PFW
PLU
PRCLK
PUR
PW
PWF
Qc
Qcp
RIG
RIGF
ROD
RUN
SAFETY

iron Worker Welder
General Laborer

Laborer Level 1

Logistics

Logistics Leadman
Marketing

Mason

Mech Assist Field Supernt
Mechanical Cleaner
Mechanical Clean Foreman2
Mech Clean Field Superint
Mechanical Clean Leadman
Mechanical Site Manager
Mechanical Field Superint
Mechanical Gen Foreman
Material Handling Laborer
Mechanical Helper 1-3
Millwright

Millwright Lead Man
Millwright Foreman
Mechanical Operations Mgr
Mech Project Manager
Maint. Planner/Scheduler
Maintenance Helper
Maintenance Site Manager
Maintenance Technician
Maintenance Tech. Lead
Mech Materials Expeditor
Equipment Operator
Production Associate
Painter Level 1 (top)
Production Associate Lead
Painter/Maintenance
PreCon Coordinator
Project Controls Manager
Pipe Fitter

Pipe Fitter Foreman

Pipe Fitter Helper

Pipe Fitter Leadman

Pipe Fitter Welder
Plumber

Payroll Clerk

Purchasing Agent

Pipe Welder

Pipe Welder Foreman
Quality Control

Quality Control Director
Rigger

Rigging Foreman

Rod Buster/Civil

Runner

Safety Personnel

Page 2
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SAL

SCB
SDIR
SECUR
SPM
SRTECH
SRVT
SSF
SSwW
TOO
TRNSPC
T™W

Sales Representative
Scaffold Builder
Safety Director
Security Officer
Special Project Manager
Shipping-Recv. Technician
Service Technician
Structural Fitter
Structural/Steel Welder
Tool Room Attendant
Training Specialist
Tube Welder

TOTAL EMPLOYEES
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Thompson

Thompson Construction Group, Inc.
Yearly Gross Revenue (3 years)

Section F. 2 Corporate Experience and Capacity

2014 = $187.1MM
2015 = $282.5MM
2016 = $350MM



I, Mac Warner, Secretary of State of the State of
West Virginia, hereby certify that

THOMPSON CONSTRUCTION GROUP, INC.

a corporation formed under the laws of South Carolina filed an application to be
registered as a foreign corporation authorizing it to transact business in West Virginia.
The application was found to conform to law and a “Certificate of Authority” was
issued by the West Virginia Secretary of State on July 15, 2005.

I further certify that the corporation has not been revoked by the State of West Virginia
nor has a Certificate of Withdrawal been issued to the corporation by the West Virginia
Secretary of State.

Accordingly, I hereby issue this Certificate of Authorization

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORIZATION

Given under my hand and the
Great Seal of the State of
West Virginia on this day of

June 16, 2017

e Hom

Secretary of State

Notice: A centificate issued electronically from the West Virginia Secretary of Stute's Web site is fully and immediately valid and effective. However, as an option, the issuance and validity of a centificate obtained electronically may
be established by visiting the Cenificate Validation Page of the Secretary of State’s Web site, https://apps.wv.gov/sos/busi itysearch/validate.aspx entering the validation ID displayed on the certificate, and following the
instructions displayed. Co ing the issuance of a centif is merely optional and is not y to the valid and effective issuance of a centificate.
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SEAMLESS TUBE MILL
SHREVEPORT, LA

Thompson was initially awarded a Cost-Plus contract to install process piping systems for an intermediate
reheating area and an intermediate reheating furnace on a new tube mill project. The initial scope included
approximately 14,000 feet of pipe and 30,000 workhours. Based on the safe, quality, and timely work of
Thompson's team, many additional areas were awarded. The piping scope of works included hydraulics, grease,
natural gas, lube oil, de-scaling water, cooling water, on-board equipment piping, instrumentation tubing, and
various utilities. Thompson also performed pressure testing, flushing, chemical cleaning, and assisted with
commissioning/start-up activities. With an extensive work history in steel mill construction, Thompson provided
Danieli with a capable contractor and ultimately finished the project on schedule.

Contract Value - $15,000,000

Project Manager - Kendall Revis

Project Superintendent - Eddie Gardner & Jimmy Willis
Duration of Project - 7 months

Reference & Email - Jason Neal - j.neal@danielicorp.com

}LF R : 63 500 W )
7Instrrumentat|on Tublng - TE: N 6, 900

Total Welds ‘EA 23,500

| Chemical Cleanlng/FIushmg ;Lilgriiiiiiﬂi 7 v 9,0007

Eil\]ainpoweriPeak - ?Eﬂﬁiii R 220

Start-Up and Commissioning Support \ HRS 10,380

Total Manhours 'HRS - 170,000 ]

100 North Main Street
' Sumter, SC 29150

803.773.8005

Thoml)SOII www.thompsonsoutheast.com



DUKE
ENERGY.

e . B y -
DUKE ENERGY
TERRELL, NC - MARSHALL STEAM STATION # 4

The scope of work for this project included:

e Removal and Replacement of the Front and Rear Waterwalls and Upper Side Walls
e Removal and Replacement of Upper Front Outlet Header

e Partial Removal and Replacement of Division Panel and Superheat Platen Tubes

e 6,446 Pressure Part Welds with 100% Radiographic Inspection

e 14 Week Duration Using Two 10-Hour Shifts, 7 Days a Week

e Utilized In-House Recruitment Resources to meet Shutdown Labor Needs

e Project Manpower Peaked at 144 Personnel

Contract Value $10,717,000

Project Manager Joe Dueitt -
Duration of Project 14 weeks

Reference & Email Jason Hudgins, Duke Project Manager, Jason.Hudgins@duke-energy.com

100 North Main Street
Sumter, SC 29150
803.773.8005
www.thompsonsoutheast.com



TATE X LYLE

CHP Piping Project

Tate & Lyle - Loudon, TN

Contract Value $2,311,941

Project Manager Robert Frierson

Reference Tom Vermeersch - Site Construction Manager
Reference Phone Number 865-458-5681

'A\-‘&\

4‘\‘ 7‘ 'n

Fabrication, installation, painting (as necessary) and testing of all piping systems from the existing Boiler Building to
two new Rentech HRSG units as well as all exterior piping systems for two new Siemens Gas Turbines. Savings
were realized by fabricating a significant percentage of the work in Thompson's pipe fabrication facility in Sumter, SC.
Approximately 3,500 man-hours of work was performed in the shop with an additional 10,500 man-hours at the Tate
& Lyle facility. The work involved 6,500 If (1/2" to 24" diameter of HRSG related piping and 900 If (1/2" to 6" diameter)
of turbine related piping. Systems installed include:

HRSG

Steam (Carbon Steel) Condensate (Carbon Steel)

Boiler Drain (Carbon Steel) Boiler Blowdown (Carbon Steel)

Boiler Feedwater (Carbon Steel) Continuous Blowdown (Carbon Steel)

Drain (Carbon Steel) Natural Gas (Carbon Steel)

High Pressure Natural Gas (Carbon Steel) Scanner Air {Carbon Steel)

Make Up Water (Stainless Steel) Warm Water Supply and Return (Stainless Steel)
Turbine

Compressor Wash Water (Stainless Steel) Lube Qil (Stainless Steel)

Seal Air (Stainless Steel) Vent (Stainless Steel)

) . ’ www.thompsonisoutheast.com



WACKER

T T BT

T D A S T R B D O P e T ST i e TS

CHARLESTON, TN

Thompson was awarded a Lump Sum contract to install approximately 200,000 lineal feet of process piping
throughout the pipe racks on a confidential project for Wacker Chemie near Cleveland, TN. The welding processes
mandated on this project caused the success of weldments to be especially challenging. Thompson’s tenacity and
can-do attitude turned a very difficult project into a success for Wacker and Thompson. Changed work due to
evolving design added approximately 20,000 feet of piping to the base contract. During the execution of this
contract, Wacker awarded several other smaller work packages to Thompson for structural steel erection,
equipment setting, and structural modification work due to Thompson's ability to perform safe, quality work within
reasonable budget and time constraints.

Contract Value - $53,000,000
Project Manager - Brian Stancil

Project Superintendents - Marty Jones & Steve Grosskopf

m of Project - 1'9 Months

Reference - Stefan Ragaller

Structural Steel ITONS 320

Instruments & Valves . ' EA ' - 2,100 7
Cable Tray LF 5,700

Tubing Tray ' W - 2,900 .

Concrete CYD 40

Process & Ultility Piping LF 220,000 g
: Equipment Set, Aligned & Grouted EA 40
‘Manhours iHRS 300,000

100 North Main Street
Sumter, SC 29150

803.773.8005
ThOmPSOIl www.thompsonsoutheast.com



voestalpine

VOESTALPINE GOWEST PROJECT
PORTLAND, TX

Thompson Construction Group, Inc., as a subcontractor to Lexicon, Inc., was awarded the VoestAlpine
GoWest Project M10 piping package in Portland, Texas. The VoestAlpine Texas LLC project was being
constructed to process 2 million tons per year of Hot Briquetted Iron (HBI). Thompson performed the
fabrication and erection of Midrex Direct Reduction Process large diameter piping, 18” nominal in
diameter and larger, associated with the phase of the project referred to as Area 1.

Area 1 includes the following major areas: Process Tower, Reduction Furnace, Briquetter Dedusting,
Top Gas Scrubber, Process Gas Mist Eliminator, Process Gas Compressor System, Reformed Gas
Cooler, Seal Gas Compressor System, Reformer and Main/Auxiliary Air Blower Building.

Contract Value - $13,580,000
Total Project Workhours - 157,000

Project Manager - Steve Chapman

Project S[JE)érintendent . Benny Walker

Duration of Project - 15 Months

Reference & Email - Ellery May ellery@lexicon-inc.com

14,125
Welds EA 2,430
Weld (dbs) ~ DBinches 65365 B
Direct Craft - Manpower Peak - TEA - a7 - -
Direct Craft Manhours U HRS - 115,500

100 North Main Street
Sumter, SC 29150
803.773.8005

.[hompson www.thompsonsoutheast.com
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Rayonier Performance Site-Jesup, GA
Installation of Rentech Boilers

Contract Value
Project Manager
Duration
Reference

Reference Email

$1,172,000
Dale Thurston
3 months
Randy Tucek

Rtucek@rentechboilers.com

Scope of Work

Complete the Installation of (2) Rentech Boilers including but not limited to:

* Installation of Furnace Support, Prefabricated End Walls, and Prebent Furnace Tube Panels

Burner Installation

¢ Installation of Refractory, Insulation, and Lagging




NUCOR STEEL
CONVENT, LOUISIANA

Thompson was awarded multiple lump sum contracts to install encased equipment drain piping, underground utility piping,
DRI Reactor process piping, raw water piping, and an iron oxide conveyor system for a new steel mill in Convent, Louisiana.

Thompson also set surge and feed bins that weighed 30-55 tons each.

Contract Value

$24,500,000

Pipe Project Manager

Stevé Chapman -

Conveyor Project Manger

Robert Frierson

Reference

John Elliott

Reference Email

john.elliott@nucor.com

4
1

lQUANTITY
1

DPE Pipe (2°-24") LF ~|15.000

Steel Pipe ' LF 38,500 o
i Conveyors . 'LF :10,250 ‘
| Steel (Excludes Trusses, Catwalks & Bins) 'TONS 1,500

Pipe Man Hours o HRS 145,000»

Conveyor Man Hours HRS 1997000 o

100 North Main Street
Sumter, SC 29150
803.773.8005
www.thompsonsoutheast.com



Horsehead Project— Zinc Refinery, Forest City, NC

Contract Value $57,000,000

Project Manager Robert Frierson

Reference Jeff Rihn jrihn@horsehead.net
Reference Phone Number (724) 462-9920

Project Duration MONTHS 17

Fiberglass Pipe LF 95,000

Carbon/Stainless Steel Pipe LF 55,000

Steel TONS 250

Equipment & Tanks Setting EA 990

Instruments Installed EA 1,200

Man-Hours HRS 475,000
Summary

Thompson is awarded multiple lump sum contracts to install process equipment and
associated process and utility piping for a new Greenfield Zinc Refinery in Forest City, NC.




Thyssen Krupp @

THYSSENKRUPP - HOT STRIP MILL PIPING
CALVERT, AL

Thompson was awarded a lump sum contract to provide labor and consumables to install Hot Strip Mill
Process Piping for a new steel mill in Calvert, AL. The scope increased from quantities provided in the
base bid by TK. As a result, Thompson installation man hours increased by 27%. The delivery dates of
TK furnished equipment slipped as much as 6 months from initial published dates. Despite the delays,
TCG completed the original scope in the originally scheduled 71 weeks. Scope changes including a 2nd
furnace installation extended the schedule to 90 weeks. At the Grand Opening of the Hot Strip Mill
production line, ThyssenKrupp management recognized Thompson as a key contributor to the success
of the project.

Original Project Value - $3,600,000,000
Original Contract Value - $54,467,000
Final Contract Value - #68,724,352
Project Manager - Steve Chapman

Project Superintendent - Jan Wilk

Original Schedule Duration - 71 Weeks
Actual Schedule Duration - 30 Weeks

Reference and Email - Bill Hosner, bill. hosner@thyssenkrupp.com

Additional Reference - Ed Miltenberger, ej. miltenberger@siemens.com

Process Piping (5/16" - 647) 240,000
On-Board Equipment Piping LF S 20,000
Engineered & Field Fabricated Supports EA - ' 7,000
Equipment Set, Aligned & Grouted EA 450
Man Hours ‘ - IHRS 906,049

100 North Main Street
Sumter, SC 29150
803.773.8005

Thompson wiw hompsonsoutheast com



THYSSENKRUPP - COLD ROLL MILL PIPING

CALVERT, AL

Thompson Construction Group was awarded a lump sum contract to provide labor and consumables to
install Cold Roll Mill process piping for a new ThyssenKrupp (TK) Steel Mill in Calvert, Alabama. The
scope also included painting, pressure testing, chemical cleaning and flushing services. Thompson was
awarded a 10% increase in contract based on an increase in scope. With increased manpower,
Thompson completed all of the work within the original schedule duration. At the Grand Opening of the
Cold Roll Mill production line, ThyssenKrupp Management recognized Thompson Construction Group as
a key contributor to the success of the project.

Original Project Value - $3,600,000,000
Original Contract Value - $33,000,000
Final Contract Value - $36,568,971
Project Manager - Tony Morris

Project VSﬁperintendent - Benny Walker

Original Schedule Duration - 52 Weeks
Actual Schedule Duration - 52 Weeks
Reference and Email - Bill Hosner, bill.hosner@thyssenkrupp.com

Additional Reference - Ed Miltenberger, ej.miltenberger@siemens.com

Process Piping (5/16" - 64") ] | LF B B ] 150,000
On-Board Equipment Piping LF 35,000
Engineered & Field Fabricated Supports EA 5,000
Equipment Set, Aligned & Grouted EA 300
Man Hours HRS 509,526

100 North Main Street
Sumter, SC 29150

Thompson 803.773.8005

www.thompsonsoutheast.com



A T T L T B A A T e N e A o ol e e A e P T

NEW TIRE MANUFACTURING PLANT
SUMTER, SC

Troester contracted Thompson Construction Group to install 3 of their tire component manufacturing lines for Continental Tire’s
new facility in Sumter, SC. The scope of work included mechanical, piping, electrical and instrumentation. Responsible for
manufacturing the sidewall, tread and inner liner of a tire, the lines consisted of seven extrusion machines and two 40,000
pound calendars. The equipment and conveying systems measured approximately 200 feet long and stacked 2 stories high.
Piping consisted of stainless and carbon systems for supplying cooling water to various parts of the machinery. The contract
was a cost reimbursable labor contract.

Contract Value $1,840,000

Project Manager Brian Stancil

’Project Superintendent Larry‘ L&;an

Duration of Project 21 ;}veeks

Reference & Email Michael Neubauer, (330) 982-7790, mike.neubauer@troester.us.com

Lines Set (Tread, Sidewall, Inner Liner)
Cable 35,000
Terminations EA 16,000
24"-36" Wide Cable Tray LF 1,100
WireWay R 2,100
Instruments Installed EA 1330

i Man Hours ‘HRS 3 31,329

100 North Main Street
Sumter, SC 29150
803.773.8005

Thompson www.thompsonsoutheast.com



Albany Green Energy

ALBANY GREEN ENERGY
ALBANY, GA

The scope of work for this project included:

Energy Production: 50 MW, & 425,000 #/hr Process Steam
Installation of Valmet CFB Boiler Including:

2,000 Tons of Structural Steel

Fuel Feed

Furnace/Cyclone/Back Pass

Air Heater/Economizer
Air System Including Primary, Secondary Flue Gas, Loop Seal, Fans and Duct
Section 1 Piping
Bag House
Miscellaneous Systems Including Bottom Ash, SNCR, Dry Sorbent Injection, Sand Fill and Soot Blowers
Stack
Erection of Turbine Building Including:
280 Tons of Structural Steel
Setting and Alignment of Steam Turbine Generator and Auxiliaries

Interconnecting Piping

Contract Value $29,000,000

Project Manager Bob Landers & Bobby Britton

Duration of Project 16 Month Duration, September 2015 - December 2016
Reference & Email Paul Ryan, Executive Vice President, DCO Energy, LLC

pryan@dcoenergy.com 609-837-8099

100 North Main Street
Sumter, SC 29150

Thoml)SOn 803.773.8005

www.thompsonsoutheast.com



FirstQuality,

TISSUE
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FIRST QUALITY TISSUE CONVERTING LINES
ANDERSON, SC

Thompson Construction Group was awarded a lump sum contract to install 4 new converting lines at First Quality
Tissue in Anderson, SC. Thompson provided both mechanical and electrical installation services for 2 Perini and
2 Futura converting lines capable of processing both toilet paper and paper towels. The converting line equipment
included TMC wrappers, PCMC bundlers, PHC conveyor systems, E80 palletizers, stretch wrappers, case packers
and bridge cranes. Thompson also installed support systems for the converting lines. This included a broke
handling system supplied by AHI and Metso and dust filtration equipment supplied by Sorgato. Piping systems for
compressed air, water, glue, mineral oil lubrication and broke piping were installed by Thompson personnel.

Lump Sum Contract Value - $8,900,000

Mechanical Project Manager - Steve Chapman

Mechanical Superintendent - Terry Dowey

Electrical Project Manager - John Hodapp

Electrical Superintendent - John Zilch

Construction Duration - 7 months

puo}

Perini Converting Lines Installed
Futura Convertng Lines Installed EA 2
Power and Controls Cable LF 600,000
PLC'’s Installed EA B 8
 Man Hours Spent o WRS ;82,000

100 North Main Street
Sumter, SC 29150

803.773.8005
Thompson www.thompsonsoutheast.com



\_ Albemarle Corporatlon
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ALBEMARLE CORPORATION’S JAGUAR PROJECT
ORANGEBURG, SC

Thompson Construction Group was awarded a reimbursable EPC contract to provide detailed engineering
(less P&ID’s) and installation services for a fast track process line upgrade at Albemarle’'s Orangeburg Facility.
Within 2 weeks from initial introduction to the Jaguar Project, Thompson proposed, received award, staffed and
mobilized. Thompson hired Mustang Engineering to provide engineering support and self-performed the structural,
mechanical and electrical scopes of work. The highlights below were accomplished in a construction duration of
only 13 weeks.

T&M Contract Value - $7,681,000
Project Manager - Tony Morris

Project Superintendent - Jan Wilk
Actual Schedule Duration - 13 Weeks

Reference - Robert Thomas

New PLC’s Installed

New Process Pumps Installed EA 23
Instruments Installed or Reconnected EA 3,000
Pipe Designed, Procured and Installed LF 25,000
Man Hours Spent HRS 99,772

100 North Main Street
Sumter, SC 29150

Thompson 803.773.8005

www.thompsonsoutheast.com



Roche Carolina - East MIPU Expansion, Florence, SC

Overall Project Value $60,000,000

T&M Contract Value $19,000,000

Project Manager Brian Stancil

Project Superintendent Terry Dowey

Actual Schedule Duration 70 Weeks

Reference John Hinson, (843)629-4510
Reference Email john.hinson@roche.com

UNIT ‘ QUANTITY

Carbon Steel Threaded LF 7,000
Galvanized Victaulic LF 2,000
Carbon Steel Lined LF 20,000
Glass Lined LF 500
316L Stainless Steel LF 30,000
Tank Farm Steel Erection TONS 100
Equipment Set, Aligned and Grouted EA 140
Man Hours Spent HRS 218,613

Summary

Thompson Construction Group provided piping, equipment setting, building renovation, structural
steel and other installation services for the East MPU Project at Roche Carolina’s Florence, South
Carolina facility. With design approximately 60% complete, TCG was retained on a T&M basis to
work closely with CH2M Hill (the contracted engineer) and Roche Carolina (RCI) to install the project
within a 6-story, 80’ x 40’ bay inside the existing facility. Demolition and installation of a new
concrete beam/floor system was required to receive (6) 3,000 gallon reactors. Thompson completed
over 23,000 welds with only 14 rejects. Piping ranged in sizes from 2" to 16”. (12) process tanks, (2)
centrifuges, dryers, scrubbers and numerous small tanks were installed. All project milestones were
met and RCI produced saleable product on the first batch during commissioning.

- www.thompsonsoutheast.com




santee cooper

Santee Cooper - Winyah Station CEMS/MATS Installation

Contract Value $820,000

Project Manager Wes Drummond

Electrical Superintendent Donnie Dixon

Duration of Project 4 months 9000 MH

Reference Matt McCants

Reference Email matt.mccants@santeecooper.com

Summary

Fixed priced contract to furnish all labor, and materials to install the re CEMS/MATSs monitoring systems
at Winyah Generating Station located in Georgetown, SC. Thompson was selected based on the extensive
history with the installations of mercury monitoring equipment around the southeast. The equipment was
to be installed inside the exhaust stacks for units 1,2,3 and 4. This required the addition of 300+ feet of
tray running up the inside of each stack. Once the tray was run crews had to pull cable up the stack to
install new panels and transformers, as well as monitoring equipment located on multiple platforms. All
monitoring equipment had to be installed as well as the support system for the monitoring equipment.
The instruments that were installed also required setting of two small 10'x20’ buildings. One of which
was required to go inside the stack on the ground floor. The other building was set outside and Thomp-
son crews erected a steel structure to guard it from the elements. The power for the project was supplied
from existing panels, however, new transformers and panels were added in each stack to service the
needs of the instruments. Fiber optic cable was also installed as a monitoring device for the instruments,
as well as control wire to from the instruments to the buildings, and back to the plant DCS system.
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Polyplex, Inc-Decatur, AL
New Resin Facility

Overall Project Value $40,000,000.00

Contract Value $6,405,511.00

Project Manager Brian Stancil

Project Superintendent Terry Dowey/Marty Jones
Actual Schedule Duration 9 months

Reference Ashok Sharma

Reference Email ashoks@Polyplex.com

N MV UNIT QUANTITY
Pieces of Equipment Set EA 40
Steel Pipe LF 23,000
Stainless Steel Pipe LF 11,000
Carbon Steel Pipe LF 12,000
Hot Oil Jacketed Stainless Pipe LF 1,000
Structural Pipe Supports EA 3,500

Summary

Thompson Construction Group installed a
complex stainless and carbon steel piping
system (100% Dbutt-welded) along with
associated process equipment for a new
4-story, plastic resin-making facility. The
project was built to support Polyplex’s existing
plastic film-making process. Also included in
the scope of work was a complete stainless
steel jacketed pipe system for hot oil transfer.
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NVISTA

Project Willow Phase A, Band C

Contract Value $2,800,000

Project Manager Kendall Revis

Duration of Project 7 months

Man-hours 38,000

Reference Ricardo De La Paz

Reference Email Ricard.DelaPaz@invista.com

1

A M L 0 ouanmTY
Concrete Demolition & Installation CY 110

Architectural Roofing & Siding Installation SF 10,060

Electrical/Instrument Cable Pulled LF 41,400

Mechanical Equipment & Instruments Installed EA 175

Piping Installed LF 4,100
Summary

Invista engaged Thompson Construction Group in a cost reimbursable contract to furnish labor and
materials to complete a 3-phased project to modify two separate process lines.

The civil/architectural work included demolition, excavation and pouring of concrete foundations for new
equipment and enclosures. Installed with a Centria Ribbed Style roofing and siding system, a truck
loading shed, air dryer enclosure and vacuum pump enclosure were procured and installed by
Thompson.

The structural scope of work included modifying two existing towers and adding platforms for new
process equipment. The structural steel modifications also required various demolition activities to
accommodate the new process lines.

Thompson’s electrical scope was to disconnect and remove power to existing equipment and select pan-
els, modify existing panels, configure six new panels and re-energize the new equipment. Included
were various installations/terminations for equipment, lights, receptacles, heaters, control valves, panels,
control stations, on/off switches, etc.

The mechanical scope of work included installing numerous pieces of equipment, demolition of old
equipment and piping, new pipe fabrication and installation and the installation of two new 12" duct work
systems.
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Eastman-Solutia
Anniston, AL

Overall Project Value $30,000,000.00

Contract Value $4,637,010.00

Project Manager Brian Stancil

Project Superintendent Robert Newton/Roger Walden
Actual Schedule Duration 10 months

Reference Chris Glasscock

Reference Email chrisglasscock@eastman.com

: ITEM , QUANTITY
Carbon Steel Pipe (includes vessel trim ) LF 5,000
Major Equipment Set EA 32
Steel Structure TONS 32
MCC Building Set EA 1
Instruments EA 224
Cable Tray LF 2,200
Power Cable LF 10,000
Instrument Cable LF 38,000
Control Cable LF 11,000
Terminations LF 4,400

Summary

Thompson Construction Group, Inc.
installed Concrete Foundations,
Concrete Slabs and Curbs, Structural
and Miscellaneous Steel, Process Piping,
Utility Piping, Cable Tray, Cable,
Process Equipment both rough-set and
final-set, instruments, MCC Room, and
terminations. This scope of work was for |
a new process to help Eastman produce [§
additional chemical product at the |
Anniston location.
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Contract Value $10,500,000

Project Manager Tim Heichelbech

Project Superintendent Steve Hinson

Construction Dates 5/1/12-12/1/12
Reference Marty Drew or Brian Mezei
Reference Phone Number (803) 905-3920

Project Summary:

Thompson Turner was awarded a design build contract for a new 175,000
square foot expansion at the Caterpillar Hydraulic Assembly Plant. The scope
included site clearing, civil, mechanical, electrical, plumbing, fire protection
and building construction. Thompson Turner’s design partner on this project
was TI Group; the architectural division of Thompson Construction Group.

®
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DUKE ENERGY
TERRELL, NC - MARSHALL STEAM STATION #2

The scope of work for this project included:

¢ Removal and Replacement of the Front and Rear Waterwalls

o Temporary Support of Major Boiler Components including Mud Drum, Buckstay Truss and Burner Equipment
e Partial Removal and Replacement of Division Panel and Superheat Platen Tubes

e 3,113 Pressure Part Welds with 100% Radiographic Inspection

e 13 Week Duration Using Two 10-Hour Shifts, 7 Days a Week

o Utilized In-House Recruitment Resources to meet Shutdown Labor Needs

e Project Manpower Peaked at 135 Personnel

N S W ORTTrs

Contract Value $6,632,000

Project Manager Joe Dueitt

Duration of Project 13 weeks

Reference & Email Jason Hudgins, Duke Project Manager, Jason.Hudgins@duke-energy.com

| DR

100 North Main Street

Sumter, SC 29150
803.773.8005
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NUCOR STEEL PROJECTS

Thompson Construction Group has successfully completed numerous mechanical and piping assignments for
Nucor Steel. A majority of these assignments were fixed scope, lump sum projects. In addition, Thompson has
nested maintenance service personnel at Nucor's Berkeley Plant near Charleston, South Carolina.

Wando, SC 1996 100,000
Ahoskie, NC 2000 54,000 226,000
Decatur, AL 2007/8 X 100,000
Memphis, TN 2007/8 12,000 80,000
Jewett, TX 2004 X 25,000
Conway and Blytheville, AR 2007/8 X 50,000
Elmira, NY 2001 X 40,000
Crawsfordville, IN 2002 X 80,000
Trinidad 2005/6 X 25,000

100 North Main Street
Sumter, SC 29150
803.773.8005
www.thompsonsoutheast.com
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Cliffside Modernization Project
Duke Cliffside Generating Station - Cliffside, NC

Contract Value $7,865,000
Project Manager Robert Frierson
Reference Jeff Richardson
Reference Telephone 704-382-3853

Project Summary: Thompson's scope of work included the engineering,
procurement and construction (EPC) of seven support buildings for the new Unit
#6 Coal Fired Unit as part of the Duke Cliffside Modernization Project. The
buildings include the FGD Electrical Control Building, Clarifier Chemical Building,
Water Treatment Building, Locomotive Storage Building, Cooling Tower Building,
Ash Handling Building, and Guard Shack. Work included the design, supply and
installation of the buildings’ structural steel, plumbing systems, HVAC systems,
electrical power and control systems, and all architectural components. Also,
included were 25 ton and 10 ton mobile bridge crane hoist systems in the Water
Treatment and Locomotive Storage Buildings.

Thompson self performed the installation of the structural steel building structures
and the HVAC, plumbing, and electrical systems. Subcontracted work included the
Centria roofing and siding, crane and hoists, masonry, Kewaunee lab equipment,
cabinetry, drywall, acoustical ceilings, flooring, windows and coatings.

www.thompsonsoutheast.com




(& JUNITED CONVEYOR
CORPORATION

UCC - TALEN ENERGY ASH SYSTEM UPGRADES
BALTIMORE, MD

Contract Value $375,674
Project Manager Kendall Revis
Reference Mark T. Cheek
Reference Telephone 847-473-5900

The United Conveyor Corporation assignment was at Talen Energy (formerly Raven) in Baltimore, MD. Due to the
additional sorbent being injected into the fly ash system at Wagner Station Unit 3, Talen needed to upgrade the
capacity of the conveyor system. Thompson in a joint effort with UCC provided solutions that included:

e System upgrades design
e Procured/staged/handled materials and new equipment

e Supplied labor for logistics, material handling, rigging, piping, electrical, demolition, installation, and
commissioning

e Replaced existing pipe components with heavy Durite sluice elbows and laterals to generate better flow (23)
e Removed an existing hopper and installed a larger capacity transfer unit

e Removed EMU wall adjacent to an existing mixer

® Transferred existing mixer (24K Ibs) to storage area for later use by Talen

¢ Installed upgraded Mixer, associated material feed equipment, valves, instrumentation, controls, panels, and
electrical terminations

® Removed isolation gates and installed new hand-wheel style isolation gates on precipitator hoppers (24 total)
¢ |Installed a new air heater, associated piping, electrical terminations, and control wiring
* Provided labor for assisting operations in check out and start-up

At project completion, both United Conveyor Corporation and Talen Energy provided positive feedback stating that
they will pursue similar opportunities with Thompson in the future.

100 North Main Street
Sumter, SC 29150

803.773.8005
Thompson www.thompsonsoutheast.com
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BIOENERGY POWER CYCLE

Anaerobic Digestion Electric Production Facility, Moncks Corner, SC

Contract Value $6,000,000

Electrical Project Manager John Hodapp
Structural/Mechanical Project Manager Tony Morris

Project Duration 8 months

Reference John Halbig (843) 371-0102

Project Summary: Thompson Construction Group recently completed a turnkey
installation of a new anaerobic digestion electric production facility near Moncks
Corner, South Carolina. The facility will convert organic wastes into biogas which will be
used to produce approximately 1.6MW of electricity. Thompson's structural, mechanical
and electrical crews installed process and material handling equipment for feedstocks
including waste sludge produced by wastewater treatment plants, sludge/slurry from
food processing facilities and grease trap pumpings from local sources including
restaurants and cafeterias. In addition to the equipment and controls, Thompson installed
the process building, offices and electrical generating equipment.




Thompson Construction Group’s largest duct
bank project was executed at the Showa Denko
Carbon Fiber Facility located in Ridgeville, South
Carolina. The $4,000,000 lump sum assignment
was under the construction management of Fluor
Corporation. Please contact Fluor's Tom
Norwood at (843) 289-1414 for a project
reference.

Thompson self-performs the civil and electrical
disciplines that include:

Survey and Layout

Excavation and Trenching
Manhole Assembly and Placement
Forming

Rebar Bending and Placement
Concrete Placement

Finishing

Wire Pulling and Terminations
Grounding

e &6 © 6 ¢ o ¢ ¢ ¢

Manhole Assembly:

Due to the size required, Thompson
assembled several manhole
components on site.

Manhole Placement: With precast
and predrilled manholes,
Thompson utilized GPS and optical
alignment technology for accurate
placement.

Critical Lifts:

Lifting plans were generated and
reviewed with owner representative
prior to execution.




Duct Bank Capabilities

L AL

Finishing:

Thompson’s scope of work ended
with manhole covers at the top of
road surface elevation.

Concrete Pours:

Thompson trench cut or built forms
prior to concrete placement around
properly spaced conduit banks.
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HDPE Piping Projects

Thompson Construction Group has successfully completed numerous HDPE piping
assignments. HDPE is a life cycle cost effective solution where corrosion or erosion is
prevalent from internal and/or external conditions. A majority of these pipe
assignments were fixed scope, lump sum projects. Thompson utilizes both rolling and
track mounted hydraulic operated fusion equipment for welds up to 36" diameter.
Manually operated portable fusion equipment is used for welds of 3” and below.
Thompson also has experience with Electrofusion fittings and couplings. Thompson
weld technicians are factory trained and certified to meet ASME B31.3 requirements.
Fusion data logger information is available if specified.

Steve Chapman 2" - 24" 14,910
Convent, LA
Horsehead Corporation Tony Morris 4" 210
Forest City, NC
SCE&G Williams Station Steve Chapman 10" 3,000
Goose Creek, SC
Santee Cooper Winyah Station Tony Morris 22" 15,240
Georgetown, SC
Nucor Steel Steve Chapman 24" 2,700
Decatur, AL
BP Amoco Steve Chapman 24" 2,400
Wando, SC
Progress Energy Robert Frierson 6" - 24" 8,600
Roxboro, NC

Thompson
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PORTER L. THOMPKINS, JR.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT TELEPHONE: (803) 773-1151
409 N. SALEM AVENUE P.0. BOX 2708 FAX: (803) 778-2998
SUMTER, SC 29150 SUMTER, SOUTH CAROLINA 29151 E-MAIL: pltcpa@fic-l.net

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of

THOMPSON CONSTRUCTION GROUP, INC.:

I have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Thompson
Construction Group, Inc. (a South Carolina § Corporation), which comprise the
consolidated balance sheets as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the consolidating
balance sheets as of December 31, 2016, and the related consolidated statements of
income, changes in stockholders' equity and cash flows for the years then ended, and
the consolidating statements of income for the year ended December 31, 2016, and the
related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

My responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements
based on my audits. I conducted my audits in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require that I
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to
the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, I express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluvating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for my audit opinion.

Opinion

In my opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly,
in all material aspects, the individual and consolidated financial positions of
Thompson Construction Group, Inc. as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the results of
their operations and their cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

MEMBER OF THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
-3-



Report on Supplementary Information

My audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements as a whole. The schedules of earnings from contracts and
consolidated entities, contracts completed, and contracts in progress are presented
for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the consolidated
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In my opinion, the information is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole.

Sumter, South Carolina
May 25, 2017




THOMPSON CONSTRUCTION GROUP, INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

ASSETS
2016 2015
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cesh and cash equivalents (NOTES 1, 8 and 10) $ 6,208,387 S 2,671,119
Irvestments (NOTES 1, 2 and 3) 11,020,448 10,302,321
Accounts receivabie (NOTE 1):
Completed contracts 20,764,636 20,759,226
Contracts in progress 28,479,516 33,686,984
Other 17,842 17,902
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of
billings on uncompleted contracts (NOTE 1) 790,843 1,632,314
Prepaid expenses 621,389 713,942
Irventory (NOTE 1} - 18,797
Deposits 51,778 68,110
Total current assets 67,954,839 69,870,715
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (NOTE 1):
Lend 1,038,681 1,038,681
Buildings and improvements 12,367,682 12,367,682
Machinery and equipment 5,588,376 5,062,401
Vehicles 5,752,422 5,185,762
Capital lease asset - 182,777
Leasehold improvements 149,129 143,282
Total depreciable assets 23,857,609 22,941,904
Less accumulated depreciation (10,383,849) (9,156,968)
Net depreciable assets 13,473,760 13,784,936
Total property and equipment - net 14,512,441 14,823,617
OTHER ASSETS:
Irvestment in limited liability
companies at cost 16,007,167 15,651,622
Other assets 66, 999 78,483
Stbordinated notes receivable (NOTE 4) 3,013,386 2,895,350
Cash surrender value of life insurance 703,911 623,377
Total other assets 19,791,463 19,248,832
Total assets $ 102,258,743 $ 103,943,164

The accompanying notes are an



CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Cash overdraft (NOTES 1, 8, and 10) $ - § 2,678,251
Accounts payable 26,918,048 27,198,461
Accrued expenses (NOTE 5) 10,030,042 6,895,295
Derivative (NOTES 1 and 3) 9,364 26,119
Billings in excess of costs and estimated

earnings on uncompleted contracts (NOTE 1) 6,245,560 8,645,087
Current maturities of long-term debt (NOTE 6) 3,054,861 4,590,619

Total current liabilities 46,257,875 50,033,832

OTHER LIABILITIES:

Long-term debt (NOTE 6) 1,125,300 4,180,400
Total other liabilities 1,125,300 4,180,400

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:

Common stock - 200,000 shares authorized;
120,430 shares issued; 104,500 shares

outstanding 12,043 12,043
Paid-in capital 324,934 324,934
Treasury stock - 15,930 shares at cost (1,259,781) (1,259,781)
Accumulated other comprehensive income 669,241 (105, 306)
Retained earnings 55,129,131 50,757,042

Total stockholders' equity 54,875,568 49,728,932
Total liabilities and stockholders' equity $ 102,258,743 $ 103,943,164

integral part of these statements.



THOMPSON CONSTRUCTION GROUP, INC.

CONSOLIDATING BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31, 2016

Thompson Guignard
Construction Properties,
Group, Inc. LLC Eliminations Consolidated
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents
(NOTES 1, 8 and 10) $ 5,993,774 $ 214,613 $ - $ 6,208,387
Investments
(NOTES 1, 2 and 3) 11,020,448 - - 11,020,448
Accounts receivable (NOTE 1):
Completed contracts 20,764,636 - - 20,764,636
Contracts in progress 28,479,516 - - 28,479,516
Other 17,716 126 - 17,842
Costs and estimated earnings
in excess of billings on
uncompleted contracts
(NOTE 1) 790,843 - - 790,843
Prepaid expenses 621,389 - - 621,389
Deposits 51,054 724 - 51,778
Total current assets 67,739,376 215,463 - 67,954,839
PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT (NOTE 1):
Land 925,799 _112,882 - 1,038,681
Buildings and improvements 12,077,415 290,267 - 12,367,682
Machinery and equipment 5,588,376 - - 5,588,376
Vehicles 5,752,422 = - 5,752,422
Leasehold improvements 149,129 - - 149,129
Total depreciable assets 23,567,342 290,267 - 23,857,609
Less accumulated
depreciation (10,346,632) (37,217) - (10,383,849)
Net depreciable assets 13,220,710 253,050 - 13,473,760
Total property and
equipment - net 14,146,509 365,932 - 14,512,441
OTHER ASSETS:
Investment in limited liability
companies at cost 16,588,052 - (580, 885) 16,007,167
Other assets 66,999 - - 66,999
Subordinated notes receivable
(NOTE 4) 3,013,386 - - 3,013,386
Cash surrender value of life
insurance 703,911 - - 703,911
Total other assets 20,372,348 - (580,885) 19,791,463
Total assets $ 102,258,233 $ 581,395 $ (580,885) $§ 102,258,743

The accompanying notes are an



Thompson Guignard
Construction Properties,
Group, Inc. LLC Eliminations Consolidated
LIABILITIES AND
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payable $ 26,917,538 $ 510 $ - S 26,918,048
Accrued expenses (NOTE 5) 10,030,042 - - 10,030,042
Derivative (NOTES 1 and 3) 9,364 - - 9,364
Billings in excess of costs
and estimated earnings
on uncompleted
contracts (NOTE 1) 6,245,560 - - 6,245,560
Current maturities of
long-term debt (NOTE 6) 3,054,861 - - 3,054,861
Total current liabilities 46,257,365 510 - 46,257,875
OTHER LIABILITIES:
Long-term debt (NOTE 6) 1,125,300 - - 1,125,300
Total other liabilities 1,125,300 = - 1,125,300
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Common stock - 200,000 shares
authorized; 120,430 shares
issued; 104,500 shares
outstanding 12,043 - - 12,043
Paid-in capital 324,934 - - 324,934
Treasury stock - 15,930 shares
at cost (1,259,781) - - (1,259,781)
Accumulated other
comprehensive inccme 669,241 - - 669,241
Retained earnings 55,129,131 580,885 (580,885) 55,129,131
Total stockholders' equity 54,875,568 580,885 (580,885) 54,875,568
Total liabilities and
stockholders' equity $ 102,258,233 $ 581,395 $ (580,885) § 102,258,743

integral part of this statement.



THOMPSON CONSTRUCTION GROUP, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

2016 2015
Revenues $ 335,459,784 $ 285,028,509
Cost of revenues 317,752,564 269,909,712
Gross profit 17,707,220 15,118,797
General and administrative expenses 6,033,605 7,066,388
Operating income 11,673,615 8,052,409
Other income (expense) 570,938 (1,550,334)
Consolidated net income 12,244,553 6,502,075
Net income attributable to noncontrolling interest - 438
Net income attributable to controlling interest 12,244,553 6,502,513
Other comprehensive income:
Unrealized holding gains (losses) on

securities arising during the period 774,547 (636, 663)

Comprehensive income $ 13,019,100 $ 5,865,850

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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THOMPSON CONSTRUCTION GROUP, INC.

CONSOLIDATING STATEMENTS OF INCOME AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016

Thompson Guignard
Construction Properties,
Group, Inc. LLC Eliminations Consolidated
Revenues $ 335,409,668 $ 50,116 $§ - $ 335,459,784
Cost of revenues 317,752,564 - - 317,752,564
Gross profit 17,657,104 50,116 - 17,707,22C
General and administrative
expenses 6,013,433 20,172 - 6,033,608
Operating income 11,643,671 29,944 - 11,673,61¢
Other income (expense) 600,882 - (29,944) 570,938
Consolidated net income 12,244,553 29,944 (29,944) 12,244,553
Other comprehensive income:
Unrealized holding gains
on securities arising
during the period 774,547 - - 774,547
Comprehensive income $ 13,019,100 S 29,944 $ (29,944) $ 13,019,10C

The accompanying notes are an integral part of this statement.

-10-



Consolidated
Balance
December 31,

Net income

Dividends paid

Investment in

2014

THOMPSON CONSTRUCTION GROUP,

INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

limited liability

companies

Unrealized holding

(losses) on

securities arising

Consolidated
Balance
December 31,

Net income

Dividends paid

Investment in

2015

limited l:iability

companies

Unrealized holding
gains cn securities
arising during the

period

Consolidated
Balance

ACCUMULATED
NON- OTHER
COMMON PAID IN TREASURY CONTROLLING RETAINED COMPREHENSIVE
STOCK CAPITAL STOCK INTEREST EARNINGS INCOME TOTAL

$ 12,043 $324,934 $(1,259,781) S (3,562) $48,740,329 S 531,357 $48,345,320
- - - (438) 6,502,513 - 6,502,075
- - - - (4,485,800) - (4,485,800)
- - - 4,000 - - 4,000
during the period - ot - - - (636, 663) (636,663)
$ 12,043 $324,934 $(1,259,781) $ - $50,757,042 $ (105,306) $49,728,932
- - - - 12,244,553 - 12,244,553
- - - - (7,872, 464) - (7,872, 464)
_ _ - - - 774,547 774,547
$ 12,043 $324,934 $(1,259,781) $ - $55,129,131 $ 669,241 $54,875,568

Decerber 31,

2016

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.

-11-



THOMPSON CONSTRUCTION GROUP, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

2016 2015
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Consolidated net income § 12,244,553 $§ 6,502,075
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net
cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation 1,641,603 1,766,1C4
Amortizaticn 11,484 14,1C1
Realized losses on sale of investments 24,490 2,1C6
(Gains) or. sale of property & equipment (40, 965) (433,210)
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Certificate of deposit - 528,5¢3
Accounts receivable 5,202,118 (8,651,379)
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of
billings on uncompleted contracts 841,471 216,168
Inventory 18,797 1,386,578
Prepaid expenses 92,553 200,031
Deposits 16,332 (58,064)
Cash surrender value of life insurance (80,534) (42,8C0)
Other assets - 44,048
Accounts payable (280,413) 6,169,579
Accrued expenses 3,134,747 1,620,266
Derivative (16,755) (8,8C2)
Billings in excess of costs and estimated
earnings on uncompleted ccntracts (2,399,527) 4,360,590
Noncontrolling interest - 4,0C0
Net cash provided by operating activities 20,409,954 13,619,988
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchases of property & equipment (1,335,112) (3,046,3€3)
Proceeds from sale of property & equipment 45, 650 3,334,625
Purchases of investments (4,764,957) (8,750,572)
Proceeds from sale of investments 4,796,887 8,356,652
Decrease (increase) in limited liability companies (355, 545) 1,494,979
Net cash provided (used) by investing activities (1,613,077) 1,389,361

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

._2._
2016 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:

Increase (decrease) in cash overdraft (2,678,251) 2,678,251

Net payments under short-term debt agreements (4,121,279) (6,480,698)

Principal payments under long-term debt agreements (469, 579) (1,779,354)

Increase in subordinated notes receivable (118,036) (2,895, 350)

Dividends paid (7,872,464) (4,485,800)
Net cash (used) by financing activities (15,259,609) (12,962,951)
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 3,537,268 2,046,398
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 2,671,119 624,721
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR $ 6,208,387 $ 2,671,119
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURES OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

Cash paid during the year for:

Interest $ 235,003 $ 295,455

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these statements.
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THOMPSON CONSTRUCTION GROUP, INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2016 AND 2015

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

NATURE OF BUSINESS

The Company is a South Caroclina corporation established on December 31, 1986. The
Company 1is a leading provider of industrial construction, maintenance, and building
construction services in the southeast.

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION

The 2016 consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Thompson
Construction Grecup, Inc. and its single member LLC, Guignard Properties, LLC. The 2015
consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Thompson Construction Group,
Inc., its single member LLC, Thompson Industrial Supply, LLC, its single member LLC,
Guignard Properties, LLC, and its sixty percent owned subsidiary, BioEnergy
Technologies, LLC. All material intercompany transactions have been eliminated in
consolidation.

REVENUE AND COST RECOGNITION

Revenue from construction contracts is recognized on the percentage-of-completion
method, measurecd by the proportion of construction costs incurred to date to estimated
total construction costs for each contract. That method is used because management
considers costs incurred to be the best available measure of progress on contracts in
progress. The Company utilizes the percentage of completion method of recognizing
income on contracts for financial reporting and tax purposes.

Contract costs of projects under construction include all direct material and labor
costs and indirect costs related to contract performance. Selling, general, and
administrative costs are charged to expenses as incurred. Provisions for estimated
losses on uncompleted contracts are made in the period in which such losses are
determined. Changes in estimated profitability are recognized in the period in which
the revisions are determined. The costs of construction contracts are charged to
earnings on the percentage-of-completion method used to recognize revenues.

The asset, "Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncompleted
contracts," represents revenues recognized in excess of amounts billed. The liability,
"Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings on uncompleted contracts,"
represents billings in excess of revenues recognized.

USE OF ESTIMATES

Management uses estimates and assumptions in preparing financial statements. Those
estimates and assumptions affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the reported revenues and
expenses. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three
months or 1less to be cash equivalents. Certificates of deposit with original
maturities over three months are classified as certificates of deposit.
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CASH OVERDRAFT
In order to maximize cash utilization, the Company's practice is to draw down on its
line of credit only as checks are presented for payment. As a result, the December 31,

2015 cash overdraft amount represents checks issued but not presented to a bank for
payner.t.

INVENTORY
“he Company’s supply inventory is stated at the lower of cost or market, with cost

determined on the first-in, first-out method.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

Accounts receivable are stated at the invoiced amount. If the Company is aware of a
specific customer’s inability to pay, the Company records a reserve for the difference
in the amount due and the amount the Company reasonably estimates will be collected.
Fer other customers, the differences between the amount due and the amount management
expects to collect are reported in the results of operations of the year in which
those differences are determined, with an offsetting entry to a valuation allowance
for accounts receivable. Balances that are still outstanding after management has used
reasorable collection efforts are written off through a charge to the valuation
allowance and a credit to accounts receivable.

INVESTMENTS

The Company <classifies its marketable equity securities as available for sale.
Securities classified as available for sale are carried in the consolidated financial
statements at fair value. Realized gains and losses, determined using the first-in,
first-out (FIFO) method, are included in earnings; unrealized gains and losses are
reported in other comprehensive income.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

Equipment is stated at cost. Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method
over the estimated useful lives of the assets.

LONG-LIVED ASSETS

Long-lived assets held and used by the Company are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of any asset may
not be recoverable. In the event that facts and circumstances indicate that the cost
of any long-lived assets may be impaired, an evaluation of recoverability would be
performed. As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company has reviewed all long-lived
assets and determined that no adjustment is necessary.

DERIVATIVE

The Company applies the provisions of ASC 815, Derivatives and Hedging, for its
derivative instruments. The Company is party to one interest rate swap agreement that
serves as a hedge against the movement of interest rates associated with borrowing at
a variable rate, which matures July 3, 2017. The Company uses the derivative to
elimirate the wvariability of cash flows related to interest rate payments on the
Company's variable-rate debt. The fair value of this derivative was a liability of
$9,364 and $26,119 as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The change in fair
value 1is recorded in other income (expense) in the accompanying consolidating
statements of income and comprehensive income.
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S CORPORATION - INCOME TAX STATUS

The Company, with the consent of its shareholders, has elected under the Internal
Revenue Code to be an S Corporation. In 1lieu of corporate income taxes, the
shareholders of an S Corporation are taxed on their proportionate share of the
Company's taxable income. Usually no provision or liability for federal income taxes
is included in the consolidated financial statements.

The Company follows FASB ASC 740-10, Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, which
provides guidance on accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognized in the
Company's financial statements. The guidance prescribes a recognition threshold and
measurement attribute for financial statement recognition and measurement of a tax
position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return, and also provides guidance on
de-recognition, classification, interest and penalties, accounting in interim periods,
disclosure and transition. As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company has no
uncertain tax positions that require either recognition or disclosure in the Company's
financial statements. Generally, the Company's tax returns remain open for federal and
state income tax examination for three years from the date of filing.

SALES TAX
The Company has responsibility for sales tax related to a portion of their sales to
nonexempt customers. The Company collects sales tax from customers and remits the

entire amount to the appropriate states. The Company excludes the tax collected and
remitted to the states from revenues and cost of sales.

ADVERTISING

The Company expenses advertising costs as they are incurred.

RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain accounts in the prior-year consolidated financial statements have been
reclassified for comparative purposes to conform with the presentation in the current-
year consolidated financial statements.

NOTE 2 - INVESTMENTS

Cost and fair value of marketable equity securities at December 31, 2016 and 2015 are
as follows:

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair
Cost Gain (Losses) Value
December 31, 2016
Available for sale:
Equity securities $ 6,344,504 $ 886,271 $ (158,574) $ 7,072,201
Debt securities 4,006,703 3,185 (61,641) 3,948,247
Totals $ 10,351,207 $ 889,456 $ (220,215) $ 11,020,448
D mb 2015
Available for sale:
Equity securities $ 6,535,587 $ 529,405 $ (650,602) $ 6,414,390
Debt securities 3,872,040 22,650 (6,759) 3,887,931
Totals 3 10,407,627 $ 552,055 $ (657,361) S 10,302,321
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At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the change in net unrealized holding gains (losses) on
securities available for sale in the amounts of $774,547 and $(636,663), respectively,
has been charged to other comprehensive income.

The fair value of debt and equity securities has been measured on a recurring basis

using Level 1 inputs, which are based on unadjusted quoted market prices within active
markets. There have been no changes in valuation techniques and related inputs.

NOTE 3 - FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

ASC 820, "Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures," established a fair value hierarchy
that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The
hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for
identical assets (Level 1 measurements) and the lowest priority to measurements
involving significant unobservable inputs (Level 3). The hierarchy consists of three
levels:

Level 1: Fair value is determined using quoted market prices in active
markets for identical assets.

Level 2: Fair value is determined using quoted market prices in active
markets for similar assets.

Level 3: Fair Value is determined using unobservable market prices in a
market that is typically inactive.

The following table provides a summary of the fair values, measured on a recurring
basis, of certain of the Company's assets under ASC 820 as of December 31, 2016 and
2015:

Fair Value Measurements at
Reporting Date Using

Quoted Prices

in Active
Markets for Significant
Identical Observable
Fair Assets Inputs
Value (Level 1) (Level 2)
December 31, 2016
Available for sale:
Equity securities $ 7,072,201 $ 7,072,201 $ -
Debt securities $ 3,948,247 $ 3,948,247 $ -
Derivative S (9,364) S - $ (9, 364)
ecember 31, 2015
Available for sale:
Equity securities $ 6,414,390 $ 6,414,390 $ -
Debt securities $ 3,887,931 $ 3,887,931 $ -
Derivative $ (26,119) $ - $ (26,119)

NOTE 4 - SUBORDINATED NOTES RECEIVABLE

In November 2015, the Company entered into subordinated debt agreements with Thompson
Industrial Services, LLC. At December 31, 2016 and 2015, subordinated notes receivable
totaling $55,257 and $51,164, respectively, were held. These notes mature on June 30,
2019 and bear interest at 8%. At December 31, 2016 and 2015, a subordinated note
receivable in the amount of $2,958,129 and $2,844,186, respectively, was held. This
note matures on December 31, 2019 and bears interest at 8% payable quarterly beginning
May 2016. In addition, PIK interest shall accrue on the principal balance of this note
at the rate of 4%.
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NOTE 5 - ACCRUED EXPENSES

An analysis of accrued expenses at December 31, 2016 and 2015 is presented as follows:

2016 2015
Accrued workers compensation insurance $ 880,317 $ 686,878
Accrued and withheld taxes 1,180,055 782,381
Accrued bonuses, salaries and vacation pay 4,410,731 1,768,859
Accrued job costs 3,097,183 3,184,650
Other accrued expenses 461,756 472,527

$ 10,030,042 $ 6,895,295

NOTE 6 - NOTES PAYABLE

The Company's nctes payable at December 31, 2016 and 2015 are presented below:

$20,000,000 line of credit payable July 31,

2018 with interest at "LIBOR rate

(adjusted periodically)” plus 1.5%

payable monthly beginning June 2016;

collateralized by equipment and

receivables. The balance at May 25, 2017

was $-0-. $ - $ 4,121,279

Note payable in monthly installments

of $4,439 including interest at "LIBOR

rate (adjusted periodically)"™ plus 1.85%

payable monthly beginning July 2016

with a balloon payment due March 2019;

collateralized by real estate. 652,517 705,783

Note payable in monthly installments

of $18,571 plus interest at "LIBOR rate

(adjusted periodically)" plus 1.85%

payable monthly beginning July 2016 with

with a balloon payment due July 2017;

collateralized by equipment, receivables,

and real estate. 2,915,714 3,138,571

Note payable in monthly installments

of $3,813 including interest at 3.45%

payable beginning December 2016 with a

balloon payment due November 2021;

collateralized by real estate 553,137 579,396

Note payable to shareholder in monthly

installments of $9,799 including

interest at prime adjusted annually on

July 1st through July 2017; collateralized

by 2,000 shares of Thompson Construction

Group, Inc. 58,793 176,378

Capital lease payable in monthly
installments of $4,256 including

interest at 5.38% through October 2016. - 49,612
Total 4,180,161 8,771,019
Due within one year 3,054,861 4,590,619
Due after one year $ 1,125,300 $ 4,180,400
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The following is a summary of annual principal payments for the years ending December
31:

2017 $ 3,054,861
2018 81,304
2019 575,004
2020 32,588
2021 436,404

$ 4,180,161

NOTE 7 - RETIREMENT PLAN

The Company has a 401(k) plan for all employees who are twenty-one years of age or
more. Under the plan, employees may elect to defer salary, subject to Internal Revenue
Service limits. The Company has the option of making an annual discretionary
contribution and can also match each employee’s contribution. For the years ended
December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the Company contributed $460,781 and
$577,987, respectively. There were no employer discretionary contributions for 2016
and 2015.

NOTE 8 — CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

The Company maintains cash balances at several financial institutions. Accounts at
each institution are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation up to
$250,000. At December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company'’s uninsured cash balances totaled
$10,900,763 and $1,024,223, respectively.

NOTE 9 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

LEASE ACTIVITY

Effective June 1, 1993 the Company leases one o